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Lucent Technologies designs and delivers the systems, services and software that drive
next-generation communications networks. Backed by Bell Labs research and development,
Lucent uses its strengths in mobility, optical, software, data and voice networking
technologies, as well as services, to create new revenue-generating opportunities for its
customers, while enabling them to quickly deploy and better manage their networks.
Lucent’s customer base includes communications service providers, governments and
enterprises worldwide.

2004 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

OPERATIONS
Revenues
Gross margin
Operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Income taxes
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per diluted share

Year Ended
September 30,

2004

Year Ended
September 30,

2003

Change

$ 9,045
3,779
2,560
1,219
(939)
2,002
0.42

$ 8,470
2,652
2,874
(222)
(233)
(770)
(0.29)

$

575
1,127
(314)
1,441
(706)
2,772
0.71

$ 4,873
16,963
5,990
—
(1,379)

$ 4,507
15,911
5,980
868
(4,239)

$

366
1,052
10
(868)
2,860

$ 634
$ 3.17
31,800

$ (948)
$ 2.16
34,500

$ 1,582
$ 1.01
(2,700)

FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities
Assets
Debt including liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities
8% redeemable convertible preferred stock
Shareowners’ deficit

OTHER INFORMATION
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Stock price
Employees
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TO OUR SHAREOWNERS:
Fiscal 2004 was a pivotal year for our company. For
the first time since 2000, we posted a profitable year
and achieved annual revenue growth. We also
generated cash from operations. Further, we
developed a clear vision for the next generation of
communications and put in place capabilities to be
our customers’ partner of choice. We achieved this
through our relentless focus on growth opportunities in
the marketplace, solid execution and controlling our
costs and expenses.
We believed our efforts would pay off when the
market stabilized and started to grow. And that’s what
happened this past year. As a result, we achieved
profitability as the benefits of our cost-reduction work
materialized at the same time we were able to grow
our top line.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for the year ended
September 30, 2004:
• Revenues increased 7 percent to $9.05 billion
from $8.47 billion in the prior year.
• Net income was $2.0 billion, or 42 cents per
diluted share, compared with a net loss of
$770 million, or 29 cents per diluted share, in the
prior year. (Net income for fiscal 2004 includes
$861 million, or 17 cents per diluted share, related
to an expected tax refund we announced in
November 2004.)
• Gross margin rate improved by 11 percentage
points to 42 percent.
• Operating expenses decreased to $2.6 billion
from $2.9 billion in fiscal 2003.
• Operating income improved by $1.4 billion.
• Operating activities generated $634 million of
cash, compared with a use of $948 million in
fiscal 2003 — a swing of almost $1.6 billion.
On a segment basis, revenues in Mobility Solutions
increased 30 percent compared with the prior year to
$4.01 billion as customers enhanced their networks to
deliver next-generation mobile high-speed data services. Revenues in Integrated Network Solutions
decreased 10 percent compared with the prior year
to $2.98 billion as the market for wireline technology

PATRICIA F. RUSSO
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

remains in transition. Revenues in Lucent Worldwide
Services increased 5 percent compared with the prior
year to $1.93 billion as our renewed focus on services
has begun to yield results.

OUR PEOPLE MADE THE DIFFERENCE
Our results and achievements reflect the tireless dedication of thousands of Lucent employees across the
company who have worked over the past few years
to reshape the business, reduce our cost structure
and streamline our supply chain, all while continuing
to meet the needs of our customers. Our employees
are as determined as they are diverse, as creative as
they are hard working and as resilient as they are
committed to excellence. They have faced the most
difficult period our industry has ever seen and have
done everything that was asked of them to see our
company through some challenging times.
Now that we have weathered the storm, we have
recommitted ourselves to leveraging — and further
developing — the strengths of our talent base. By
attracting and developing world-class talent at every
level of the business and by standing by our commitment to diversity and an open exchange of ideas,
we continue to create an environment where every
Lucent employee can become a creative force behind
new solutions for our customers. This creative force
already has led to improved customer satisfaction.
Based on feedback from recently conducted surveys,
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we improved our customer loyalty index by about 5
percent in fiscal 2004 compared with the prior year.
This represents the highest score in Lucent’s history
and is above the competitive average in the industry.

TRANSFORMING OUR COMPANY
Lucent is a vastly different company today than it was
just four years ago when we initiated our restructuring
initiatives. Our journey back to profitability in the face
of market uncertainties has been extremely challenging, but we have become a stronger, more streamlined
and more focused company. Along the way, we
learned many valuable lessons and found new ways
to improve the way we do business and serve our
customers. In just the past year, we implemented a
number of new systems and processes — including
an improved customer order process, increased
standardization across product lines and a new global
treasury management system — that have improved
our overall efficiency and effectiveness.
While we made progress in many areas during the
year, we continued to have to take some difficult
actions, most notably reductions to employee work
force levels and the level of subsidies for retiree health
care. While we have been hiring in certain areas of the
company, the overall needs of the business resulted in
a net employee work force reduction of 2,700 during
the fiscal year to 31,800. Additionally, the cost of providing postretirement health care benefits continues to
rise. Our U.S. retiree health care costs were almost 10
percent of our total revenues in 2004. Given the challenges we continue to face in this highly competitive
market, we needed to find an affordable balance
between providing for the retirees who helped build
our heritage and investing in the next-generation products and services that will shape — and ensure — our
future. Therefore, we had to make the difficult decision
to reduce subsidies for management retirees, and late
in the calendar year our U.S.-based unions ratified our
new collective bargaining agreement, which includes
provisions that cap our liability for retiree health care
for represented employees and retirees, enabling us
to keep these expenses at an affordable level.
The intense competition in our industry demands that
we continue to focus our energies on profitably growing the business, which means not only focusing on
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the top line, but also continuing to drive improvements
in our cost and expense structure and improving our
overall efficiency. It is absolutely clear that these are
not short-term areas of focus; rather they are fundamental business imperatives that will necessarily
influence us going forward.

ARCHITECTS OF NEXT-GENERATION
COMMUNICATIONS
After several years of dramatic decline, the telecommunications market has stabilized and started
growing, driven by an increasing demand for converged network services. Convergence is about
creating networks that deliver communications services that are simple, seamless, secure, personal,
portable and virtual, to reach people at work, home
or anywhere in between.
At Lucent, we developed and articulated a clear
vision around convergence and implemented a
strategy to make it happen. This positions us on the
leading edge as an increasing number of our customers are looking for strategic partners to help them
deliver the next generation of converged communications. In this new environment, we need to do more
than deliver equipment in the traditional manner. We
must deliver value in the form of products, services,
marketing support and partnerships that provide the
cost savings and revenue-generating opportunities
that will enable customers to deliver on their nextgeneration visions.
Lucent’s implementation of the IMS architecture is
the cornerstone of this next-generation convergence.
IMS (Internet protocol Multimedia Subsystem) is an
open standards-based way to build next-generation
networks that deliver new lifestyle communications
services to end users. Implementing IMS allows
Lucent to focus on delivering what we call “Value
over IP™,” because next-generation networking is
about more than just voice over Internet protocol
(VoIP); it’s about seamlessly delivering any type of
lifestyle service the end user desires (data, images,
video, text or multimedia) over any type of device (cell
phone, PDA, laptop, PC or other) wherever the user
may be.
Over the next few years, the distinction between
wireline providers and mobile providers will continue to
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blur, and the focus will be on delivering on-demand
lifestyle services to the end user. That’s why during
fiscal 2004 we developed and introduced 10 new
products — including network controllers, gateways
and signaling and application servers — that support
our common platform approach to IMS across our
entire wireline and wireless portfolio. This unified
approach to building a common IMS platform for wireless and wireline customers is a fundamental change
in the way we think about communications systems,
software and delivering communications services.

STRATEGY FOR PROFITABLE GROWTH
To address the demand for converged network services, our customers are developing more significant,
multiyear plans for next-generation networks that will
deliver a “triple play” of voice, video and data services, while managing network operating costs. As
a result, analysts project spending in certain nextgeneration segments (such as mobile high-speed
data, VoIP, next-generation optical networking and
broadband access) to grow at varying rates, even
as spending on such traditional segments as circuit
switching continues to decline. These developments
play to Lucent’s strengths, and we have put in place
a two-pronged strategy to capitalize on these opportunities. First, we continue to invest in these key
growth areas related to convergence, while leveraging our expertise in designing, deploying and
servicing converged networks. At the same time,
we continue to expand our revenue base by making
strides in such new markets as services, the government sector and emerging markets outside the
United States.
In mobile high-speed data, Lucent remains the
global leader in the deployment of commercial thirdgeneration (3G) networks, with more than 120,000
spread-spectrum base stations deployed worldwide,
70,000 of which support 3G services. We remain the
global leader in CDMA mobile technology and have
successfully deployed 3G networks with more than
30 mobile operators worldwide. Our mobile highspeed data solutions are enabling mobile operators
to offer businesses and consumers such data services as e-mail and corporate intranet access at
speeds comparable to the fastest wireline connec-

tions. In addition, we got fiscal 2005 off to a great
start announcing important W-CDMA/UMTS wins in
both North America and Europe.
Early in fiscal 2004, we unveiled our Accelerate™
Next-Generation Communication solutions — a
cost-effective way for our customers to evolve their
networks to provide IP-based voice, data and multimedia services. Since then, we have announced
more than 25 customers for these solutions and have
continued to expand and enhance our IP-based
offerings through a combination of internal product
development, partnerships and the acquisition of
Telica, which has significantly strengthened our VoIP
offering — bolstering our strategy to become the
leader in converged networks.
Next-generation optical networking also remains a
strong area for us. Both the Lucent LambdaXtreme™
Transport and the Lucent LambdaUnite® nextgeneration systems are finding acceptance with
customers seeking to increase the capacity, scalability and intelligence of their backbone networks. And
Lucent’s Metropolis ® portfolio of metro optical networking products now has more than 100 customers.
In broadband access, we continue to deliver
solutions that enable customers to deliver a “triple
play” of voice, video and data services over highspeed connections. We also have announced an
agreement to develop IPTV for broadband networks,
as well as several agreements for our network
management software offerings that deliver broadband services, troubleshoot networking problems
and improve the efficient flow of traffic on customer
networks.

SEIZING NEW OPPORTUNITIES
Several years ago we made a strategic decision to
further leverage Lucent’s inherent capabilities in
designing, building, deploying and maintaining complex networks around the world. We created Lucent
Worldwide Services and broadened our professional
services and managed services offerings. Our total
Services revenues increased 5 percent in fiscal 2004
compared with the prior year, and we have increased
our focus on some of the higher growth areas —
including maintenance, professional and managed
services. We also announced new security and VoIP
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assessment and readiness services, enabling customers to build more secure and reliable
next-generation networks. In addition, Services continues to create innovative customer-focused programs,
including the Client Reference Program that has
already led to new revenue.
Our business with the government sector continues to grow as well — increasing more than 50
percent year over year, albeit on a small base. We
continue to address opportunities in this area and
expect to grow this business substantially over time
as the government sector transitions to VoIP and
next-generation converged networks based on IMS.
We also made progress in emerging markets outside the United States, where we have recently won
contracts with service providers in such countries
as India, Romania, Vietnam and Pakistan. In some
cases, Lucent’s innovative technologies are driving
new opportunities in various regions. For example,
we were the first to deliver wireless solutions globally
for the 450 MHz spectrum band (CDMA450). So far,
we have deployed commercial networks in 450 MHz
spectrum in Russia, Romania, Uzbekistan and
Vietnam, and we are conducting numerous trials
with customers around the world.

BELL LABS
Bell Labs, the innovation engine that powers Lucent
Technologies, remains one of the leading industrial
R&D organizations in the world. Building on a heritage
of innovation that includes more than 30,000 patents,
six Nobel Prizes in physics, nine U.S. National Medals
of Science and eight U.S. National Medals of
Technology, Bell Labs continued to flourish in 2004.
In April, MIT’s Technology Review magazine selected
a Bell Labs patent for improving the quality of VoIP
and other data service as one of its “Five Killer
Patents” for the year. In June, we announced our
plans to open a new R&D facility in Dublin with the
support of the Irish government. Meanwhile, Bell Labs
continues to pioneer efforts in new areas of innovation, including nanotechnology. The New Jersey
Nanotechnology Consortium, based at and run by
Bell Labs, is working on everything from nextgeneration nano batteries and chemical factories on a
chip, to liquid lenses, microscopic sensors and chips
with thousands of micro-microphones — creating the
potential for new industries and technologies. Most
important, Bell Labs continues to work side-by-side
4

with Lucent’s product teams to develop cutting-edge
solutions for our customers. For example, our
implementation of the IMS network architecture is
distinguished by unique Bell Labs research-enabled
technologies that ensure privacy, security, quality and
responsiveness of end-user applications.

EXECUTING FOR THE FUTURE
Going forward, the challenge is to ensure that we
remain well positioned to capitalize on the market
opportunities being created by converged network
services. We will do this by working closely with our
customers, continuing to invest in the key areas of
convergence, looking for opportunities to further
improve our systems and processes, and continuing
to control costs and expenses. Execution in each of
these areas is essential to the long-term success of
our business as we continue to evolve into a more
customer- and market-driven company.
Along the way, we will maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and business ethics,
while continuing to pursue community service opportunities through such initiatives as the new Lucent
Connects Global Employee Volunteer program, which
supports and encourages team volunteer activities
in communities around the world where Lucent
employees and customers live and work.
There is still more work to be done as we continue
to position ourselves to meet our customers’ needs,
drive profitable growth and create long-term shareowner value. The good news is we have the people,
the relationships and the portfolio to meet the challenges we face in an increasingly competitive
environment.
We look forward to seizing the opportunities before
us as we work to create new possibilities to enhance
people’s lives by transforming the way the world
communicates.
We invite you to track our progress during the coming year by logging onto www.lucent.com.

Patricia F. Russo
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC.
600 Mountain Avenue
Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974
NOTICE OF 2005 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREOWNERS
DATE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Wednesday, February 16, 2005

TIME . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

9:00 a.m. EST

PLACE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

The DuPont Theatre
10th and Market Streets
Wilmington, Delaware 19801

ITEMS OF BUSINESS . . . . .

(1) To elect ten members of the Board of Directors for terms expiring at
the annual meeting of shareowners in 2006.
(2) To amend the Restated Certiﬁcate of Incorporation authorizing
the Board of Directors to effect a reverse stock split at one of
four ratios.
(3) To transact such other business, including consideration of
shareowner proposals, as may properly come before the meeting
and any adjournment thereof.

RECORD DATE . . . . . . . . . .

Holders of Lucent common stock of record at the close of business
on December 20, 2004 are entitled to vote at the meeting.

ANNUAL REPORT . . . . . . . .

The company’s 2004 annual report, which is not a part of the proxy
soliciting materials, is included as part of this document.

PROXY VOTING . . . . . . . . .

It is important that your shares be represented and voted at the
meeting. You may vote your shares by completing and returning the
proxy card sent to you. Most shareowners may also vote their shares
over the Internet or by telephone. You may revoke a proxy at any
time prior to its exercise at the meeting by following the instructions
in the accompanying proxy statement.

January 3, 2005

WILLIAM R. CARAPEZZI, JR.
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary
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Lucent Technologies Inc.
600 Mountain Avenue
Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974

PROXY STATEMENT
GENERAL INFORMATION
We are providing these proxy materials in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of
Lucent Technologies Inc. of proxies to be voted at our 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareowners, and at any
postponement or adjournment of the meeting. In this proxy statement, Lucent Technologies Inc. is
referred to as “Lucent,” “we,” “us,” “our” or “the company,” unless the context indicates otherwise.
You are cordially invited to attend our annual meeting on February 16, 2005, beginning at 9 a.m. EST.
Our annual meeting will be held at the DuPont Theatre located at 10th and Market Streets, Wilmington,
Delaware 19801. Shareowners will be admitted beginning at 8 a.m. EST. The location is accessible to
handicapped persons and, upon request, we will provide wireless headsets for hearing ampliﬁcation. A
map and directions to our annual meeting are on the admission ticket and at the back of this document.
You will need your admission ticket as well as a form of personal identiﬁcation to enter our annual
meeting. If you are a shareowner of record, you will ﬁnd an admission ticket attached to the proxy card
sent to you. If you plan to attend our annual meeting, please retain the admission ticket. If you arrive at
the annual meeting without an admission ticket, we will admit you if we are able to verify that you are a
Lucent shareowner.
We are pleased to offer a live audio webcast of our annual meeting. If you choose to listen to the audio
webcast, you may do so at the time of the meeting through the link on www.lucent.com/investor.
Information on the audio webcast, other than our proxy statement and form of proxy, is not part of the proxy
solicitation materials.
If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee and you plan to attend our
annual meeting, you can obtain an admission ticket in advance by sending a written request, along with
proof of ownership, such as a recent bank or brokerage account statement, to our transfer agent, The
Bank of New York, Church Street Station, P.O. Box 11009, New York, New York 10286.
Lucent’s ﬁscal year begins on October 1 and ends on September 30. References in this proxy statement
to the year 2004 or ﬁscal 2004 refer to the 12-month period from October 1, 2003 through
September 30, 2004.
We are ﬁrst mailing this proxy statement and accompanying form of proxy and voting instructions
on January 3, 2005 to holders of our common stock on December 20, 2004, the record date for our
annual meeting.
Proxies and Voting Procedures
Your vote is important. Many shareowners cannot attend our annual meeting in person. Therefore, a
large number of shareowners need to be represented by proxy. As an alternative to voting in person at
the meeting, most shareowners have a choice of voting over the Internet, using a toll-free telephone
number or completing a proxy card and mailing it in the postage-paid envelope provided. Please refer
to your proxy card or the information forwarded by your bank, broker or other nominee to see which
options are available to you. The Internet and telephone voting procedures are designed to authenticate
shareowners and to allow you to conﬁrm that your instructions have been properly recorded. Please be
aware that if you vote over the Internet, you might incur costs such as telephone and Internet access
charges for which you will be responsible. The Internet and telephone voting facilities for eligible
shareowners will close at 11:59 p.m. EST on February 15, 2005.
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The method by which you vote will in no way limit your right to vote at our annual meeting if you later
decide to attend in person. If your shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee,
you must obtain a proxy, executed in your favor, from the holder of record, to be able to vote at our
annual meeting.
All shares entitled to vote and represented by properly completed proxies received prior to our annual
meeting, and not revoked, will be voted at our annual meeting in accordance with your instructions. If
you do not indicate how your shares should be voted on a matter, the shares represented by
your properly completed proxy will be voted as the Board of Directors recommends.
If any other matters are properly presented for consideration at our annual meeting, including, among
other things, consideration of a motion to adjourn the meeting to another time or place in order to solicit
additional proxies in favor of the recommendations of the Board of Directors, the persons named as
proxies will have discretion to vote on those matters according to their best judgment to the same extent
as the person delivering the proxy would be entitled to vote. At the date we commenced printing this
proxy statement, we did not anticipate that any other matters would be raised at our annual meeting.
IVS Associates, Inc., as the Inspector of Election appointed for the meeting, will independently tabulate
afﬁrmative and negative votes, abstentions and broker non-votes.
Revoking a Proxy
You may revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by timely delivering a properly executed,
later-dated proxy (including an Internet or telephone vote) or by voting by ballot at the annual
meeting. By providing your voting instructions promptly, you may save the company the expense of a
second mailing.
Conduct of the Meeting
To ensure that our annual meeting is conducted in an orderly fashion and that shareowners wishing to
speak at the meeting have a fair opportunity to speak, we will have certain guidelines and rules for the
conduct of the meeting, which we will communicate to those attending the meeting.
Shareowners Entitled to Vote
Shareowners of our common stock at the close of business on the record date are entitled to notice of,
and to vote at, our annual meeting. Each common share is entitled to one vote on each matter properly
brought before the meeting. On November 30, 2004, there were 4,420,635,714 shares of our common
stock outstanding.
If you are a participant in the BuyDIRECTSM stock purchase plan, shares held in your BuyDIRECT
account may be voted using the proxy card sent to you or, if you receive electronic delivery, in
accordance with instructions you receive by e-mail. The plan’s administrator is the shareowner of record
of your plan shares and will not vote those shares unless you provide it with instructions, which you may
do over the Internet, by telephone or by mail using the proxy card sent to you.
If you are a participant in the Lucent Savings Plan, Lucent Long Term Savings and Security Plan, Lucent
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or Lucent Long Term Savings and Security Employee Stock Ownership
Trust, you will receive either (1) one proxy card for all shares you own through these plans or (2) an
e-mail with instructions on how to vote. If you receive a proxy card, it will serve as a voting instruction
card for the trustee or administrator of these plans where all accounts are registered in the same name.
To allow sufﬁcient time for the respective trustee or administrator to vote your shares, the trustee or
administrator must receive your voting instructions by February 10, 2005. If the trustee does not receive
your instructions by that date, the trustee will vote the unvoted plan shares in the same proportion as

SM

BuyDIRECT is a registered service mark of The Bank of New York.
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shares for which instructions were received under each plan. If the administrator for the Lucent
Employee Stock Purchase Plan does not receive your instructions by that date, the administrator will
vote shares held in an Employee Stock Purchase Plan account in accordance with normal brokerage
industry practices.
If you hold Lucent common stock through any other company’s stock purchase or savings plan, you will
receive voting instructions from that plan’s administrator. Please sign and return those instructions
promptly to assure that your shares are represented at the meeting.
Quorum
The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote is
necessary to constitute a quorum at the meeting for the election of directors and for the other proposals.
Abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as present and entitled to vote for purposes of
determining whether a quorum exists. A broker non-vote occurs when a nominee holding shares for a
beneﬁcial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have
discretionary voting power with respect to that item and has not received voting instructions from the
beneﬁcial owner. If the persons present or represented by proxy at the meeting constitute holders of
less than a majority of the shares entitled to vote, our meeting may be adjourned to a subsequent date
for the purpose of obtaining a quorum.
Electronic Access for Documents Filed with the SEC
This document is available on our website at www.lucent.com/investor. Most shareowners may elect
to view certain shareowner communications ﬁled with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) over the Internet at www.sec.gov instead of receiving paper copies in the mail. If you are a
shareowner of record, you may choose this option and save the company the cost of producing and
mailing these documents. You may select this option by (a) marking the appropriate box on your proxy
card or (b) by following the instructions provided if you vote over the Internet. If you vote over
the Internet, simply follow the prompts for enrolling in the electronic proxy delivery service. You also
may enroll in the electronic proxy delivery service at any time in the future by going to
www.lucent.com/investor and following the instructions. If you choose to view future proxy materials
and our annual report over the Internet, you will receive an e-mail next year with instructions containing
the Internet address of those materials. Your choice will remain in effect until you tell us otherwise, and
you will not have to elect Internet access each year.
If you hold your Lucent stock through a bank, broker or other nominee, please refer to the information
provided by that entity for instructions on how to elect to view future proxy statements and annual
reports over the Internet.
Most shareowners who hold their Lucent stock through a bank, broker or other nominee and who elect
electronic access will receive an e-mail message next year containing the Internet address to access
our proxy statement and annual report.
Multiple Shareowners Sharing the Same Address
We have adopted a procedure approved by the SEC called “householding” which will reduce our
printing costs and postage fees. Under this procedure, shareowners of record who have the same
address and last name and do not participate in electronic delivery of proxy materials will receive only
one copy of our annual report and proxy statement unless one or more of these shareowners notify us
that they wish to continue receiving individual copies. Shareowners who participate in householding will
continue to receive separate proxy cards.
If you are an eligible shareowner of record receiving multiple copies of our annual report and proxy
statement at your household, you can request householding by contacting our transfer agent at
1 888 LUCENT6 or write to The Bank of New York, Church Street Station, P.O. Box 11009, New York,
New York 10286. If you are a shareowner of record residing at an address that participates in
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householding and you wish to receive a separate document in the future, you may contact us in the
same manner. If you own your shares through a bank, broker or other nominee, you can request
householding by contacting the nominee.
Cost of Proxy Solicitation
Lucent will pay the cost of soliciting proxies. Directors, ofﬁcers and employees of the company may
solicit proxies on behalf of the company in person or by telephone, facsimile or other electronic means.
We have engaged the ﬁrm of Morrow & Co., Inc. to assist us in the distribution and solicitation of
proxies. We have agreed to pay Morrow & Co., Inc. a fee of $20,000 plus expenses for these services.
In accordance with the regulations of the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) we also
will reimburse brokerage ﬁrms and other custodians, nominees and ﬁduciaries for their expenses
incurred in sending proxies and proxy materials to beneﬁcial owners of our common stock as of the
record date.
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GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY
Our Board of Directors believes that the purpose of corporate governance is to ensure that we maximize
shareowner value over a sustained period of time in a manner consistent with legal requirements and the
highest standards of integrity. The Board has adopted and adheres to corporate governance practices that
the Board and senior management believe promote this purpose, are sound, and represent best practices.
We continually review these governance practices and update them, as appropriate, based upon Delaware
law (the state in which we are incorporated), rules and listing standards of the NYSE, SEC regulations as
well as best practices suggested by recognized governance authorities.
Some of our signiﬁcant corporate governance initiatives include:
• Our Board has afﬁrmatively determined that nine of our 11 directors meet the NYSE standard for
independence.
• All members of our Audit and Finance Committee, Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee,
Leadership Development and Compensation Committee and Litigation Committee are independent.
• The Board has added seven highly qualiﬁed and independent directors at the recommendation of the
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee since January 2002, when Patricia Russo
became our Chief Executive Ofﬁcer. Ms. Russo knew none of these new members of our Board prior
to their consideration as directors.
• Our independent directors meet at each regularly scheduled meeting without the presence of
management.
• Our internal General Auditor and our outside independent auditors meet separately in private
sessions with our Audit and Finance Committee at each regularly scheduled committee meeting.
• Our code of conduct, which we refer to as our Business Guideposts, is monitored by our Ofﬁce of
Business Conduct and is afﬁrmed by our employees every two years.
• We have online ethics and compliance certiﬁcation programs for all company employees.
• We have a conﬂict of interest compliance program.
• We have an Ofﬁce of Business Conduct with a hotline available to all employees to report ethics and
compliance concerns, anonymously if preferred, including concerns related to accounting, accounting
controls, ﬁnancial reporting, and auditing matters.
We have made available on our website copies of our Business Guideposts, corporate governance
guidelines, code of ethics for our Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and ﬁnancial ofﬁcers and executives, charters
for the committees of our Board and other information that may be of interest to investors. Our website
can be found at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html.
In February 2003, the Board of Directors re-appointed Franklin A. Thomas as senior or lead director, a
position Mr. Thomas has held since October 2000. In this capacity, Mr. Thomas has frequent contact
with Ms. Russo and other members of management on a broad range of matters and has additional
corporate governance responsibilities for the Board. The Board of Directors has determined that
Mr. Thomas meets the NYSE standard for independence.
Meeting Attendance
During ﬁscal 2004, the Board of Directors held eight meetings and the standing committees held a total
of 20 meetings. The average attendance at the Board of Directors and committee meetings was 96.2%.
The Board and committees held executive or private sessions without company management present
as a regular practice.
All of our directors are strongly encouraged to attend our annual meeting of shareowners. All of our
directors standing for re-election attended our 2004 annual meeting of shareowners.
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Director Independence
Our Board of Directors has adopted Director Independence Standards, which can be viewed on
our website at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html. These Director Independence Standards
incorporate all of the director independence standards of the NYSE. In summary, these standards
require that a director be considered independent only if the director does not have, and generally has
not had in the most recent three years, any material relationships with the company, including any
afﬁliation with our independent auditors. The Board has reviewed each of the directors’ relationships
with the company in conjunction with the Director Independence Standards and has afﬁrmatively
determined that all of our directors, other than Patricia Russo and Henry Schacht, are independent
under the Board’s Director Independence Standards and are independent directors under the NYSE
corporate governance rules.
Committees of the Board of Directors
Our Board has three standing committees: (1) the Audit and Finance Committee; (2) the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee; and (3) the Leadership Development and Compensation
Committee. All of the members of our three standing committees are independent directors and are
identiﬁed in the following table.

Director

Robert E. Denham

Audit and Finance
Committee

Corporate
Governance and
Nominating
Committee

X(Chair)

X

Leadership
Development
And Compensation
Committee

Daniel S. Goldin

X

Edward E. Hagenlocker

X

Carla A. Hills
Karl J. Krapek

X

Richard C. Levin

X

Franklin A. Thomas
Ronald A. Williams

X(Chair)

X

X

X(Chair)

X

X

X

John A. Young

In ﬁscal 2004, the Audit and Finance Committee met nine times, the Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee met ﬁve times, and the Leadership Development and Compensation Committee
met ﬁve times. Our Board also has a Litigation Committee consisting of Robert Denham and Daniel
Goldin, which meets only as required and met three times in ﬁscal 2004. These committees are
described below.
The company had a Technology Committee that reviewed with management major technological
programs undertaken by Bell Labs and other research and development organizations. This committee
met once during ﬁscal 2004. Because of the importance of technology to the company, the Board
decided that all directors should be involved in overseeing the work undertaken by the Technology
Committee. Accordingly, the Board dissolved the Technology Committee effective March 1, 2004, so
that the entire Board would be involved in this key aspect of the company’s business.
Audit and Finance Committee
The Audit and Finance Committee is responsible for matters relating to ﬁnancial reporting, internal
controls, risk management and compliance. These responsibilities include appointing, overseeing,
evaluating and approving the fees of our independent auditors, reviewing ﬁnancial information which is
provided to our shareowners and others, reviewing with management our system of internal controls
and ﬁnancial reporting process and monitoring our compliance program and system.
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The Audit and Finance Committee operates pursuant to a written charter, which sets forth the functions
and responsibilities of this committee. A copy of the charter can be viewed on our website at
www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html. All members of this committee are independent directors
under the NYSE corporate governance rules.
The Board of Directors has determined that each committee member is ﬁnancially literate. In addition,
the Board of Directors has determined that at least one member of the Audit and Finance Committee
meets the NYSE standard of having accounting or related ﬁnancial management expertise.
The Board of Directors has also determined that Robert E. Denham, the committee’s chairman, meets the
SEC criteria of an “audit committee ﬁnancial expert.” Mr. Denham’s extensive background and experience
includes serving as the Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of Salomon Inc where Mr. Denham actively
supervised the Salomon Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and participated extensively in accounting, auditing, internal
control and risk management issues. Since January 1, 2004, Mr. Denham has been the Chairman and
President of the Financial Accounting Foundation. The Financial Accounting Foundation has oversight,
funding and appointment responsibilities for the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board and their advisory councils.
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee
The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for providing oversight on a
broad range of issues regarding our corporate governance practices and policies and the composition
and operation of the Board. These responsibilities include reviewing potential candidates for
membership on the Board and recommending to the Board nominees for election as directors of
the company.
The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee operates under a written charter, which sets
forth the functions and responsibilities of this committee. A copy of the charter can be viewed on our
website at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html. All members of this committee are
independent directors under the NYSE corporate governance rules.
Our policy and process for nominating directors are set forth beginning on page 9.
Leadership Development and Compensation Committee
The Leadership Development and Compensation Committee is responsible for matters relating to the
development, attraction and retention of the company’s leadership and for matters relating to the
company’s compensation and beneﬁt programs. As part of its responsibilities, this committee evaluates
the performance and determines the compensation of the company’s Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and
approves the compensation of our senior ofﬁcers.
The Leadership Development and Compensation Committee operates under a written charter, that sets
forth the functions and responsibilities of this committee. A copy of the charter can be viewed on our
website at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html. All members of this committee are
independent directors under the NYSE corporate governance rules.
Litigation Committee
The Litigation Committee meets as necessary to authorize, or recommend to the Board, settlement of
certain litigation.
Compensation of Directors
At our 2004 annual meeting, our shareowners approved a new equity compensation plan for our nonemployee directors. This new compensation plan was based on an evaluation of our then existing plan
and compensation program against current and emerging competitive practices and against emerging
legal and regulatory developments. Our evaluation also consisted of a review of our directors’
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compensation against that of directors of other large public companies. The key features of this
compensation program are outlined below.
Non-Employee Directors’ Compensation
For ﬁscal 2004, each non-employee director received an annual retainer of $100,000 and an annual
grant of Lucent common stock having a value of $25,000. The annual retainer of $100,000 has not
changed since 1998. The Chairman of the Audit and Finance Committee received an additional retainer
of $25,000, and the Chairman of each of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee and the
Leadership Development and Compensation Committee received an additional retainer of $10,000.
Each of the other members of the Audit and Finance Committee received an additional annual retainer
of $5,000. For his services as Senior or Lead Director in ﬁscal 2004, Mr. Thomas received an additional
$50,000. Non-employee directors must elect to receive between 50% and 100% of their retainer in
Lucent common stock. Any amounts not paid in common stock are paid in cash.
The Board instituted a stock ownership policy to ensure that non-employee directors maintain equity in
the company. The policy requires that each non-employee director hold 50% of all equity awards
(including the mandatory stock retainer, any elective stock retainer, and the annual stock award) until
the director no longer serves on our Board. This policy is subject to modiﬁcation by the Board.
Deferred Compensation Plan
Under our Deferred Compensation Plan, non-employee directors were able to defer all or a portion of
their cash and stock compensation to a deferred compensation account. Effective December 2002,
however, non-employee directors can defer only the stock portion of their retainer to a deferred
compensation account. Deferred Compensation Plan accounts have two components, a Lucent stock
portion and a cash portion. The stock portion of a retainer can be deferred only to the Lucent stock
portion of an account. The value of the Lucent stock portion of an account ﬂuctuates based on changes
in the price of Lucent common stock. Dividend equivalents, when paid, are credited on the Lucent stock
portion of accounts. The cash portion of an account earns interest, compounded quarterly, at an annual
rate equal to the 10-year treasury bill rate. Interest rates for deferrals to the cash account may be further
revised by the Board of Directors in the future.
All distributions from the Lucent stock portion of an account will be made in Lucent common stock. In
the event of a Potential Change in Control, as deﬁned in the Deferred Compensation Plan, the Deferred
Compensation Plan will be supported by a beneﬁts protection grantor trust, the assets of which will be
subject to the claims of the company’s creditors.
Other Beneﬁts
We maintain a general insurance policy that provides non-employee directors with travel accident
insurance when on company business. Individuals who became non-employee directors before 1999
were able to purchase life insurance for which the company paid a portion of the premium. Directors
participating in this program did have income imputed based on the value of the company-paid
premiums. These policies were to continue after the non-employee director’s retirement from the Board
of Directors. The plan design was such that the amount that the company paid on the director’s behalf
in premiums for the policy was to be returned to the company at the earlier of (a) the non-employee
director’s death or (b) the later of age 70 or 15 years from the policy’s inception. These types of policies
are known as collateral assignment split-dollar life insurance arrangements.
Under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“the Act”), it became unlawful for public companies to provide,
directly or indirectly, loans to corporate directors or executive ofﬁcers within the meaning of the
securities laws. Most legal analysts believe that collateral assignment split-dollar arrangements for
corporate directors and executive ofﬁcers are no longer permitted, given this provision of the Act.
Therefore, our non-employee directors were provided with two options, as described below:
• Option one — Continue the life insurance coverage with the same death beneﬁt. Premium payments
made prior to the Act’s enactment under the collateral assignment arrangement are frozen but will
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partially fund the death beneﬁt. These premiums will be returned to the company in the future,
generally under the same timing noted above. Because these frozen premium payments will not
provide sufﬁcient funding to provide the same death beneﬁt, additional premium payments will be
made. However, the company will not recover these new premium payments at a future date, which
is in compliance with the Act. Each director who chose this option will have a tax liability on both the
frozen premium payments, as well as the new premium payments made each year.
• Option two — Dissolve the collateral assignment arrangement before January 1, 2004. If a director
chose this option, the company stopped paying premiums prior to January 1, 2004, and recovered the
amount that it has paid. If this option was selected, the director owns the policy individually and
directly, and the company has no further interest or involvement in the policy. Therefore, the company
is in compliance with the Act.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
In ﬁscal 2004, only independent directors served on the Leadership Development and Compensation
Committee. Franklin A. Thomas was the Chairman of the committee throughout the year. The other
committee members during all or part of the year were Daniel S. Goldin, Edward E. Hagenlocker, Carla
A. Hills and John A. Young. No inside directors serve on this committee. No member of the committee
had any relationship with us requiring disclosure under Item 404 of SEC Regulation S-K. No executive
ofﬁcer of Lucent served on any board of directors or compensation committee of any other company for
which any of our directors served as an executive ofﬁcer at any time during ﬁscal 2004.
Nomination of Directors
The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible, pursuant to its charter, for
identifying individuals qualiﬁed to become Board members and for recommending nominees for the
Board for election at the annual meeting of shareowners. To facilitate this process, the Board adopted,
upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, a Director
Nominating Process and Policy and Director Qualiﬁcation Criteria. Both of these can be viewed on our
website at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html.
The Director Nominating Process and Policy and the Director Qualiﬁcation Criteria articulate a process
and qualiﬁcations that are clear, speciﬁc, and prudent to help the Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee and the Board identify and select the most qualiﬁed directors to meet our needs
and provide a well-functioning Board.
In accordance with the policy, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee will take into
account the Board’s current and anticipated strengths and needs, based upon the Board’s current
proﬁle and the company’s current and anticipated needs. The Committee will also seek an appropriate
balance of experience or expertise in accounting and ﬁnance, technology, management, international
business, compensation, corporate governance, strategy, industry knowledge and general business
matters, as well as diversity within the Board.
As set forth in the Director Qualiﬁcation Criteria, the Board seeks candidates for director that possess:
(1) the highest level of integrity and ethical character, (2) strong personal and professional reputation,
(3) sound judgment, (4) ﬁnancial literacy, (5) independence, (6) signiﬁcant experience and proven
superior performance in professional endeavors, (7) an appreciation for board and team performance,
(8) the commitment to devote the time necessary, (9) skills in areas that will beneﬁt the Board, and
(10) the ability to make a long-term commitment to serve on the Board. Under its charter, the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee will also seek to have at least one independent director who
meets the deﬁnition of an audit committee ﬁnancial expert under the SEC rules.
The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee will consider director nominations made by a
shareowner or other sources (including self nominees) if these individuals meet our Director
Qualiﬁcation Criteria. If a candidate proposed by a shareowner or other source meets the criteria, the
individual will be considered on the same basis as other candidates. For consideration by the Corporate
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Governance and Nominating Committee, the submission of a candidate must be sent to the attention of
the Corporate Secretary, Room 3C-536, 600 Mountain Avenue, Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974. The
submission should be received by August 31, 2005 in order to receive adequate consideration for the
2006 annual meeting and must include sufﬁcient details to demonstrate that the potential candidate
meets the Director Qualiﬁcation Criteria.
The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee may rely on various sources to identify potential
director nominees. These include input from directors, management, others the committee feels are
reliable, and professional search ﬁrms. During ﬁscal 2004, we paid a professional search ﬁrm to help
the committee identify and evaluate potential director nominees.
In addition, our by-laws permit shareowners to nominate directors at a shareowner meeting. To make a
director nomination at a shareowner meeting, the shareowner must provide a notice along with
additional information and materials required by our by-laws to our Corporate Secretary not less than
45 days nor more than 75 days prior to the ﬁrst anniversary of the record date for the preceding year’s
annual meeting. For our annual meeting in 2006, we must receive this notice on or after October 6,
2005, and on or before November 5, 2005. The nomination must be delivered to our executive ofﬁces at
600 Mountain Avenue, Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974, Attention: Corporate Secretary. You can obtain a
copy of the full text of the by-law provisions by writing to the Corporate Secretary, 600 Mountain Avenue,
Room 3C-515, Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974. A copy of our by-laws was ﬁled with the SEC as an
exhibit to our report on Form 10-Q, ﬁled May 6, 2004, and can also be viewed on our website at
www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html.
Shareowner Communications with the Board of Directors
Shareowners may communicate directly with our Board, any Board committee or any director through
our Corporate Secretary by writing to the following address: Board of Directors, c/o Corporate Secretary,
Room 3C-536, 600 Mountain Avenue, Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974. Our Corporate Secretary will
discuss with our Lead Director or the Chairman of our Audit and Finance Committee, as appropriate, all
correspondence alleging misconduct or ﬁscal improprieties, raising issues about internal accounting
controls or other accounting or audit matters, or raising concerns about other signiﬁcant matters.
Shareowner communications requesting information that can be shared publicly may be responded to
directly by our Corporate Secretary. With respect to any other shareowner communications, the
Corporate Secretary will determine if a response is appropriate and, in that case, the company may
respond directly on behalf of the Board. The Corporate Secretary will periodically provide the Lead
Director with information about the number and types of shareowner communications received, the
number of responses sent, and the disposition, if applicable. Our policy on shareowner communications
with the Board can be viewed on our website at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html.
Employee Code of Conduct and Code of Ethics
Since our inception in 1996, we have had a code of conduct, which we refer to as our Business
Guideposts. We require all employees to adhere to the Business Guideposts in addressing legal and
ethical issues encountered in conducting their work. The Business Guideposts requires that our
employees avoid conﬂicts of interest, comply with all laws and other legal requirements, conduct
business in an honest and ethical manner, and otherwise act with integrity and in the company’s
best interest.
We also have a Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and senior ﬁnancial ofﬁcers, which covers
our CFO, Controller and all other ﬁnancial ofﬁcers and executives. This Code of Ethics supplements our
Business Guideposts and is intended to promote honest and ethical conduct, full and accurate
reporting, and compliance with laws as well as other matters. Copies of the Business Guideposts and
the Code of Ethics can be viewed on our website at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html. We
have also ﬁled a copy of the Code of Ethics with the SEC as an exhibit to our September 30, 2003
annual report on Form 10-K.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
The Audit and Finance Committee has reappointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent
public accounting ﬁrm to audit our ﬁnancial statements for the ﬁscal year ending September 30, 2005.
In making this appointment, the Audit and Finance Committee considered the performance and
independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, including whether any non-audit services performed by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are compatible with maintaining independence.
To help ensure the independence of our independent auditors, the Audit and Finance Committee
has adopted a policy and procedures that set forth the manner in which the Audit and Finance
Committee will review and approve all services to be provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
before the ﬁrm is retained. The policy and procedures can be viewed on our website at
www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html.
Pursuant to the policy and procedures, the Audit and Finance Committee pre-approves all audit
services and non-audit services to be provided to the company by its independent auditors. All fees paid
to PricewaterhouseCoopers in ﬁscal 2004 were pre-approved in accordance with this policy. Any
member of the Audit and Finance Committee has the authority to grant the required approvals, provided
that any exercise of such authority is presented at the next Audit and Finance Committee meeting.
The Audit and Finance Committee will not approve any prohibited non-audit service, as described under
the Act and SEC rules, or any non-audit service that individually or in the aggregate may impair, in the
Audit and Finance Committee’s opinion, the independence of the independent auditors.
In October 2004, the Audit and Finance Committee revised the policy and procedures to limit services
to be provided by the independent auditors to audit services, audit-related services, services under
engagements already approved, but not yet completed, and the following tax services:
(a) preparation and ﬁling of tax returns for our beneﬁt plans, trusts and the Lucent Technologies Foundation;
(b) preparation and ﬁling of tax returns for acquired companies during their initial year after acquisition;
(c) support for audits on previously ﬁled tax returns for which the independent auditors provided
preparation services; and
(d) other tax services to be provided in ﬁscal 2005 that are being transitioned to a new service provider.
Although the Audit and Finance Committee believes that other tax and certain other services performed
by our independent auditors have not impaired their independence, the Committee revised this policy to
exclude these services in the future to further assure our shareowners and other investors of our
independent auditors’ independence.
Representatives of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be present at the annual meeting. They will be
given the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so, and they will be available to respond
to appropriate questions after the meeting.
Fees Billed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
The following table summarizes fees for professional audit services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP for the audits of the ﬁnancial statements for the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, and fees
billed to the company by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for other services during ﬁscal 2004 and ﬁscal 2003:
Worldwide Fees
($ in thousands)
Fiscal
Fiscal
2004
2003

Service

Audit Fees . . . . . . .
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Tax Fees . . . . . . . .
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$ 7,654
$ 1,764
$ 9,018
$ 348
$18,784

$ 7,903
$ 1,897
$ 8,582
$ 795
$19,177

Audit Fees: These are fees for professional services rendered for the audit of our consolidated ﬁnancial
statements, services related to our 1933 and 1934 Act ﬁlings with the SEC, audits of statutory accounts
and regulatory ﬁlings.
Audit-Related Fees: These are fees for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to
the performance of the audit or review of our consolidated ﬁnancial statements. The services in this
category include audits of our employee beneﬁts plans, accounting consultation and due diligence in
connection with acquisitions or dispositions, planning efforts related to the review of our internal audit
controls over ﬁnancial reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and audits
of certain subsidiaries.
Tax Fees: These are fees for preparation and review of tax returns for international subsidiaries, ﬁlings
and related services for pension and employee beneﬁts plans, expatriate tax services, and sales and
use tax advisory and recovery services. The fees will be signiﬁcantly reduced in the future by the
revisions to our pre-approval policy described on page 11.
All Other Fees: These fees are for assistance in executing a business continuity program and in
complying with federal and state workers’ compensation self-insurance reporting requirements, and
miscellaneous other services that resulted in fees of approximately $13,000.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
We, the Audit and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors, are directors who meet the New York
Stock Exchange standards for independence and the company’s Director Independence Standards.
Each of us also meets the Securities and Exchange Commission’s requirements for audit committee
member independence. We operate under a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors.
We met with management periodically during the year to consider the adequacy of the company’s
internal controls and the objectivity of its ﬁnancial reporting. We discussed these matters with the
company’s independent auditors and with appropriate company ﬁnancial personnel and internal
auditors. We also discussed with the company’s senior management and independent auditors the
process used for certiﬁcations by the company’s chief executive ofﬁcer and chief ﬁnancial ofﬁcer, which
are required for certain of the company’s ﬁlings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We met
privately at our regularly scheduled committee meetings with both the independent auditors and the
internal auditors, as well as with the chief ﬁnancial ofﬁcer and the general counsel, each of whom has
unrestricted access to us.
Management has primary responsibility for the company’s ﬁnancial statements and the overall reporting
process, including the company’s system of internal controls. The independent auditors audited the
annual ﬁnancial statements prepared by management, expressed an opinion as to whether those
ﬁnancial statements fairly present the ﬁnancial position, results of operations and cash ﬂows of the
company in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and discussed with us any issues
they believe should be raised with us.
We reviewed with management and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the company’s independent
auditors, the company’s audited ﬁnancial statements, and met separately with both management and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to discuss and review those ﬁnancial statements and reports prior to
issuance. Management has represented, and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has conﬁrmed, to us that
the ﬁnancial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
We appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent auditors for the company after reviewing
the ﬁrm’s performance and independence from management. We received from and discussed with
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP the written disclosure and the letter required by Independence Standards
Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees). These items relate to that ﬁrm’s
independence from the company. We also discussed with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP matters required to
be discussed by the Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communication with Audit Committees) of the
Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants to the extent applicable.
We implemented a procedure to monitor auditor independence, reviewed audit and non-audit services
performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, and discussed with the auditors their independence.
Relying on the reviews and discussions referred to above, we recommended to the Board of Directors
that the company’s audited ﬁnancial statements be included in the company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the ﬁscal year ended September 30, 2004.
Robert E. Denham (Chairman)
Karl J. Krapek
Richard C. Levin
Ronald A. Williams
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PROPOSAL NO. 1 — ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Ten out of eleven members of the Board of Directors are standing for re-election for a one-year term
expiring at the 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareowners or until their successors have been elected and
qualiﬁed, or until their death, resignation or retirement.
Our Board currently has eleven directors. John A. Young turned 72 this past year and, consistent with
our age 72 retirement policy for directors, will be retiring from the Board upon the conclusion of the
annual meeting. Mr. Young has been a director of the company since 1996 and we are grateful to him
for his counsel and business advice over the years.
Pursuant to its authority in the company’s restated certiﬁcate of incorporation and by-laws, the Board
has set the number of directors at ten, effective with the conclusion of the 2005 annual meeting.
Accordingly, ten nominees for election to the Board are being recommended by the Board. These
nominees are:
Robert E. Denham
Daniel S. Goldin
Edward E. Hagenlocker
Carla A. Hills
Karl J. Krapek

Richard C. Levin
Patricia F. Russo
Henry B. Schacht
Franklin A. Thomas
Ronald A. Williams

Beginning on the next page, the principal occupation and other information are set forth regarding the
nominees. Information about the share ownership of the nominees can be found on page 18.
Vote Required and Recommendation of Board of Directors. Nominees receiving the greatest
number of votes duly cast for the election of directors will be elected. Abstentions and broker non-votes
are not counted as votes cast for purposes of electing directors.
Your Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the election of the above-named nominees
as directors.
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NOMINEES FOR TERMS EXPIRING IN 2006
Robert E. Denham, Director of Lucent since 2002.
Committees: Audit and Finance Committee (Chairman), Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee and Litigation Committee.
Partner, Munger, Tolles & Olson LLP since 1998 and from 1973–1991. Chairman and
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of Salomon Inc (1992–1997). Joined Salomon in late August
1991 as General Counsel of Salomon and its subsidiary, Salomon Brothers.
Chairman and President of the Financial Accounting Foundation. Director of
ChevronTexaco Corp.; Fomento Economico de Mexico, S.A.; U.S. Trust Corporation;
and Wesco Financial Corporation.
Age: 59

Daniel S. Goldin, Director of Lucent since 2002.
Committees: Leadership Development and Compensation Committee and Litigation
Committee.
Founder and President, The Intellisis Corp. Distinguished Fellow, the Neurosciences
Institute. Former NASA Administrator (1992–2001). Member of the National
Academy of Engineers and a Fellow of the American Institute of Aeronautics and
Astronautics. Director of CDW Corporation.
Age: 64

Edward E. Hagenlocker, Director of Lucent since 2003.
Committees: Leadership Development and Compensation Committee.
Retired Vice-Chairman, Ford Motor Company (1996–1999). Chairman, Visteon
Automotive Systems (1997–1999). Director of Air Products and Chemicals, Inc.;
American Standard Companies Inc.; AmerisourceBergen Corporation; and
OfﬁceMax Incorporated.
Age: 65
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NOMINEES FOR TERMS EXPIRING IN 2006
Carla A. Hills, Director of Lucent since 1996.
Committees: Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee (Chairman) and
Leadership Development and Compensation Committee.
Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of Hills & Company (international consultants)
since 1993. United States Trade Representative (1989–1993). Director of American
International Group, Inc.; ChevronTexaco Corp.; and Time Warner Inc.
Age: 71

Karl J. Krapek, Director of Lucent since 2003.
Committees: Audit and Finance Committee.
Retired President and COO of United Technologies Corporation (1982–2002). Director
of United Technologies Corporation (1997–2002). Director of The Connecticut Bank and
Trust Company; Delta Airlines; Prudential Financial, Inc.; and Visteon Corporation.
Age: 56

Richard C. Levin, Director of Lucent since 2003.
Committees: Audit and Finance Committee.
President, Yale University since 1993. Member of the Board of Sciences, Technology
and Economic Policy at the National Academy of Arts and Sciences. Mr. Levin also
serves as a trustee of the William and Flora Hewlett Foundation.
Age: 57

Patricia F. Russo, Director of Lucent since 2002.
Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer (February 2003–present) and President and
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer (January 2002–February 2003) of Lucent. Chairman, Avaya
Inc. (December 2000–January 2002). President and Chief Operating Ofﬁcer of
Eastman Kodak Company (April 2001–January 2002). Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of Lucent Service Provider Networks Group (1999–2000)
and Executive Vice President of Lucent, Corporate Operations (1996–1999).
Director of Schering-Plough Corporation.
Age: 52
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NOMINEES FOR TERMS EXPIRING IN 2006
Henry B. Schacht, Director of Lucent since 1996.
Chairman (October 2000-February 2003; 1996-1998) and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
(October 2000–January 2002; 1996–1997) of Lucent. Senior Advisor to Lucent
(February 2003–October 2003; 1998–1999). Chairman (1977–1995) and Chief
Executive Ofﬁcer (1973–1994) of Cummins Engine Company, Inc. Mr. Schacht is a
managing director and senior advisor of Warburg Pincus LLC. Director of Alcoa Inc.;
Johnson & Johnson; and The New York Times Co.
Age: 70

Franklin A. Thomas, Director of Lucent since 1996 and Lead Director since
October 2000.
Committees: Leadership Development and Compensation Committee (Chairman)
and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.
Consultant to the TFF Study Group since 1996 (a non-proﬁt initiative assisting
development in southern Africa). Retired President of The Ford Foundation (19791996). Chairman of the oversight board of the September 11 Fund. Director of Alcoa
Inc.; Citigroup N.A.; and PepsiCo, Inc.
Age: 70

Ronald A. Williams, Director of Lucent since 2003.
Committees: Audit and Finance Committee.
President and Director of Aetna since 2002. Executive Vice President and Chief of
Health Operations, Aetna Inc. (March 2001–May 2002). President, Blue Cross of
California (1995–2001). Group President, Large Group Division, WellPoint Health
Networks Inc., Blue Cross of California (1999–2001). Member of the Board of
Trustees of The Conference Board. Member of Dean’s Advisory Council and the
Corporate Visiting Committee at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
Age: 55
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SHARE OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS
The following table sets forth information concerning the beneﬁcial ownership of our common stock as
of October 1, 2004 for: (a) each director and nominee for director of the company, (b) the person who in
ﬁscal 2004 was the Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of the company, (c) the four other most highly compensated
executive ofﬁcers named in the Summary Compensation Table on page 42, and (d) the directors and
executive ofﬁcers as a group. Except as otherwise noted, the named individual or family members had
sole voting and investment power with respect to such securities.
Common Stock
Beneﬁcially
Owned(1)(2)

Name

Other
Common Stock
Equivalents(3)

Total

Robert E. Denham . . . .
Daniel S. Goldin . . . . .
Edward E. Hagenlocker
Carla A. Hills . . . . . . . .
Karl J. Krapek . . . . . . .
Richard C. Levin . . . . .
Patricia F. Russo (b) . .
Henry B. Schacht . . . .
Franklin A. Thomas . . .
Ronald A. Williams . . .
John A. Young . . . . . . .
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75,671
107,000
5,000
50,461
90,747
89,428
7,437,148
6,036,625
103,000
55,000
27,764

87,361
53,660
48,721
103,916
0
0
1,474,330
14,455
140,063
25,373
100,452

163,032
160,660
53,721
154,377
90,747
89,428
8,911,478
6,051,080
243,063
80,373
128,216

Frank A. D’Amelio . .
James K. Brewington
Janet G. Davidson . .
William T. O’Shea . .
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3,342,707
2,513,577
1,679,670
6,976,984

70,882
118,626
113,410
4,258

3,413,589
2,632,203
1,793,080
6,981,242
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.

(d)
Directors and Executive Ofﬁcers as a Group
(21 persons) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
30,774,635
2,514,284
33,288,919
(1) No individual director or ofﬁcer identiﬁed above beneﬁcially owns, nor do the directors and
executive ofﬁcers as a group own, 1% or more of Lucent’s outstanding common stock. The
company does not know of any person who beneﬁcially owns more than 5% of the outstanding
common stock.
(2) Includes beneﬁcial ownership of the following numbers of shares that may be acquired within
60 days of October 1, 2004, pursuant to stock options awarded under company stock plans:
Ronald A. Williams — 5,000 shares
John A. Young — 27,764 shares
Frank A. D’Amelio — 3,067,071 shares
James K. Brewington — 2,095,878 shares
Janet G. Davidson — 1,568,161 shares
William T. O’Shea — 6,202,396 shares

Robert E. Denham — 10,671 shares
Daniel S. Goldin — 67,000 shares
Edward E. Hagenlocker — 5,000 shares
Carla A. Hills — 31,139 shares
Karl J. Krapek — 5,000 shares
Richard C. Levin — 5,000 shares
Patricia F. Russo — 6,576,125 shares
Henry B. Schacht — 4,948,611 shares
Franklin A. Thomas — 101,532 shares

Directors and Executive Ofﬁcers as a Group
(21 persons) — 26,774,583 shares

(3) Includes restricted stock units and amounts held in Lucent stock accounts under the company’s
Deferred Compensation Plan. The value of these accounts depends directly on the market price
of shares.
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PROPOSAL NO. 2 — DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL TO AMEND THE RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION TO EFFECT A REVERSE STOCK SPLIT
AT ONE OF FOUR RATIOS
General
We are requesting shareowner approval to grant the Board of Directors the authority to effect a reverse
stock split at one of four ratios: 1-for-5; 1-for-10; 1-for-15; or 1-for-20. At our 2003 and 2004 annual
meetings, shareowners approved a proposal to allow the Board of Directors, in its sole discretion, to
effect a reverse stock split at any one of 4 ratios. The ratios approved by shareowners at the 2004
annual meeting were 1-for-5; 1-for-10; 1-for-20; and 1-for-30. The authority granted by shareowners to
the Board of Directors at the 2004 annual meeting expires on February 16, 2005. The Board of Directors
has not yet effected a reverse stock split at the time this proxy statement was printed because the Board
has determined that the timing has not yet been appropriate to effect the reverse stock split in a manner
that would be beneﬁcial to the long-term value of Lucent common stock with the least amount of
adverse impact on the short-term value. However, the Board of Directors still believes shareowners’
interests will be best served if the Board has the authority and ﬂexibility to effect a reverse stock split.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors has again unanimously adopted a resolution seeking shareowner
approval to amend Lucent’s Restated Certiﬁcate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of Lucent
common stock. If the reverse stock split is approved by the shareowners, the Board of Directors may
subsequently effect, in its sole discretion, a reverse stock split based upon any of the following four
ratios: 1-for-5; 1-for-10; 1-for-15; or 1-for-20. Approval of this proposal by our shareowners would give
the Board of Directors authority to implement the reverse stock split at any time prior to February 16,
2006. In addition, notwithstanding approval of this proposal by the shareowners, the Board of Directors
may, in its sole discretion, determine not to effect, and abandon, the reverse stock split without further
action by our shareowners.
Background
We have been a public company and have been a listed company on the New York Stock Exchange
since April 3, 1996. Since January 1, 2000, we have had no fewer than 3 billion shares of common stock
outstanding and currently we have approximately 4.4 billion shares outstanding. Since 2000, market
prices for stocks trading in the United States markets, particularly the telecommunications industry,
have generally declined. In order to reduce the number of shares of Lucent common stock outstanding
and thereby attempt to proportionally raise the per share price of Lucent common stock, the Board of
Directors believes that it is in the best interests of our shareowners for the Board of Directors to have
authority to implement a reverse stock split.
The Board of Directors believes that it is in the interest of our shareowners and Lucent for the Board to
have the authority to effect the reverse stock split in order to return our share price to a price level typical
of share prices of other widely owned public companies. The Board of Directors believes that the higher
share price of Lucent common stock may meet investing guidelines for certain institutional investors and
investment funds. The Board of Directors also believes that our shareowners will beneﬁt from relatively
lower trading costs for a higher priced stock. Furthermore, the Board of Directors believes we will
beneﬁt from reduced costs associated with shareowner communications.
The Board of Directors has considered on different occasions whether to effect a reverse stock split and
has determined that the proper time has not yet occurred. Initially, one of the considerations was to
avoid possible de-listing from the NYSE because our stock price was below the NYSE minimum price
of $1.00 in October 2002. With the increase in our stock price over $1.00 since November 2002 and
over $2.00 since September 2003, a reverse stock split has not been necessary to avoid having our
stock de-listed from the NYSE. Accordingly, the Board would implement a reverse stock split only when
the Board believes that it would optimize the long-term value of our common stock and would have the
least impact on the short-term value of the stock. The Board believes it can best have the opportunity to
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achieve this objective if the shareowners give the Board authority to effect a reverse stock split until
February 2006.
The Board of Directors still believes that shareowner approval of four potential exchange ratios (rather
than a single exchange ratio) provides the Board of Directors with the ﬂexibility to achieve the desired
results of the reverse stock split. If the shareowners approve this proposal, the Board of Directors would
effect a reverse stock split only upon the Board’s determination that a reverse stock split would be in the
best interests of the shareowners at that time. To effect a reverse stock split, the Board would set the
timing for such a split and select the speciﬁc ratio from among the four ratios set forth herein. No further
action on the part of shareowners will be required to either implement or abandon the reverse stock
split. If the proposal is approved by shareowners, and the Board of Directors determines to implement
any of the reverse stock split ratios, Lucent would communicate to the public, prior to the effective date
of the reverse split, additional details regarding the reverse split, including the speciﬁc ratio the Board
selects. If the Board of Directors does not implement the reverse stock split prior to February 16, 2006,
the authority granted in this proposal to implement the reverse stock split will terminate. The Board of
Directors reserves its right to elect not to proceed, and abandon, the reverse stock split if it determines,
in its sole discretion, that this proposal is no longer in the best interests of our shareowners.
The company does not anticipate the Board of Directors exercising its existing authority to effect a
reverse stock split before the 2005 annual meeting. However, should the Board of Directors effect a
reverse stock split prior to the 2005 annual meeting, we would withdraw this proposal from the agenda.
Certain Risk Factors Associated with the Reverse Stock Split
There can be no assurance that the total market capitalization of Lucent common stock (the aggregate
value of all Lucent common stock at the then market price) after the proposed reverse stock split will be
equal to or greater than the total market capitalization before the proposed reverse stock split or that the
per share market price of Lucent common stock following the reverse stock split will either equal or
exceed the current per share market price.
There can be no assurance that the market price per new share of Lucent common stock after the
reverse stock split will increase in proportion to the reduction in the number of old shares of Lucent
common stock outstanding before the reverse stock split. For example, based on the closing price on
the NYSE of Lucent common stock on October 1, 2004 of $3.16 per share, if the Board of Directors
decided to implement the reverse stock split and selects a reverse stock split ratio of one-for-ten, there
can be no assurance that the post-split market price of Lucent common stock would be $31.60 per
share or greater.
Accordingly, the total market capitalization of Lucent common stock after the proposed reverse stock
split may be lower than the total market capitalization before the proposed reverse stock split and, in the
future, the market price of Lucent common stock following the reverse stock split may not exceed or
remain higher than the market price prior to the proposed reverse stock split.
If the reverse stock split is effected, the resulting per-share stock price may not attract institutional
investors or investment funds and may not satisfy the investing guidelines of such investors.
While the Board of Directors believes that a higher stock price may help generate investor interest,
there can be no assurance that the reverse stock split will result in a per-share price that will attract
institutional investors or investment funds or that such share price will satisfy the investing guidelines of
institutional investors or investment funds.
Impact of the Proposed Reverse Stock Split if Implemented
If approved and effected, the reverse stock split will be realized simultaneously for all of Lucent common
stock and the ratio will be the same for all of Lucent common stock. The reverse stock split will affect all
of Lucent’s shareowners uniformly and will not affect any shareowner’s percentage ownership interests
in Lucent, except to the extent that the reverse stock split would otherwise result in any of Lucent’s
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shareowners owning a fractional share. As described below, shareowners otherwise entitled to
fractional shares as a result of the reverse stock split will receive cash payments in lieu of such
fractional shares. These cash payments will reduce the number of post-reverse stock split shareowners
to the extent there are presently shareowners who would otherwise receive less than one share of
Lucent common stock after the reverse stock split. In addition, the reverse stock split will not affect any
shareowner’s percentage ownership or proportionate voting power (subject to the treatment of fractional
shares). However, because the number of authorized shares of Lucent common stock will not be
reduced, the reverse stock split will increase the Board of Directors’ ability to issue authorized and
unissued shares without further shareowner action.
The principal effect of the reverse stock split will be that:
• the number of shares of Lucent common stock issued and outstanding will be reduced from
approximately 4.4 billion shares to a range of approximately 880 million to 220 million shares,
depending on the reverse stock split ratio determined by the Board of Directors;
• the number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of conversion rights by holders of
securities convertible into Lucent common stock will be reduced proportionately based upon the
reverse stock split ratio selected by the Board of Directors;
• based on the reverse stock split ratio selected by the Board of Directors, proportionate adjustments
will be made to the per-share exercise price and the number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
all outstanding options entitling the holders to purchase shares of Lucent common stock, which will
result in approximately the same aggregate amount being required to be paid for such options upon
exercise immediately preceding the reverse stock split;
• the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the
2003 Long Term Incentive Plan and the 2004 Equity Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors
will be reduced proportionately based on the reverse stock split ratio selected by the Board of
Directors; and
• The number of shares that may be issued upon the exercise of warrants to purchase our common
stock will be reduced proportionately based upon the reverse stock split ratios selected by the Board
of Directors.
In addition, the reverse stock split will increase the number of shareowners who own odd lots (less than
100 shares). Shareowners who hold odd lots may experience an increase in the cost of selling their
shares and may have greater difﬁculty in effecting sales.
Effect on Fractional Shareowners
You will not receive fractional post-reverse stock split shares in connection with the reverse stock split.
Instead, the transfer agent will aggregate all fractional shares and sell them as soon as practicable after
the effective date at the then prevailing prices on the open market, on behalf of those holders who would
otherwise be entitled to receive a fractional share. We expect that the transfer agent will conduct the
sale in an orderly fashion at a reasonable pace and that it may take several days to sell all of the
aggregated fractional shares of common stock. After completing the sale, you will receive a cash
payment from the transfer agent in an amount equal to your pro rata share of the total net proceeds of
that sale. No transaction costs will be assessed on this sale. However, the proceeds will be subject to
federal income tax. In addition, you will not be entitled to receive interest for the period of time between
the effective date of the reverse stock split and the date you receive your payment for the cashed-out
shares. The payment amount will be paid to the holder in the form of a check in accordance with the
procedures outlined below. After the reverse stock split, you will have no further interest in Lucent with
respect to your cashed-out shares. A person otherwise entitled to a fractional interest will not have any
voting, dividend or other rights except to receive payment as described above.
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NOTE: If you do not hold sufﬁcient Lucent shares to receive at least one share in the reverse stock split
and you want to continue to hold Lucent common stock after the reverse stock split, you may do so by
taking either of the following actions far enough in advance so that it is completed by the effective date:
(1) purchase a sufﬁcient number of shares of Lucent common stock (either on the open market or
through The Bank of New York’s BuyDIRECT plan) so that you hold at least an amount of shares of
Lucent common stock in your account prior to the reverse stock split that would entitle you to
receive at least one share of Lucent common stock on a post-reverse stock split basis; or
(2) if you have Lucent common stock in more than one account, consolidate your accounts so that you
hold at least an amount of shares of Lucent common stock in one account prior to the reverse stock
split that would entitle you to receive at least one share of Lucent common stock on a post-reverse
stock split basis. Shares held in registered form (that is, shares held by you in your own name in
Lucent’s stock records maintained by our transfer agent) and shares held in “street name” (that is,
shares held by you through a bank, broker or other nominee), for the same investor will be
considered held in separate accounts and will not be aggregated when effecting the reverse
stock split.
You should be aware that, under the escheat laws of the various jurisdictions where you reside, where
Lucent is domiciled and where the funds will be deposited, sums due for fractional interests that are not
timely claimed after the funds are made available may be required to be paid to the designated agent for
each such jurisdiction. Thereafter, shareowners otherwise entitled to receive such funds may have to
obtain the funds directly from the state to which they were paid.
Effect on Lucent Employees and Directors of Lucent
• If you are a Lucent employee, the number of shares reserved for issuance under Lucent’s existing
stock option plans and the employee stock purchase plan will be reduced proportionately based on
the reverse stock split ratio selected by the Board of Directors. In addition, the number of shares
issuable upon the exercise of options and the exercise price for such options will be adjusted based
on the reverse stock split ratio selected by the Board of Directors.
• If you are a current or former employee or a director of Lucent, you may own Lucent restricted stock
units or you may own Lucent common stock under the Lucent savings plans, which would all be
adjusted based on the reverse stock split ratio selected by the Board of Directors.
Effect on Registered and Beneﬁcial Shareowners
Upon a reverse stock split, we intend to treat shareowners holding Lucent common stock in “street
name,” through a bank, broker or other nominee, in the same manner as registered shareowners whose
shares are registered in their names. Banks, brokers or other nominees will be instructed to effect the
reverse stock split for their beneﬁcial holders holding Lucent common stock in “street name.” However,
these banks, brokers or other nominees may apply their own speciﬁc procedures for processing the
reverse stock split. If you hold your shares with a bank, broker or other nominee, and if you have any
questions in this regard, we encourage you to contact your nominee.
Effect on Owners of Our Convertible Securities
If you are a holder of our 7.75% Cumulative Convertible Trust Preferred Securities, 8% Redeemable
Subordinated Debentures or 2.75% Series A or Series B Convertible Senior Debentures, the number of
Lucent common shares into which each convertible security may be converted will be adjusted
proportionately based on the reverse stock split ratio determined by the Board of Directors.
Effect on Registered “Book-entry” Shareowner
Our registered shareowners may hold some or all of their shares electronically in book-entry form under
the direct registration system for securities. Certain registered shareowners also may hold shares
through The Bank of New York’s BuyDIRECT Plan. These shareowners will not have stock certiﬁcates
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evidencing their ownership of Lucent common stock. They are, however, provided with a statement
reﬂecting the number of shares registered in their accounts.
• If you hold registered shares in a book-entry form, you do not need to take any action to receive your
post-reverse stock split shares or your cash payment in lieu of any fractional share interest, if
applicable. If you are entitled to post-reverse stock split shares, a transaction statement will
automatically be sent to your address of record indicating the number of shares you hold.
• If you are entitled to a payment in lieu of any fractional share interest, a check will be mailed to you
at your registered address as soon as practicable after the effective date. By signing and cashing this
check, you will warrant that you owned the shares for which you received a cash payment. This cash
payment is subject to applicable federal and state income tax and state abandoned property laws. In
addition, you will not be entitled to receive interest for the period of time between the effective date of
the reverse stock split and the date you receive your payment.
Effect on Registered Certiﬁcated Shares
• Some of our registered shareowners hold all their shares in certiﬁcate form or a combination of
certiﬁcate and book-entry form. If any of your shares are held in certiﬁcate form, you will receive a
transmittal letter from our transfer agent as soon as practicable after the effective date of the reverse
stock split. The letter of transmittal will contain instructions on how to surrender your certiﬁcate(s)
representing your pre-reverse stock split shares to the transfer agent. Upon receipt of your stock
certiﬁcate, you will be issued the appropriate number of shares electronically in book-entry form under
the direct registration system.
• No new shares in book-entry form will be issued to you until you surrender your outstanding certiﬁcate(s),
together with the properly completed and executed letter of transmittal, to the transfer agent.
• If you are entitled to a payment in lieu of any fractional share interest, payment will be made as
described above under “Effect on Fractional Shareowners.”
At any time after receipt of your direct registration system statement, you may request a stock certiﬁcate
representing your ownership interest.
SHAREOWNERS SHOULD NOT DESTROY ANY STOCK CERTIFICATE(S) AND SHOULD NOT
SUBMIT ANY CERTIFICATE(S) UNTIL REQUESTED TO DO SO.
Authorized Shares
The reverse stock split would affect all issued and outstanding shares of Lucent common stock and
outstanding rights to acquire Lucent common stock. Upon the effectiveness of the reverse stock split,
the number of authorized shares of Lucent common stock that are not issued or outstanding would
increase due to the reduction in the number of shares of Lucent common stock issued and outstanding
based on the reverse stock split ratio selected by the Board of Directors. As of October 1, 2004, we had
10 billion shares of authorized common stock and approximately 4.4 billion shares of common stock
issued and outstanding. We will continue to have 250,000,000 authorized shares of preferred stock, all
of which are unissued at this time. Authorized but unissued shares will be available for issuance, and we
may issue such shares in the future. If we issue additional shares, the ownership interest of holders of
Lucent common stock will be diluted.
Accounting Matters
The reverse stock split will not affect the par value of Lucent common stock. As a result, as of the
effective time of the reverse stock split, the stated capital attributable to Lucent common stock on its
balance sheet will be reduced proportionately based on the reverse stock split ratio selected by the
Board of Directors, and the additional paid-in capital account will be credited with the amount by which
the stated capital is reduced. The per-share net income or loss and net book value of Lucent common
stock will be restated because there will be fewer shares of Lucent’s common stock outstanding.
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Potential Anti-Takeover Effect
The increased proportion of unissued authorized shares to issued shares could, under certain
circumstances, have an anti-takeover effect. For example, the issuance of a large block of common
stock could dilute the stock ownership of a person seeking to effect a change in the composition of the
Board of Directors or contemplating a tender offer or other transaction for the combination of Lucent with
another company. However, the reverse stock split proposal is not being proposed in response to any
effort of which we are aware to accumulate Lucent’s shares of common stock or obtain control of
Lucent, nor is it part of a plan by management to recommend to the Board and shareowners a series of
amendments to our Restated Certiﬁcate of Incorporation. Other than the proposal for the reverse stock
split, the Board of Directors does not currently contemplate recommending the adoption of any other
amendments to our Restated Certiﬁcate of Incorporation that could be construed to reduce or interfere
with the ability of third parties to take over or change the control of Lucent.
Procedure for Effecting Reverse Stock Split
If the shareowners approve the proposal to authorize the reverse stock split and the Board of Directors
decides to implement the reverse stock split at any time prior to February 16, 2006, we will promptly ﬁle
a Certiﬁcate of Amendment with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware to amend our existing
Restated Certiﬁcate of Incorporation. The reverse stock split will become effective on the date of ﬁling
the Certiﬁcate of Amendment, which is referred to as the “effective date.” Beginning on the effective
date, each certiﬁcate representing pre-reverse stock split shares will be deemed for all corporate
purposes to evidence ownership of post-reverse stock split shares. The text of the Certiﬁcate of
Amendment is set forth in Exhibit A to this proxy statement. The text of the Certiﬁcate of Amendment is
subject to modiﬁcation to include such changes as may be required by the ofﬁce of the Secretary of
State of the State of Delaware and as the Board of Directors deems necessary and advisable to effect
the reverse stock split, including the applicable ratio for the reverse stock split.
No Appraisal Rights
Under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, our shareowners are not entitled to
appraisal rights with respect to the reverse stock split, and we will not independently provide
shareowners with any such right.
Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split
The following is a summary of certain material United States federal income tax consequences of the
reverse stock split. It does not purport to be a complete discussion of all of the possible federal income
tax consequences of the reverse stock split and is included for general information only. Further, it does
not address any state, local or foreign income or other tax consequences. Also, it does not address the
tax consequences to holders that are subject to special tax rules, such as banks, insurance companies,
regulated investment companies, personal holding companies, foreign entities, nonresident alien
individuals, broker-dealers and tax-exempt entities. The discussion is based on the provisions of the
United States federal income tax law as of the date hereof, which is subject to change retroactively as
well as prospectively. This summary also assumes that the pre-reverse stock split shares were, and the
post-reverse stock split shares will be, held as a “capital asset,” as deﬁned in the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (i.e., generally, property held for investment). The tax treatment of a
shareowner may vary depending upon the particular facts and circumstances of such shareowner. Each
shareowner is urged to consult with such shareowner’s own tax advisor with respect to the tax
consequences of the reverse stock split. As used herein, the term United States holder means a
shareowner that is, for federal income tax purposes: a citizen or resident of the United States; a
corporation or other entity taxed as a corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United
States, any State of the United States or the District of Columbia; an estate the income of which is
subject to federal income tax regardless of its source; or a trust if a U.S. court is able to exercise primary
supervision over the administration of the trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to
control all substantial decisions of the trust.
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Other than the cash payments for fractional shares discussed below, no gain or loss should be
recognized by a shareowner upon such shareowner’s exchange of pre-reverse stock split shares for
post-reverse stock split shares pursuant to the reverse stock split. The aggregate tax basis of the postreverse stock split shares received in the reverse stock split (including any fraction of a post-reverse
stock split share deemed to have been received) will be the same as the shareowner’s aggregate tax
basis in the pre-reverse stock split shares exchanged therefor. In general, shareowners who receive
cash in exchange for their fractional share interests in the post-reverse stock split shares as a result of
the reverse stock split will recognize gain or loss based on their adjusted basis in the fractional share
interests redeemed. The shareowner’s holding period for the post-reverse stock split shares will include
the period during which the shareowner held the pre-reverse stock split shares surrendered in the
reverse stock split. The receipt of cash instead of a fractional share of Lucent common stock by a United
States holder of Lucent common stock will result in a taxable gain or loss to such holder for federal
income tax purposes based upon the difference between the amount of cash received by such holder
and the adjusted tax basis in the fractional shares as set forth above. The gain or loss will constitute a
capital gain or loss and will constitute long-term capital gain or loss if the holder’s holding period is
greater than one year as of the effective date.
Our view regarding the tax consequences of the reverse stock split is not binding on the Internal
Revenue Service or the courts. ACCORDINGLY, EACH SHAREOWNER SHOULD CONSULT WITH
HIS OR HER OWN TAX ADVISOR WITH RESPECT TO ALL OF THE POTENTIAL TAX
CONSEQUENCES TO HIM OR HER OF THE REVERSE STOCK SPLIT.
Vote Required and Recommendation of Board of Directors. The afﬁrmative vote of a majority of all
outstanding shares of Lucent common stock entitled to vote on this proposal will be required for
approval of this proposal. An abstention will have the effect of a vote against the proposal. If the NYSE
considers this to be a routine proposal, a nominee holding shares in street name may vote for the
proposal without voting instructions from the owner. The NYSE has considered our proposals for a
reverse stock split at the 2003 and 2004 annual meetings to be routine, and we expect that this proposal
will also be considered routine by the NYSE.
Your Board of Directors recommends a vote “FOR” the proposal to amend the Restated
Certiﬁcate of Incorporation of Lucent to effect a reverse stock split at one of the following four
ratios: 1-for-5; 1-for-10; 1-for-15; or 1-for-20.
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SHAREOWNER PROPOSALS
PROPOSAL NO. 3 — SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL REGARDING PUBLICATION
OF POLITICAL ACTION CONTRIBUTIONS
Evelyn Y. Davis, with an ofﬁce at the Watergate Ofﬁce building, 2600 Virginia Avenue N.W.,
Washington, D.C., owner of 2,000 shares, has proposed the adoption of the following resolution and
has furnished the following statement in support of her proposal:
RESOLVED: “That the shareholders recommend that the Board direct management that within ﬁve days
after approval by the shareholders of this proposal, the management shall publish in newspapers of
general circulation in the cities of New York, Washington, D.C., Detroit, Chicago, San Francisco, Los
Angeles, Dallas, Houston and Miami, and in the Wall Street Journal and U.S.A. Today, a detailed
statement of each contribution made by the Company, either directly or indirectly, within the immediately
preceding ﬁscal year, in respect of a political campaign, political party, referendum or citizens’ initiative,
or attempts to inﬂuence legislation, specifying the date and amount of each such contribution, and the
person or organization to whom the contribution was made. Subsequent to this initial disclosure, the
management shall cause like data to be included in each succeeding report to shareholders.” “And if no
such disbursements were made, to have that fact publicized in the same manner.”
REASONS: “This proposal, if adopted, would require the management to advise the shareholders how
many corporate dollars are being spent for political purposes and to specify what political causes the
management seeks to promote with those funds. It is therefore no more than a requirement that the
shareholders be given a more detailed accounting of these special purpose expenditures that they now
receive. These political contributions are made with dollars that belong to the shareholders as a group
and they are entitled to know how they are being spent.”
“If you AGREE, please mark your proxy FOR this resolution.”
COMPANY RESPONSE TO SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL
Under applicable law, we cannot make corporate contributions to federal candidates. We do make
occasional contributions to state and local candidates where permitted by law. In addition, some of our
employees, on a voluntary basis, contribute to an employee political action committee, as do employees
at many other companies. In each instance, our employee political action committee and the company
fully comply with all applicable reporting and public disclosure requirements. We do participate in
business-oriented political, trade and civic associations, which make their positions known on legislation
that is signiﬁcant to our business. The Board of Directors believes that these are important efforts that
should not be hindered by special disclosure rules which are not required by any federal, state or local
regulatory authority.
Because we are committed to complying with applicable campaign ﬁnance laws, including all reporting
requirements, we do not believe the report requested in this proposal is necessary and therefore we
recommend a vote against the proposal. Furthermore, much of the information requested by the
proponent can be obtained through existing sources. For example, all reports ﬁled with the Federal
Election Commission are available to the public. Accordingly, some shareowners who are interested in
reviewing our corporate political expenditures and the expenditures of our employee political action
committee may already have access to this information.
Vote Required and Recommendation of Board of Directors. The afﬁrmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the common shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the
shareowners proposal is required to approve the shareowner proposal, which is framed as a
“recommendation” to the Board. An abstention is treated as being present and entitled to vote on the
matter and, therefore, has the effect of a vote against the shareowner proposal. A broker non-vote is
treated as not being entitled to vote on the matter and, therefore, is not counted for purposes of
determining whether the shareowner proposal has been approved.
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Your Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST the adoption of this shareowner proposal.
Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be so voted unless shareowners otherwise
specify in their proxies.

PROPOSAL NO. 4 — SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL REGARDING
PERFORMANCE - BASED COMPENSATION AWARDS
Joanne M. Raschke, 231 Pinetuck Lane, Winston-Salem, North Carolina, who owns 5,000 shares of
the company’s common stock, proposes the adoption of the following shareowner proposal:
Resolved, that the shareholders of Lucent Technologies, Inc. request that our Board of Directors adopt
a policy whereby at least 75% of future equity compensation (e.g., stock options and restricted stock)
awarded to senior executives shall be performance-based, and the performance criteria adopted by the
Board disclosed to shareholders.
“Performance-based” equity compensation is deﬁned here as:
(a) Indexed stock options, the exercise price of which is linked to an industry index;
(b) Premium-priced stock options, the exercise price of which is above the market price on the grant
date; or
(c) Performance-vesting options or restricted stock, which vest only when the market price of the stock
exceeds a speciﬁc target for a substantial period (e.g., 120 days).
Supporting Statement
We believe that a greater reliance on performance-based equity grants is particularly warranted at
Lucent at this time. As Forbes opined, in an article headlined “Lucent Throws A Pay Party” (May 6,
2004), the compensation of Lucent’s senior executives appear to be completely disconnected from
returns to shareholders.
For example, Forbes reported that during her ﬁrst two years as CEO, Patricia Russo received
compensation valued at over $40 million (including 7.9 million standard options) — yet Lucent’s share
price dropped 40% during those two years, shedding $10 billion in market value. During the ﬁve-year
period through ﬁscal 2003, Lucent’s stock declined 92%.
In ﬁscal 2003, Lucent reported a net loss of $1.2 billion on sales of $8.5 billion. The Board’s response?
It awarded the top ﬁve senior executives 9.3 million standard stock options in 2003 — at an exercise
price equal to the market price.
The Forbes article noted that while Lucent was expected to report a net proﬁt in ﬁscal 2004, “there’s a
catch: The proﬁt is being delivered by an accounting credit from a pension fund surplus, without which
Lucent would post a net loss of several hundred million dollars.”
As long-term shareholders, we support compensation policies for senior executives that provide
challenging performance objectives that motivate executives to achieve long-term shareholder value.
We believe that Lucent is the classic case of a company that awards an unnecessarily large quantity of
standard stock options that can yield windfalls for executives who are merely lucky enough to hold them
during a bull market. Moreover, because Lucent’s Board does not seek shareholder approval for stockbased incentive plans for senior executives, the Company loses the tax deductibility of executive
compensation exceeding $1 million.
Many leading investors and experts, including Warren Buffett and Alan Greenspan, criticize standard
options as inappropriately rewarding mediocre performance. Mr. Buffett has characterized standard
stock options as “really a royalty on the passage of time” and has spoken in favor of indexed options.
In contrast, peer-indexed options reward executives for outperforming their direct competitors and
discourage re-pricing. Premium-priced options reward executives who enhance overall shareholder
value. Performance-vesting equity grants tie compensation more closely to key measures of
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shareholder value, such as share appreciation and net operating income, thereby encouraging
executives to set and meet performance targets.
Please VOTE FOR this proposal.
COMPANY RESPONSE TO SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL
We believe our current long-term incentive approach is effectively aligning participants’ interests with
those of Lucent’s shareholders, as the discussion that follows illustrates. Also, the proposal cites a set
of supporting points that the company believes are incomplete and require clariﬁcation.
We agree that compensation programs should be designed to motivate participants to create value for
Lucent’s shareowners over the long-term. However, there is no evidence that suggests the best or only
way to do this is by providing the types of equity-based grants cited in the proposal. The use of these
types of equity programs is not prevalent market practice generally, or used by our direct competitors.
As described more fully in the Leadership Development and Compensation Committee’s report
commencing on page 37, Lucent’s compensation program includes two forms of long-term incentives —
stock options and a three-year performance award. The size and frequency of grants under both
programs is based on each employee’s demonstrated level of performance over time. The value of
stock option grants is directly linked to our stock price and the value of awards paid out under the three
year performance plan is based on results against speciﬁc performance metrics which, when achieved,
will serve to enhance Lucent’s stock price over time.
Lucent’s current long-term incentive program was adopted about two years ago and was developed
based on extensive review of current and emerging best practice and in consultation with the
Committee’s independent consultant. Further, the Committee regularly reviews the competitiveness and
effectiveness of our compensation programs. Additionally, these long-term grants have been awarded to
senior executives under shareholder approved plans and are, therefore, tax deductible.
We believe stock option grants are inherently performance-based as they provide no value to a recipient
until the vesting requirements have been met and, subsequently, the trading price of the company’s
stock exceeds the price at which the options were granted. The option grants we awarded in recent
years vest ratably over a four-year period from the date of grant, and expire seven years from the date
of grant. For grants made in December 2002 and 2003 to ofﬁcers, the net shares obtained upon
exercise of the option must be held for one year before they can be sold. Therefore, for any value to be
derived from an option grant, Lucent’s performance needs to be at a level that, in comparison to the
industry and the overall stock market, continues to drive increased stock price performance and
shareowner value over a multi-year period. If the price of the stock does not exceed the grant price
before the option’s term expires, the option ends up worthless.
Since returning to Lucent as CEO in January 2002, Ms. Russo has received stock option grants
covering about 14.2 million shares. A portion of these shares were awarded to replace compensation
she forfeited upon leaving her former employer and the remainder to provide her with an incentive to
drive performance that will increase shareholder value over the long-term. Various publications have
suggested Ms. Russo has realized signiﬁcant value from these grants, such as the Forbes article
referenced in the proposal that estimated her compensation for her ﬁrst two years as CEO to be valued
at approximately $40 million. However, approximately $23 million of this $40 million is related to options
that have an exercise price of $6.26 per share, and therefore cannot be exercised at a proﬁt unless the
price of Lucent stock exceeds the $6.26 exercise price prior to their expiration. In addition, as shown on
the table on page 44, the total value of all of Ms. Russo’s stock option grants, assuming exercise, as of
September 30, 2004 was $4,375,000, of which only $1,093,750 related to vested options and the
remaining $3,281,250 related to unvested option grants. The value Ms. Russo ultimately receives from
all of her option grants will depend upon the future price of Lucent’s stock at the time she exercises the
options. Accordingly, it is premature to imply that Ms. Russo has realized compensation approximating
the levels cited in the Forbes article during her ﬁrst two years as Lucent’s CEO.
28

We believe the above demonstrates that Ms. Russo’s compensation is aligned with shareowners’
interests. Since Ms. Russo’s return to Lucent, the telecommunications industry suffered a signiﬁcant
decline across the industry that impacted Lucent and its competitors alike. Lucent’s revenues declined
from $21.3 billion in ﬁscal 2001, to $12.3 billion in ﬁscal 2002 and then to $8.5 billion in ﬁscal 2003. As
the company’s revenues declined, so did Lucent’s stock price, and as shareowners lost value, so did
Ms. Russo. Ms. Russo can recover this value only if the value of the company, and therefore the value
for shareowners, increases.
For the reasons cited above, we believe adoption of this proposal is unnecessary as our current longterm programs align employees’ interests with those of Lucent’s shareholders and have focused them
on driving the company’s performance over the long term. We recommend a vote against the proposal.
Vote Required and Recommendation of Board of Directors. The afﬁrmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the common shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the
shareowners proposal is required to approve the shareowner proposal, which is framed as a
“recommendation” to the Board. An abstention is treated as being present and entitled to vote on the
matter and, therefore, has the effect of a vote against the shareowner proposal. A broker non-vote is
treated as not being entitled to vote on the matter and, therefore, is not counted for purposes of
determining whether the shareowner proposal has been approved.
Your Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST the adoption of this shareowner proposal.
Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be so voted unless shareowners otherwise
specify in their proxies.

PROPOSAL NO. 5 — SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL TO AMEND COMPANY’S
AUDIT SERVICES PRE-APPROVAL POLICY
James E. Stickel, 8385 SE 173rd Hendricks Lane, The Villages, Florida, who owns 4,644 shares of the
company’s common stock, proposes the adoption of the following shareowner proposal:
RESOLVED, that the shareholders of Lucent Technologies request the Board of Directors and its Audit
Committee to amend the Company’s audit services pre-approval policy such that the public accounting
ﬁrm retained to audit the Company’s ﬁnancial statements will perform only “audit” and “audit-related”
work, and not perform services generating “tax fees” or “all other fees,” as categorized under
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) rules, including pension and beneﬁt plan consulting and
compliance services.
SUPPORTING STATEMENT
Auditor independence has been an issue of widespread concern since accounting scandals and
earnings management abuses wiped away billions in shareowner equity at Enron, Lucent, Cendant and
Qwest. Both Congress and the SEC have taken important steps to protect the integrity of the audit
process — but we also believe more needs to be done, at Lucent in particular.
Last May, in a ﬁnal judgment related to accounting fraud, the SEC imposed a $25 million ﬁne on the
Company, the largest ﬁne the agency had ever imposed. Last year courts approved $517 million to
plaintiffs suing Lucent for ﬁnancial improprieties, the second largest securities class action settlement
ever, according to Directorship (“Aggressive Accounting Behavior Comes with a Price,” May 2004). The
American Institute of Certiﬁed Public Accountants (AICPA) actually offered a training course entitled
“Lucent Technologies: A Study in Fraud and Earnings Management.”
Last year Lucent’s Audit Committee adopted a policy barring the Company’s auditor from performing
nine categories of non-audit services, as required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Audit Committee also
exercised its discretion to pre-approve other non-audit services, including non-U.S. income tax
compliance and pension plan consulting and compliance services.
This resolution requests that the Audit Committee go further than the law requires and separate the
audit of the Company’s books from tax- and consulting-related services. We speciﬁcally include pension
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and beneﬁt trust services because of the unusually large impact the pension trust — which manages
assets valued at more than double Lucent’s market capitalization — has on Lucent’s ﬁnances. For
example, an article on earnings management abuse in the CPA Journal notes that “Lucent manipulated
its pension reserves and signiﬁcantly inﬂated earnings by changing its accounting policies” (“Abusive
Earnings Management and Early Warning Signs,” 2002).
The dramatic impact of pension accounting credits on Lucent’s reported earnings is well documented.
For example, last March The Wall Street Journal explained “the beneﬁt plans — thanks to accounting
rules — have fed Lucent hundreds of millions of dollars of income. And through a separate accounting
maneuver, the cuts that Lucent made in the beneﬁt plans last fall will contribute hundreds of millions of
dollars more in income over future years.”
In May, Forbes reported that “[t]his year Lucent is expected to report a net proﬁt, but there’s a catch: The
proﬁt is being delivered by an accounting credit from a pension fund surplus, without which Lucent
would post a net loss of several hundred million dollars.”
We believe limiting the auditor to audit-related services would increase market conﬁdence in Lucent’s
ﬁnancial reporting.
We urge your VOTE FOR this proposal.
COMPANY RESPONSE TO SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL
The Audit and Finance Committee, which consists solely of independent directors, has the authority and
responsibility for engaging, evaluating and approving the fees of our independent auditors. In
discharging this responsibility, the committee is very focused on the independence of our external
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The committee has adopted a very comprehensive audit and
non-audit service pre-approval policy to help ensure the independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers
from management and the company.
In February 2002, prior to the passage of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley”), we
adopted a policy prohibiting the use of our independent auditors for any new consulting services. In
October 2003, our Audit and Finance Committee adopted an audit and non-audit services pre-approval
policy that required pre-approval by the committee of any services to be performed by the independent
auditors. The policy speciﬁcally prohibits the use of our independent auditors for services the auditors
are prohibited from performing under Sarbanes-Oxley and SEC rules. Our policy required that we obtain
from the Audit and Finance Committee pre-approval speciﬁcally for any services that were not audit,
audit-related, and certain tax services that our independent auditors had traditionally performed.
Sarbanes-Oxley and the SEC rules do permit the engagement of independent auditors to perform
certain types of tax services as well as certain other services.
The Audit and Finance Committee believes all of these tax and other services have not impaired and do
not impair PricewaterhouseCoopers’ independence. However, in response to concerns by investors
regarding auditor independence, the Audit and Finance Committee decided to limit the services to be
performed by our independent auditors. Effective October 1, 2004, the Audit and Finance Committee
revised the audit and non-audit services pre-approval policy to limit the services that may be performed
by our independent auditors to audit services, audit-related services, and limited tax services consisting
of preparation and ﬁling of tax returns for the company’s beneﬁt plans and trusts, the Lucent
Technologies Foundation, and acquired companies, but only during their initial year after acquisition,
and support for audits of tax returns for which the independent auditors provided preparation services.
The economic efﬁciencies present with PricewaterhouseCoopers providing these tax services and the
limited scope justiﬁes the continued use of PricewaterhouseCoopers to provide these services.
In the near-term, PricewaterhouseCoopers will also be performing other tax services, but only through
ﬁscal 2005, as we are in the process of transitioning these tax services to another service provider, a
transition we started in the early part of ﬁscal 2004. We are also permitting PricewaterhouseCoopers to
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complete engagements approved prior to October 1, 2004, but these engagements are not material in
scope or amount and should all be completed before the end of ﬁscal 2005.
The shareowner proposal cites concerns about managing earnings through pension reserves. Our
pension accounting is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and is audited by our
independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers. Furthermore, our SEC ﬁlings and annual report
contain robust disclosures about our pension accounting, including some of the more signiﬁcant
accounting estimates and assumptions that impact our pension accounting. We believe the actions
taken by the Audit and Finance Committee described above should warrant even greater comfort as to
the independence of PricewaterhouseCoopers with respect to its audit of our ﬁnancial statements,
including our pension accounting and the related estimates and assumptions.
As a result of the changes made by the Audit and Finance Committee in the pre-approval policy,
PricewaterhouseCoopers will only perform audit services, audit-related services, and very limited
tax services. Accordingly, we believe that the Audit and Finance Committee has substantially
implemented the proposal and achieved the proponent’s objective. Therefore, adoption of this proposal
is not necessary.
Vote Required and Recommendation of Board of Directors. The afﬁrmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the common shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the
shareowner proposal is required to approve the shareowner proposal, which is framed as a
“recommendation” to the Board. An abstention is treated as being present and entitled to vote on the
matter and, therefore, has the effect of a vote against the shareowner proposal. A broker non-vote is
treated as not being entitled to vote on the matter and, therefore, is not counted for purposes of
determining whether the shareowner proposal has been approved.
Your Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST the adoption of this shareowner proposal.
Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be so voted unless shareowners otherwise
specify in their proxies.

PROPOSAL NO. 6 – SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL TO REQUIRE SHAREOWNER
APPROVAL OF FUTURE GOLDEN PARACHUTES
Walter J. Ehmer, 1785 Brandon Hall Drive, Atlanta, Georgia, who owns 1,380 shares of the company’s
common stock, proposes the adoption of the following shareowner proposal:
RESOLVED, pursuant to Article VIII, Section 8.1 of the Bylaws of Lucent Technologies Inc., the
shareholders hereby amend the Bylaws to add the following Section 6.7 to Article VI:
Shareholder Approval of Certain Executive Severance Agreements — The Board of Directors shall
seek shareholder ratiﬁcation of severance agreements with senior executive ofﬁcers that provide
beneﬁts with a total present value exceeding 2.99 times the sum of the executive’s base salary plus
target bonus. “Beneﬁts” include the present value, as of the effective date, of all post-termination
payments (in cash or in kind) not earned or vested prior to termination, including any lump sum
payments, fringe beneﬁts, perquisites, consulting fees, or the accelerated vesting of equity grants. If the
Board determines it is not practicable to obtain shareholder approval in advance, the Board may seek
approval after the material terms have been agreed upon. This section shall take effect upon adoption
and apply only to agreements adopted, extended or modiﬁed after that date.
SUPPORTING STATEMENT
At last year’s Annual Meeting shareholders approved an advisory version of this proposal, with support
from 65% of shares voted. Subsequently, Lucent announced a policy agreeing to seek shareholder
approval for certain future severance agreements.
We believe the Company’s policy falls short of the standard endorsed by shareholders. First, Lucent
explicitly reserved the right to modify the policy at any time. More critically, by counting only the multiple
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of salary and bonus toward the 2.99 threshold for shareholder approval, it reﬂects only a portion of the
true cost of golden parachutes. This resolution ensures that the total cost — including perks,
“consulting” payments and the vesting of contingent equity grants — determines whether shareholders
vote on the agreement.
Lucent’s severance agreements are unjustiﬁably costly in our view. Even if there is no change in control,
CEO Russo’s severance package has a present value well in excess of $10 million. If Russo resigns
“with good reason,” or is terminated “without cause,” she is eligible for a $6 million lump sum payment
(two years salary plus target bonus), continued beneﬁt coverage, a minimum annual pension payment
of $740,000 for life, plus the immediate vesting of 550,000 restricted shares and of options on an
additional 1.22 million shares.
In the event of a change in control, Russo can resign and receive even more generous compensation
(including “gross-up payments” to offset IRS excise taxes). We are concerned the cost of golden
parachutes will reduce the value ultimately received by shareholders. Moreover, we believe golden
parachutes tend to reward the very underperformance that can precipitate a change in control and are
unnecessary given Lucent’s high levels of executive compensation.
We believe the ratiﬁcation process will provide valuable feedback. Indeed, the knowledge that
shareholders will be scrutinizing and voting on these agreements may encourage restraint and
strengthen the hand of the Board’s compensation committee.
We also believe these multi-million dollar parachutes are inappropriate at a time Lucent is cutting the
health beneﬁts of other retirees with decades of loyal service.
Please VOTE FOR this resolution.
COMPANY RESPONSE TO SHAREOWNER PROPOSAL
We acknowledge that a similar shareowner proposal received a majority of the votes cast at the
2004 annual shareowners meeting. In response to that proposal, the Leadership Development
and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors did what shareowners asked — it adopted a
policy in April 2004 that the company believes implements the proposal the shareowners approved at
the 2004 meeting. The policy requires that the company obtain shareowner approval before entering
into an employment or severance agreement with an executive ofﬁcer that provides severance beneﬁts
(as deﬁned in the policy) that exceeds 2.99 times the executive ofﬁcer’s annual salary and bonus.
Importantly, the Leadership Development and Compensation Committee retained a more restrictive
existing policy it adopted in October 2003 that generally limits the amount of severance arrangements
entered into after October 2003 for any ofﬁcer to one times salary and annual bonus. The policy
adopted by the committee in April 2004 is attached as Exhibit B to this proxy statement and can be
viewed on our website at www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html.
One concern the proponent raises is that we have the right to modify the policy. Therefore, the proposal
requests approval of an amendment to the company’s by-laws to require shareowner approval of senior
executive severance arrangements that exceed 2.99 times annual salary and bonus. It is true that the
policy can be modiﬁed. However, we believe good corporate governance requires that directors
maintain this discretion so they can exercise their ﬁduciary duties to take action in the best interest of
the company. Furthermore, the policy, including the committee’s reservation of rights to modify the
policy, is consistent with similar policies adopted at many other companies and we believe meets the
stated purpose of the shareowner proposal that received majority approval at the 2004 annual meeting.
In addition, any decision to modify the policy would be made by the Leadership Development and
Compensation Committee, a committee consisting solely of independent directors and having the
responsibility and authority to approve executive compensation. That decision would not be made by
management or by “inside” or non-independent directors.
Furthermore, our restated certiﬁcate of incorporation and by-laws provide that a majority of the Board of
Directors has the right to amend the by-laws. Accordingly, should the shareowners adopt the proposed
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by-law amendment, we believe that, under existing Delaware law, the Board would have the authority to
amend the by-law, just as the Leadership Development and Compensation Committee has the right to
amend the policies it has adopted regarding executive ofﬁcer severance.
Another concern expressed by the proponent is that large severance beneﬁts are not appropriate while
retiree beneﬁts are reduced. We believe the costs for these arrangements are necessary to attract and
retain talented leaders for our business. They are also structured consistent with comparable market
data points. Furthermore, many of the severance costs referred to above in Ms. Russo’s employment
contract were provided to compensate Ms. Russo for beneﬁts and compensation she forfeited by
leaving her prior position at Eastman Kodak to accept the position as our President and CEO in January
2002. In addition, Ms. Russo cannot unilaterally trigger her severance beneﬁts, as these become
available to her only upon speciﬁc circumstances, such as a material diminution of her duties (before or
after a change in control) or the termination of her employment by the company without cause.
We believe that, with adoption of the policy described above, there is no need for the proposed by-law
amendment.
Vote Required and Recommendation of Board of Directors. The afﬁrmative vote of a majority of all
outstanding shares of Lucent common stock entitled to vote on this proposal will be required for
approval of this proposal. An abstention or a broker non-vote will have the effect of a vote against
the proposal.
Your Board of Directors recommends a vote AGAINST the adoption of this shareowner proposal.
Proxies solicited by the Board of Directors will be so voted unless shareowners otherwise
specify in their proxies.
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SUBMISSION OF SHAREOWNER PROPOSALS
Shareowners may submit proposals on matters appropriate for shareowner action at meetings of
Lucent’s shareowners in accordance with Rule 14a-8 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. If a shareowner wants us to include such a proposal in our proxy statement for presentation at our
2006 Annual Meeting of Shareowners, the proposal must be received by our Corporate Secretary, at
600 Mountain Avenue, Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974, no later than September 6, 2005, and all
applicable requirements of Rule 14a-8 must be satisﬁed. For a shareowner to be eligible to submit a
proposal for inclusion in our proxy statement, Rule 14a-8 currently requires that (1) the shareowner
making the proposal is the record or beneﬁcial owner of at least $2,000 in market value of our common
stock, (2) the common stock is held by the shareowner for at least one year at the time the proposal is
submitted, (3) the shareowner will continue to own such stock through the date on which we hold the
annual meeting and (4) the proposal is presented at the annual meeting either by the shareowner or by
his or her representative. We are not required to include any proposal received after September 6, 2005
in our proxy materials for the 2006 annual meeting.
A shareowner may also nominate directors or have other business brought before the 2006 annual
meeting by submitting the nomination or proposal to us on or after October 6, 2005, and on or before
November 5, 2005, in accordance with our by-laws. The nomination or proposal must be delivered to
our executive ofﬁces at 600 Mountain Avenue, Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974, to the attention of our
Corporate Secretary and meet all the requirements of our by-laws.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our directors and executive
ofﬁcers to ﬁle reports of holdings and transactions in Lucent stock with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the New York Stock Exchange. Based on our records and other information, we
believe that all Section 16(a) Securities and Exchange Commission ﬁling requirements applicable to our
directors and executive ofﬁcers for ﬁscal 2004 were timely met except that James Brewington and Jose
Mejia each had one delinquent ﬁling because the Form 3 for their holdings did not include all of their
respective holdings at the time they became subject to Section 16 reporting.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPHS
The following graph provides an indicator of cumulative total shareowner returns for Lucent common
stock over Lucent’s past 5 ﬁscal years as compared with the S&P 500 Index, the S&P 500
Communications Equipment GICS Sub Industry Index and the S&P 500 Telecom Equipment Index
weighted by market value at each measurement point.
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This graph covers the period of time from September 30, 1999, through the end of ﬁscal 2004.
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Notes:
(1) Assumes $100 invested on September 30, 1999 in Lucent common stock, the S&P 500 Index, the
S&P 500 Communications Equipment GICS Sub Industry Index and the S&P 500 Telecom
Equipment Index, with the reinvestment of all dividends, including the company’s distribution to
shareowners of Avaya Inc. common stock on September 30, 2000 and Agere Systems Inc. common
stock on June 1, 2002. For the purpose of this chart, the Avaya Inc. and Agere Systems Inc.
distributions are each treated as a non-taxable cash dividend that would have been converted to
additional Lucent shares at the close of business on September 30, 2000 for Avaya Inc. and on
June 1, 2002 for Agere Systems Inc.
(2) The S&P 500 Communications Equipment GICS (Global Industry Classiﬁcation Standard) Sub
Industry Index replaced the S&P 500 Telecom Equipment Index in 2003. These two indices had
identical performances from September 30, 1999 until the S&P 500 Telecom Equipment Index was
discontinued at the end of 2002.
(3) Shareowner returns over the indicated period shown in the graph above should not be considered
indicative of future shareowner returns.
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The following graph provides an indicator of cumulative total shareowner returns for Lucent common
stock over Lucent’s past 2 ﬁscal years as compared with the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500
Communications Equipment GICS Sub Industry Index weighted by market value at each measurement
point. This period was selected because during ﬁscal 2003, the telecommunications industry started to
stabilize after several years of decline, and Lucent started to realize the beneﬁts of its extensive
restructuring that commenced in ﬁscal 2001 and continued throughout ﬁscal 2002.
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$161.45
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(1) Assumes $100 invested on September 30, 2002 in Lucent common stock, the S&P 500 Index,
the S&P 500 Communications Equipment GICS Sub Industry Index, with the reinvestment of
all dividends.
(2) Shareowner returns over the indicated period shown in the graph above should not be considered
indicative of future shareowner returns.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION BY THE LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT AND
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Our report covers the following topics:
• Role of the Leadership Development and Compensation Committee
• Executive Compensation Guiding Principles
• Components of Our Compensation Program
• Compensation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Role of the Leadership Development and Compensation Committee
Our committee has two primary responsibilities. First, we review the leadership development process
and advise the Board on executive succession planning. Second, we set the company’s compensation
principles that serve to guide the design of compensation plans and programs applicable to employees
at all levels of the organization. In discharging our role, we annually benchmark the ongoing
competitiveness of the company’s compensation programs in order to evaluate whether they are
achieving the desired goals and objectives summarized in this report. We also review the performance
of the senior leadership team and establish individual compensation levels for each member, having
considered the advice of the committee’s independent, outside consultant in determining whether
the amounts and types of compensation the company pays its senior leaders are appropriate. The
committee also reviews input from other outside consultants and legal advisors from time to time. The
committee is composed entirely of independent, non-employee members of the Board of Directors. No
former employees of the company serve on the committee.
Executive Compensation Guiding Principles
The goal of the company’s compensation program is to attract, motivate and retain the highly talented
individuals Lucent needs to design and deliver innovative products, services and solutions to its
customers. As such, the following principles guide the design and administration of the company’s
compensation program:
• Compensation is related to performance
We believe that an employee’s compensation should be tied not just to how the individual employee
performs, but also to how well both the employee’s team and the company perform against both
ﬁnancial and non-ﬁnancial goals and objectives. When the company’s performance is better than the
objectives set for the performance period, employees should be paid more, and when the company’s
performance does not meet one or more of the key objectives, any incentive award payment is at the
committee’s discretion.
• Incentive compensation is a greater part of total compensation for more senior positions
The proportion of an employee’s total compensation that varies with individual, team and company
performance objectives should increase as the scope and level of the individual’s business
responsibilities increase. For example, under the total compensation structure established for the
Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer (“CEO”), 90% is at risk and payable based on the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. The portion of total compensation that could be earned by all
other ofﬁcers of the company that is at risk and payable based on annual and long-term performance
goals ranges from 80% to 65%.
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• Incentive compensation balances short- and long-term performance
Through the design of the company’s compensation program, we look to balance the focus of all
employees on achieving strong short-term, or annual, results in a manner that will ensure the
company’s long-term viability and success. Therefore, to reinforce the importance of balancing these
perspectives, the company’s employees are regularly provided with both annual and long-term
incentives. Participation in the long-term incentive programs increases at higher levels of responsibility
as employees in these leadership roles have the greatest inﬂuence on the company’s strategic direction
and results over time.
• Lucent employees are provided with opportunities to own Lucent stock
The company provides employees at all levels with various ways to become shareowners. Over time,
the company has made stock option grants to broad segments of employees and, through the current
stock option program, provides for discretionary stock option grants to employees worldwide. In
addition, the company offers other programs that are intended to facilitate stock ownership among
employees. These programs include a stock purchase plan that enables employees globally to
purchase Lucent stock at a discount through payroll deductions, and 401(k) savings plans that allow
U.S. employees to invest, on a voluntary basis, in company stock. The company’s goal in providing
these opportunities is to align the interests of each employee with the interests of Lucent’s shareowners.
Ofﬁcers of the company (approximately the top 30 leaders) have stock ownership guidelines which are
discussed in further detail on page 40.
• Compensation levels are competitive
We review compensation survey data from several independent sources to ensure that Lucent’s total
compensation program is competitive. The survey data used covers companies with whom the
company competes for executive talent. We target total executive compensation, reﬂecting the
individual’s maturity and expertise in the role, to deliver pay levels at or above the median of a
comparison group of technology and other select large, global, public companies when the company
achieves or exceeds a set of aggressive and challenging goals and objectives. This comparison group
is used because the company’s competitors for executive talent include companies beyond Lucent’s
direct industry competitors since Lucent generally recruits individuals with skills and experiences from a
varied set of backgrounds. The ﬁrms Lucent competes with in the marketplace are included in the
indices used to compare shareowner returns (see Performance Graphs, page 35).
• We seek to maximize the tax deductibility of compensation
Our goal is to have most of the compensation paid to the company’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Ofﬁcer and four other most highly compensated executive ofﬁcers qualify as performance based and
deductible for federal income tax purposes under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. The
company’s compensation plans are structured so that most amounts paid under those plans will be fully
deductible. However, some of the compensation that the company pays cannot be deducted. Under the
Code, the compensation paid to executive ofﬁcers that cannot be deducted includes salary, the value of
perquisites and restricted stock unit awards that do not include additional performance measures to the
extent that the value of these compensation components exceeds $1 million. Based on the complexity
of Lucent’s business, the rapidly changing nature of the industry, as well as the continued competitive
market for outstanding leadership talent, we believe it is appropriate and competitive to provide that
compensation, even though it is not fully tax-deductible.
Components of Our Compensation Program
The three primary components of the company’s executive compensation program are: Base Salary,
Annual Incentives and Long Term Incentives.
• Base Salary
Base salaries for all employees, including those in senior leadership roles, are set at levels that are
competitive with similar positions at other comparable companies. While the company conducts surveys
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annually and typically provides an annual increase budget, salaries for those at more senior levels are
generally adjusted less frequently. Adjustments at the senior leadership level are made to recognize
signiﬁcant expansion of an individual’s role, outstanding individual performance, or if the surveys show
a signiﬁcant deviation versus market.
• Annual Incentives
We design the annual component of incentive compensation to align pay with the annual performance
of the company. At the start of each ﬁscal year, we establish the key performance measures we believe
require the special focus of our leadership, as well as employees generally, to move the business
forward and create value for our shareowners. We then deﬁne a funding range around these key
measures that will determine whether, and at what level, annual incentive funding will be available.
When funding is available, the payment of awards to eligible employees is based on their individual
performance, as well as that of the overall Lucent team. We evaluate each senior leader’s individual
performance at the end of the year, including the leader’s results against his or her objectives. These
objectives include ﬁnancial targets and other important goals such as customer satisfaction, employee
engagement, operational performance and shareowner value creation. In addition, we assess each
leader in terms of leadership and managerial ability, business knowledge, execution of Lucent’s
business plan and overall business strategy, and adherence to our values.
In 2004, the basis for annual incentive funding was the achievement of a range of operating income
objectives. For each of the last three years, we have set higher operating income goals and the
company achieved higher operating income performance than the previous year. Lucent’s 2004 results
were at the high end of the operating income performance range established at the beginning of the
year. The company also achieved full year proﬁtability for the ﬁrst time in four years and far exceeded its
business plan on several key ﬁnancial dimensions, such as revenue, gross margin and cash ﬂow from
operations. We acknowledged the hard work and strong performance of Lucent employees that
produced these results by setting incentive award funding well above target levels. Importantly, this
strong performance followed four difﬁcult years during which annual incentive funding averaged less
than 40% of target on an annual basis and, for those in more senior roles, included three years of no
annual incentive award funding.
• Long Term Incentives
The long-term incentive component of the company’s executive total compensation program is provided
in two forms, stock option grants and a three-year performance award. We generally make grants of
stock options to eligible employees, including senior leaders, once a year, typically in December. These
annual grants have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of a share of Lucent stock on the
date that we grant the options. The option grants generally vest within four years and expire seven
years from the date of the grant. Target grant guidelines are developed based on benchmarking of
market compensation and on the company’s own internal compensation philosophy and the mix of stock
options and other long-term incentives. Overall, approximately half of Lucent’s ofﬁcers’ long-term
compensation is provided in the form of stock options, and half in the form of three-year performance
awards. Actual grants awarded are based on an assessment of the individual’s performance over the
course of the prior year, as well as an assessment of the individual’s potential for future contributions
and achievements.
In addition to stock options, employees in key leadership positions (approximately 1,100 employees)
also participate in a performance award program under which they may earn a cash payment for the
annual achievement of a performance objective(s) over a three-year period. This plan focuses the
leadership team on driving results critical to the continued strengthening of business performance over
time. For 2004, the basis for funding the three-year performance award was the same range of
operating income objectives used to determine funding under the company’s annual incentive plan. The
company’s strong performance for 2004 resulted in award funding well above target levels.
The plan was modiﬁed for the company’s ofﬁcers effective with the three-year performance cycle
beginning in ﬁscal 2005 to provide payment of earned awards in restricted stock units rather than in
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cash. The restricted stock units will have a one-year vesting period, and then ofﬁcers will be required to
hold the net shares they receive upon vesting after taxes for an additional year. This change was
introduced to provide ofﬁcers with a greater personal stake in the long-term success of the business by
ensuring that half of their equity compensation is tied to performance measures in addition to stock
price, thereby, increasing the alignment of their interests with those of Lucent’s shareowners. Because
restricted stock unit awards granted under this program are based on the achievement of corporate
performance objectives, they are treated as deductible for tax purposes under Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code.
The Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer has elected to convert her 2004 awards under the 2003 to
2005 and 2004 to 2006 performance cycles and her potential 2005 award under the 2004 to 2006
performance cycle from payment in cash to payment in the form of restricted stock units. This is
described in further detail in the section “Compensation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer.”
• Stock Ownership Guidelines
For any stock option grants awarded from December 2002 through the end of ﬁscal 2004, ofﬁcers are
required to retain shares of Lucent stock for one year following the exercise of an option grant
equivalent to 100% of the net gain on the stock option exercise. This requirement will not apply to any
stock options granted in ﬁscal 2005. Beginning in ﬁscal 2005 ofﬁcers are required to retain for one year
the net shares resulting from the vesting of restricted stock units awarded through the three-year
performance award, as described above.
Compensation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
Fiscal 2004 was a year of outstanding progress and strong accomplishments across a number of
critical fundamentals, building a strong foundation for Lucent’s continued success. Under Ms. Russo’s
leadership, Lucent achieved full year proﬁtability for ﬁscal 2004, the ﬁrst time in four years, and far
exceeded its business plan on several key dimensions. Year over year revenue improved 7 percent,
gross margin improved 11 percentage points, cash ﬂow from operating activities improved by more than
$1 billion, the company far exceeded its operating income target, the company’s market value grew by
55%, and credit ratings were upgraded. Through Ms. Russo’s leadership, Lucent is positioned to be the
industry’s thought leader in next-generation convergence, with the company growing or maintaining
share during 2004 in a number of key product segments that should enable further growth and
expansion at or above the overall market rate over the next few years. In addition, Lucent improved
customer satisfaction results for the year, achieved increased employee engagement results in several
key areas, and strengthened the leadership team through strategic hiring and various management
development initiatives.
• 2004 Pay Actions
Ms. Russo is paid an annual base salary of $1,200,000. This is the same rate that has been in effect
since the time of her appointment as President and CEO of Lucent on January 6, 2002 and has not
been increased despite her subsequent appointment as Chairman and CEO on February 19, 2003 and
her absorption of a signiﬁcant portion of the duties held by the company’s former Chief Operating
Ofﬁcer. Ms. Russo is eligible for annual incentive awards at a target equal to 150% of her base salary
if the targeted performance goals established for the relevant year are met. Based on Lucent’s 2004
results versus objectives, Ms. Russo received an annual incentive award of $2,950,000 in recognition of
the company’s performance and her role in driving those outstanding results as discussed above.
Ms. Russo received an option to purchase 2,500,000 shares of company stock on December 1, 2003,
at an exercise price of $3.21 a share, the fair market value (average of the high and low trading prices
reported on the NYSE) of Lucent’s stock on that day. Like the option grants provided to other
employees, her options will vest over four years and have a seven-year term. Based on ﬁscal 2004
results against objectives established at the beginning of the year, Ms. Russo has earned $2,400,000
against the second year of her $4,000,000 2003–2005 long-term target award opportunity and
$2,400,000 against the ﬁrst year of her $4,000,000 2004 to 2006 long-term target award opportunity.
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These amounts have been awarded to Ms. Russo in the form of restricted stock units, which will vest
50% one year from the grant date and 50% two years from the grant date, as shown in the “Restricted
Stock Awards” column of the Summary Compensation Table on page 42 and more fully described on
page 45 under the caption “Three-Year Performance Award Program.” These grants were made
because, as described above in the section “Long Term Incentives,” Ms. Russo voluntarily elected to
receive payment in the form of restricted stock units rather than in the form of cash, for amounts earned
for ﬁscal 2004 performance. Ms. Russo has also elected to receive payment in restricted stock units for
amounts earned for ﬁscal 2005 performance, if any, for the ﬁscal 2004 to 2006 performance cycle.
The Committee and the full Board are proud of Lucent’s performance during 2004 and believe that the
results achieved are due to the caliber and motivation of all employees and the focus provided by
Lucent’s senior leaders. The company’s ability to grow and build market share in a highly competitive
environment will continue to rely upon Lucent’s ability to attract and retain world-class talent. We
believe, therefore, our compensation philosophy and programs have been and remain a key enabler to
ensuring the company’s continued positive momentum.
Franklin A. Thomas (Chairman)
Daniel S. Goldin
Edward E. Hagenlocker
Carla A. Hills
John A. Young

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
The following table sets forth certain information regarding the compensation earned by or awarded to
each individual who served as our CEO during ﬁscal 2004 and our four other most highly compensated
executive ofﬁcers at the end of 2004 (the “Named Executive Ofﬁcers”) in combined salary and bonus
earned in 2004, as well as amounts earned by or awarded to such individuals in their capacities as
executive ofﬁcers, if any, during 2003 and 2002. The “Bonus” column, as described in detail below and
required by SEC rules, combines where applicable the annual incentive award for ﬁscal 2004 and 2003
with the corresponding years of the 2004–2006 and 2003–2005 performance periods of the long-term
incentive award program. As noted, these amounts are described more fully in the footnotes.
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Summary Compensation Table
Long Term
Compensation Awards

Annual Compensation

Name and
Principal Position

Restricted
Stock
Award(s)
(4)($)

Securities
Underlying
Options
(#)

All Other
Compensation
(5)($)

Year

Salary
(1)($)

2004

1,200,000

2,950,000(a) 64,829

4,800,000

2,500,000

22,444

2003

1,200,000

2,000,000(a) 35,949
1,245,333(c)
3,245,333(d)

—

2,500,000

5,260

2002

887,692

1,800,000

528,607

11,005,000

5,369,963

54,596

2004

662,500

1,500,000(a)
2,700,000(b)
4,200,000(d)

2,535

—

1,000,000

14,834

2003

600,000

841,000(a) 53,471
622,667(c)
1,463,667(d)

—

1,750,000

1,505,260

2002

550,000

136,584

—

—

1,510,846

James K. Brewington
President, Developing
Markets (and President,
Mobility Solutions, through
March 2, 2004)

2004

550,000

960,000(a)
2,100,000(b)
3,060,000(d)

—

—

650,000

41,527

2003

550,000

560,000(a) 22,312
544,833(c)
1,104,833(d)

—

2,383,441

755,260

Janet G. Davidson
President, Integrated
Network Solutions

2004

550,000

960,000(a)
2,100,000(b)
3,060,000(d)

—

—

650,000

9,634

2003

550,000

616,000(a)
544,833(c)
1,160,833(d)

1,097

—

1,955,862

1,255,260

2004

700,000

960,000(a)
1,902,000(b)
2,862,000(d)

—

—

700,000

23,194

2003

700,000

745,000(a)
493,463(c)
1,238,463(d)

708

—

700,000

5,260

2002

700,000

73,585

3,680,000

567,050

3,089,058

Patricia F. Russo
Chairman and Chief
Executive Ofﬁcer

Frank A. D’Amelio
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

William T. O’Shea
President, Bell Labs and
Executive Vice President,
Corporate Strategy and
Business Development

Bonus
(2)($)

Other
Annual
Compensation
(3)($)

—

—

Items (a) through (d) in this summary compensation table are explained in footnote 2 on the following
page.
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(1) Fiscal 2004 salary of Mr. D’Amelio reflects an increase that was awarded in 2004 to recognize his
expanded role over certain administrative operations.
(2) The bonus column for fiscal 2003 and 2004 is comprised of two components shown in separate
rows, where applicable, for each Named Executive Officer. The first component is the annual
incentive award payable in December of each respective year and is designated as (a). The second
component is the portion of the three-year performance awards, covering the fiscal 2003 through
fiscal 2005 and the fiscal 2004 through 2006 performance periods, that have been earned based on
the company’s fiscal 2003 and 2004 results, respectively. The total award for the fiscal 2004 portion
of the fiscal 2003 through 2005 and the fiscal 2004 through 2006 performance periods is designated
as (b). The award for the fiscal 2003 portion of the fiscal 2003 through 2005 performance period is
designated as (c). The total of all the bonus components awarded in each respective fiscal year is
designated as (d).
The three-year performance award program is discussed in further detail in the Report on Executive
Compensation, under the subheading “Components of Our Compensation Program — Long Term
Incentives.” This award is reported in the Bonus column of the Summary Compensation Table as
required by SEC rules, but is considered by the company and participants as a component of the
company’s long-term incentive program, as disclosed in the company’s 2003, 2004, and current
proxy statements. These portions of the three-year performance awards, as well as any portion that
may be earned based on the company’s fiscal 2005 and 2006 results, will not be paid until the
conclusion of each performance period (after September 30, 2005 for the fiscal 2003 through 2005
performance period, and after September 30, 2006 for the fiscal 2004 through 2006 performance
period). This award is not included in determining benefits under any company programs or plans.
The entire award is forfeited if the Named Executive Officer terminates employment on or before the
end of each respective performance period, except in the case of retirement, death, or disability.
(3) Includes (a) tax reimbursement payments and (b) certain fringe benefits. In fiscal 2004, Ms. Russo
received car allowance payments totaling $16,800, personal use of the company plane of $16,919,
a financial counseling allowance of $15,000 and tax reimbursement for certain fringe benefits in the
amount of $13,956. Mr. D’Amelio received tax reimbursement for certain fringe benefits in the
amount of $2,535.
(4) As described in the section “Compensation of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” in the
Report on Executive Compensation, Ms. Russo elected to receive the fiscal 2004 total earned value
of $4,800,000 under her three-year long-term performance award target opportunity in restricted
stock units. Based on the stock price of $3.49 on the grant date of October 15, 2004, 1,375,358
restricted stock units were awarded, vesting 50% in one year and 50% in two years.
In addition, as of September 30, 2004, the end of our most recent fiscal year, the following is the
aggregate number of shares and market value, based on the closing price of Lucent common stock
on the New York Stock Exchange on September 30, 2004, of all restricted stock units held by each
Named Executive Officer on such date: 1,474,330 shares valued at $4,673,626 for Ms. Russo (not
including the restricted stock units awarded to her on October 15, 2004); 70,882 shares valued at
$224,696 for Mr. D’Amelio; 113,410 shares valued at $359,510 for Mr. Brewington; and 113,410
shares valued at $359,510 for Ms. Davidson.
(5) The amounts shown for fiscal 2004 include company contributions of $9,634 to the savings plan for
each Named Executive Officer provided under the same terms and conditions that apply to U.S.
employees generally. For the Named Executive Officers who have a term life insurance policy, the
premium payments made by the company, which have been imputed to their income without a tax
reimbursement payment, are also reported in this column ($12,810 for Ms. Russo; $5,200 for
Mr. D’Amelio; $31,893 for Mr. Brewington; and $13,560 for Mr. O’Shea). The amounts shown in this
column also include cash retention payments that were approved in fiscal 2001.
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The following table sets forth certain information with respect to stock option grants made to the Named
Executive Ofﬁcers during 2004 and/or related to 2004 performance under the Lucent Technologies Inc.
2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year
Individual Grants(1)
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Options
Granted
(#)

Name

Patricia F. Russo . . .
Frank A. D’Amelio . .
James K. Brewington
Janet G. Davidson . .
William T. O’Shea . .

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

% of Total
Options
Granted to
Employees
in Fiscal
Year

2,500,000
1,000,000
650,000
650,000
700,000

4.86%
1.95%
1.26%
1.26%
1.36%

Exercise
Price
($/Sh)

Expiration
Date

Grant
Date
Present
Value
($) (2)

$3.21
$3.21
$3.21
$3.21
$3.21

11/30/2010
11/30/2010
11/30/2010
11/30/2010
11/30/2010

$4,577,500
$1,831,000
$1,190,150
$1,190,150
$1,281,700

(1) In accordance with SEC rules, we have used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the
grant date present value of the options set forth in this table. Our use of this model should not be
construed as an endorsement of its accuracy at valuing options. All stock option valuation models,
including the Black-Scholes model, require a prediction about the future movement of the stock
price. The real value of the options in this table depends upon the actual changes in the market
price of Lucent’s common stock during the applicable period.
(2) This option vests within 4 years from the grant date. We made the following assumptions when
calculating the grant date present value: the option will be exercised after 3 years, volatility of 90.58%,
annual dividend yield of 0% and an interest rate of 2.63%. These amounts are provided as estimates of
future opportunity. The ultimate value each ofﬁcer realizes will depend on a variety of factors, including
Lucent’s stock price, their continued employment and the timing of their exercise of options.
The following table sets forth information regarding options held by the Named Executive Ofﬁcers at
September 30, 2004.
Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Values

Name

Shares
Acquired on
Exercise
Value Realized
(#)
($)

Value of
Number of
Unexercised
Securities Underlying
In-the-Money
Unexercised Options Options at Fiscal
at Fiscal Year End (#) Year End ($)(1)
Exercisable/
Unexercisable

Exercisable/
Unexercisable

Patricia F. Russo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

—

6,513,120/
7,665,779

$1,093,750/
$3,281,250

Frank A. D’Amelio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

—

3,058,459/
2,438,414

$765,625/
$2,296,875

James K. Brewington . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

—

2,009,190/
1,830,877

$1,730,064/
$1,816,919

Janet G. Davidson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

—

1,306,989/
1,659,845

$1,373,464/
$1,579,185

William T. O’Shea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

—

—

6,202,396/
$306,250/
1,225,000
$918,750
(1) These values are calculated based upon the difference between the closing price of Lucent common
stock on the New York Stock Exchange on September 30, 2004 and the exercise price of the options.
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Three-Year Performance Award Program
This table illustrates the target cash awards under the three-year performance award program for the
Named Executive Ofﬁcers. These awards are earned over the three-year performance period based on
the achievement of speciﬁc ﬁnancial targets or other performance objectives, as established by the
Leadership Development and Compensation Committee at the beginning of each ﬁscal year of the
three-year award period. The amount of the award that may be earned can range from 0% to 200% of
the total target award opportunity. Except as noted below for Ms. Russo, the total award earned (if any)
is paid in cash, provided participants continue to be actively employed by the Company or meet certain
other eligibility requirements. For the portion earned in 2004 for both three-year performance periods,
and the portion that may potentially be earned in 2005 for the 2004 to 2006 performance period,
Ms. Russo elected to receive restricted stock units; she received these restricted stock units for the
2004 portion in October 2004. These restricted stock units vest in the October immediately following the
completion of the performance period. The amounts earned for 2003 and 2004 are reﬂected below and
are included in the amounts set forth in the Bonus or Restricted Stock column of the Summary
Compensation Table.

Performance
Period

Total Target
Three-Year
Award
Opportunity

Patricia F. Russo . . . . . .

2004–2006
2003–2005

$4,000,000
$4,000,000

N/A $2,400,000 $2,400,000
$1,245,333 $2,400,000 $3,645,333

Frank A. D’Amelio . . . . .

2004–2006
2003–2005

$2,500,000
$2,000,000

N/A $1,500,000 $1,500,000 December 2006
$ 622,667 $1,200,000 $1,822,667 December 2005

James K. Brewington . . .

2004–2006
2003–2005

$1,750,000
$1,750,000

N/A $1,050,000 $1,050,000 December 2006
$ 544,833 $1,050,000 $1,594,833 December 2005

Janet G. Davidson . . . . .

2004–2006
2003–2005

$1,750,000
$1,750,000

N/A $1,050,000 $1,050,000 December 2006
$ 544,833 $1,050,000 $1,594,833 December 2005

William T. O’Shea . . . . . .

2004–2006
2003–2005

$1,585,000
$1,585,000

N/A $ 951,000 $ 951,000 December 2006
$ 493,463 $ 951,000 $1,444,463 December 2005

Name

Portion
Earned in
2003

Portion
Earned in
2004

Total
Earned to
Date

Payable

*
*

* Ms. Russo elected to receive restricted stock units for these awards. These restricted stock
units will vest in the October immediately following the completion of the respective three-year
performance periods.
Pension Plans
We have a non-contributory pension plan, the Lucent Retirement Income Plan, which covers most
management employees, including its executive ofﬁcers. Two programs are available under this plan:
the Service Based Program and the Account Balance Program.
The Service Based Program generally covers most management employees hired prior to January 1,
1999. Pensions provided under this program are computed on an adjusted career average pay basis. A
participant’s adjusted career average pay is equal to 1.4% of the sum of the individual’s (a) average
annual pay for the ﬁve years ended December 31, 1998 (excluding the annual incentive award paid in
December 1997) times the number of years of service prior to January 1, 1999, (b) pay subsequent to
December 31, 1998, and (c) annual incentive award paid in December 1997. Average annual pay used
in the Service Based Program includes base salary and annual incentive awards.
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The Account Balance Program generally covers management employees hired on or after January 1,
1999. Under this program, the company establishes an account for each participating employee and
makes annual contributions to that account based on the employee’s age, salary and annual incentive
award, in accordance with the following schedule:
Contributions
as a percent
of salary and
annual incentive award

Age

less than 30 . . . .
30 – less than 35
35 – less than 40
40 – less than 45
45 – less than 50
50 – less than 55
55+ . . . . . . . . . .

.
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3.00%
3.75%
4.50%
5.50%
6.75%
8.25%
10.00%

In addition, interest is credited on the last day of the year.
Federal laws place limitations on compensation amounts that may be included under the pension plan.
In 2004, up to $205,000 in eligible base salary and annual incentive award could be included in the
calculation under this plan. Pension beneﬁts applicable to compensation amounts that are within federal
limitations are funded by a pension trust that is separate from the general assets of the company.
Pension beneﬁts applicable to compensation that exceed federal limitations are paid under the
company’s supplemental pension plan, which is described later in this section, and are funded from the
company’s general assets.
The normal retirement age under this plan is 65, however, employees who are at least age 50 with at
least 15 years of service can retire with reduced beneﬁts under the Service Based Program. If an
employee’s age (which must be at least 50) plus service, when added together, is equal to or greater
than 75 years, the employee may retire with unreduced pension beneﬁts. A reduction in pension
beneﬁts equal to 3% is made for each year age plus service is less than 75. Once vested, normally after
ﬁve years of service, an employee participating in the Account Balance Program is entitled to those
vested amounts when he or she leaves the company.
Compensation and beneﬁt amounts that exceed the applicable federal limitations are paid under the
company’s supplemental pension plan, the Lucent Supplemental Pension Plan. This plan is a
noncontributory plan and has the same two programs and uses the same adjusted career average pay
formula and eligibility rules as the Lucent Retirement Income Plan. The company pays all beneﬁts under
this plan from its general assets.
The supplemental pension plan also provides ofﬁcers with minimum pensions. Eligible retired ofﬁcers
and surviving spouses may receive an annual minimum pension equal to 15% of the sum of ﬁnal base
salary plus annual incentive awards. This minimum pension will be offset by pensions under the
management and supplemental pension plans. We have eliminated this minimum pension for persons
hired, rehired, or promoted to an ofﬁcer position after October 18, 2001.
The estimated total annual pension payable to Ms. Russo, Mr. D’Amelio, Mr. Brewington, Ms. Davidson,
and Mr. O’Shea, if they continue in their current positions and retire at age 65, is $984,010; $649,511;
$406,824; $485,496; and $640,274; respectively. These amounts assume these individuals select a
straight life annuity, which provides no ongoing pension beneﬁt to a surviving spouse following the death
of the retired employee. Other optional forms of payment may be selected that do provide continuing
survivor beneﬁts and that subject the pension amount to a corresponding actuarial reduction. Ms. Russo
is eligible for a special pension arrangement under the terms of her employment agreement. This is
detailed below in the section entitled “Executive Agreements.”
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Certain of our non-qualiﬁed executive beneﬁt plans will be supported by a beneﬁts protection grantor
trust, the assets of which are subject to the claims of the company’s creditors. In the event of a Change
in Control or Potential Change in Control of the company (as such terms are deﬁned in the applicable
plans), certain additional funds might be required to be contributed to such trust to support beneﬁts
under such plans.
Executive Agreements
Ms. Patricia F. Russo. Upon her appointment as President & CEO in January 2002, we entered into an
agreement with Ms. Russo that set forth our understanding with her on a number of subjects. The
agreement provides that we will pay Ms. Russo a salary that will be no less than $1,200,000 per year.
She is also eligible for annual incentive awards at a target equal to 150% of her base salary if the
performance goals established for the relevant year are met. The annual incentive award, restricted
stock units and stock options awarded to Ms. Russo for 2002 were pursuant to this agreement.
To address a forfeited pension opportunity from her prior employer, the agreement provides a minimum
annual pension of $740,000, provided Ms. Russo remains employed with Lucent for ﬁve years. The
difference, if any, between this amount and the pension amount Ms. Russo receives under the terms of
the company’s standard pension plan is considered the “Incremental Pension.” If, at the time of
Ms. Russo’s retirement, her annual pension beneﬁt under Lucent’s standard pension plan exceeds
$740,000, no Incremental Pension payments will be made.
The agreement also provide Ms. Russo with severance beneﬁts that would be payable to her in the
event Lucent terminates her employment for any reason other than for cause or if she chooses to leave
the company for Good Reason. “Good Reason” means there has been a material diminution in her
salary, target annual incentive award or job responsibilities, a change in reporting structure so that
Ms. Russo no longer reports to the Board of Directors, the Board’s removal of Ms. Russo as Chairman
and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer, or a failure by the company to have a successor to all or substantially all its
assets and liabilities assume the company’s obligations under the agreement. If any of these events
occur, Ms. Russo will be entitled to the following, regardless of when the event occurs:
• partial to full vesting of portions of the stock option and restricted stock unit awards Ms. Russo
received at the time of her hiring, and such options will remain exercisable until the end of their
originally scheduled terms;
• eligibility for beneﬁts under the Ofﬁcer Severance Policy; and
• a pro rata portion of the Incremental Pension.
To receive any of these severance beneﬁts, Ms. Russo would have to sign a release and an agreement
not to sue the company.
Other terms of Ms. Russo’s agreement have been previously disclosed.
Other Arrangements
We recognized at the beginning of ﬁscal 2001 that it would take signiﬁcant commitment, dedication, and
effort to work through a difﬁcult time for Lucent with focus and speed. We knew that it was important to
have the right leadership with the knowledge and capabilities required to execute our turnaround with a
sense of urgency. To ensure that highly qualiﬁed key members of management would stay to see this
work through despite considerable personal uncertainty, we developed (1) severance protection
arrangements and (2) retention payments for selected ofﬁcers.
As to severance protection, the executive ofﬁcers who are eligible for the severance coverage are
provided two years of base salary and target annual incentive awards if their employment is terminated
by the company for reasons other than cause. During this two-year period, they will also continue to
receive beneﬁt coverage and equity vesting. Such coverage has been provided to Ms. Russo and to
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Mr. D’Amelio, Mr. Brewington, Ms. Davidson, and Mr. O’Shea, among others. As to retention payments,
please refer to footnote 5 of the Summary Compensation Table.
The Leadership Development and Compensation Committee amended the severance policy in October
2003 for new ofﬁcers to reduce the coverage to one times salary and annual incentive awards. In April
2004, the committee adopted a policy that requires shareowner approval for any severance
arrangement for an executive ofﬁcer that exceeds 2.99 times salary and bonus. This April 2004 policy
and other important documents regarding our corporate governance can be viewed on our website at
www.lucent.com/investor/governance.html.

OTHER MATTERS
Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, please vote your shares over the Internet or by
telephone, or please mark, sign, date and promptly return the proxy card sent to you in the envelope
provided. No postage is required for mailing in the United States.
You can obtain a transcript of the meeting by writing to Shareowner Meeting Transcript Requests, 600
Mountain Avenue, Room 3C-515, Murray Hill, New Jersey 07974.
Patricia F. Russo
Chairman and
Chief Executive Ofﬁcer
January 3, 2005
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EXHIBIT A
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
of
RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
of
LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC.
The Restated Certiﬁcate of Incorporation of the Corporation, ﬁled with the Secretary of State of the
State of Delaware on April 1, 1996, as amended, is hereby amended by deleting Section 1 of Article IV
thereof in its entirety and substituting the following in lieu thereof:
“Section 1: The Corporation shall be authorized to issue 10,250,000,000 shares of capital
stock, of which 10,000,000,000 shares shall be shares of Common Stock, $.01 par value
(“Common Stock”) and 250,000,000 shares shall be shares of Preferred Stock, $1.00 par
value (“Preferred Stock”).
Upon this Certiﬁcate of Amendment to the Restated Certiﬁcate of Incorporation of the
Corporation becoming effective pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware (the “Effective Time”), every [ﬁve (5), ten (10), ﬁfteen (15) or twenty (20) shares] of
the Corporation’s common stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Old Common Stock”), issued
and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, will be automatically reclassiﬁed as
and converted into one share of common stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Corporation
(the “New Common Stock”).
Notwithstanding the immediately preceding sentence, no fractional shares of New Common
Stock shall be issued to the holders of record of Old Common Stock in connection with the
foregoing reclassiﬁcation of shares of Old Common Stock. In lieu thereof, the aggregate of all
fractional shares otherwise issuable to the holders of record of Old Common Stock shall be
issued to [NAME OF TRANSFER AGENT], the transfer agent, as agent, for the accounts of all
holders of record of Old Common Stock otherwise entitled to have a fraction of a share
issued to them. The sale of all of the fractional interests will be effected by the transfer
agent as soon as practicable after the Effective Time on the basis of prevailing market prices
of the New Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange at the time of sale. After such
sale and upon the surrender of the stockholders’ stock certiﬁcates, the transfer agent will pay
to such holders of record their pro rata share of the net proceeds derived from the sale of the
fractional interests.
Each stock certiﬁcate that, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented shares of Old
Common Stock shall, from and after the Effective Time, automatically and without the
necessity of presenting the same for exchange, represent that number of whole shares of New
Common Stock into which the shares of Old Common Stock represented by such certiﬁcate
shall have been reclassiﬁed (as well as the right to receive cash in lieu of any factional shares
of New Common Stock as set forth above), provided, however, that each holder of record of a
certiﬁcate that represented shares of Old Common Stock shall receive, upon surrender of such
certiﬁcate, a new certiﬁcate representing the number of whole shares of New Common Stock
into which the shares of Old Common Stock represented by such certiﬁcate shall have been
reclassiﬁed, as well as any cash in lieu of fractional shares of New Common Stock to which
such holder may be entitled pursuant to the immediately preceding paragraph.”
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EXHIBIT B
LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES
Executive Ofﬁcer Severance Policy
OVERVIEW: Lucent remains always mindful of the need to balance competitive practice with shareowner
interests on any component of compensation. Recognizing that severance provides a safety net and an
effective bridge that enables leaders to exit the corporation and secure other employment, Lucent
believes that providing an appropriate level of severance is an important element in its ability to attract,
motivate, and retain the talented leadership necessary to drive business success.
Since October 2003, the practice and program we have in effect sets severance payments equal to one
year base salary plus the lesser of target or actual bonus funding in the year of employment termination.
However, recognizing that on an ongoing basis there could be a need to address unique circumstances,
effective April 20, 2004, the umbrella policy that governs our severance programs will require that
Lucent obtain shareowner approval before entering into employment or severance agreements with
senior executives that provide severance beneﬁts that exceed 2.99 times base salary and bonus as
deﬁned and set forth below.
EFFECTIVE DATE: April 20, 2004.
DESIGNATED

PARTICIPANTS:

Section 16 ofﬁcers.

COVERED AGREEMENTS:
— Employment or severance agreements entered into with covered executives after the
effective date of the Policy.
— Employment or severance agreements entered into with covered executives before the
effective date of the Policy that are modiﬁed, extended or renewed after the effective date
of the Policy.
— The Policy does not apply to employment or severance agreements entered into with
individuals who are not covered executives, even if the individual later becomes a
designated participant.
BASE SALARY

AND

BONUS DEFINED: For purposes of the “2.99 times” limit on severance beneﬁts:

— Base salary is the annual rate of base salary in effect at termination.
— Bonus is the lesser of (1) the target annual incentive amount for the year of termination or
(2) the actual annual incentive funding amount, as a percentage of target, applicable to
similarly situated active ofﬁcers for the year of termination.
ITEMS INCLUDED AS SEVERANCE BENEFITS: For purposes of the Policy, “severance beneﬁts” generally include:
— Cash severance beneﬁts (including cash amounts payable for the uncompleted portion of
an employment agreement).
— The value of other special beneﬁts or perquisites provided for periods after termination of
employment (but excluding special beneﬁts or perquisites provided under any program
generally applicable to all employees).
— The value of “gross-up” payments made in connection with severance beneﬁts, including
“gross-up” payments under Section Code 280G of the Internal Revenue Code.
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— The value of any special additional beneﬁt or additional service period “credit” under
Lucent’s retirement programs.
— The value of any consulting arrangement that exceeds one year from employment
following termination of employment.
— The value of any special accelerated vesting of outstanding long term compensation
awards under any long term incentive program determined consistent with Treasury
regulations (subject to exceptions described below).
ITEMS EXCLUDED
not include:

AS

SEVERANCE BENEFITS: For purposes of the Policy, “severance beneﬁts” generally do

— Amounts earned or accrued for services prior to termination (such as pro rata bonus,
unused vacation pay, etc.).
— Retirement beneﬁts earned or accrued under qualiﬁed and non-qualiﬁed retirement plans.
— The value of any other beneﬁts provided under programs generally applicable to other
employees.
— Portion of any sign-on awards “earned” during employment period, or the lapse of any
restrictions associated with “make-whole” awards provided to address forfeitures from prior
employers.
— Any beneﬁt or payment required by law.
— Amounts paid for services following termination of employment for a reasonable consulting
agreement for a period of one year or less.
— Amounts paid for post-termination covenants (such as a covenant not to compete).
— The value of accelerated vesting of long term compensation awards that were outstanding
prior to the effective date of the Policy that is generally applicable to other employees.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”)
contains forward-looking statements that are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and
projections about us, our future performance, the industries in which we operate, our beliefs and our
management's assumptions. In addition, other written or oral statements that constitute forward-looking
statements may be made by us or on our behalf. Words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “targets,”
“goals,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” variations of such words and similar
expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are
difficult to assess. Therefore, actual outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or
forecasted in such forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include: fluctuations in the
telecommunications market; our ability to compete effectively; our product portfolio and ability to keep
pace with technological advances in our industry; our reliance on a limited number of key customers; our
exposure to the credit risk of our customers; the pricing, cost and other risks inherent in our long-term
sales agreements; the costs and risks associated with our pension and postretirement benefit obligations;
the social, political and economic risks of our foreign operations; our reliance on third parties to
manufacture most of our products; our ability to generate positive cash flow; existing and future litigation;
our ability to protect our intellectual property rights and the expenses we may incur in defending such
rights; the complexity of our products; changes to existing regulations or technical standards; compliance
with environmental health and safety laws; and our ability to retain and recruit key personnel. For a more
complete list and description of such risks and uncertainties, see the reports filed by us with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. Except as required under the federal securities laws and the rules and
regulations of the SEC, we do not have any intention or obligation to update publicly any forward-looking
statements after the distribution of this MD&A, whether as a result of new information, future events,
changes in assumptions or otherwise.
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
We design and deliver the systems, software and services that drive next-generation communications
networks. Backed by Bell Labs research and development, we use our strengths in mobility, optical,
access, data and voice networking technologies, as well as services, to create new revenue-generating
opportunities for our customers, while enabling them to quickly deploy and better manage their networks.
Our customer base includes communications service providers, governments and enterprises worldwide.
We have three segments organized around the products and services we sell. The reportable segments
are Integrated Network Solutions (“INS”), Mobility Solutions (“Mobility”) and Lucent Worldwide Services
(“Services”). INS provides a broad range of software and wireline equipment related to voice networking
(primarily consisting of switching products, which we sometimes refer to as convergence solutions, and
voice messaging products), data and network management (primarily consisting of access and related
data networking equipment and operating support software) and optical networking. Mobility provides
software and wireless equipment to support radio access and core networks. Services provides
deployment, maintenance, professional and managed services in support of both our product offerings as
well as multi-vendor networks.
Beginning in fiscal 2001, the global telecommunications market deteriorated, resulting from a decrease in
the competitive local exchange carrier market and a significant reduction in capital spending by
established service providers. This trend intensified during fiscal 2002 and continued into fiscal 2003.
Reasons for the market deterioration included general economic slowdown, network overcapacity,
customer bankruptcies, network build-out delays and limited availability of capital.
We believe that the market for telecommunications equipment has stabilized and is starting to grow in
certain areas. The growing demands of enterprises and consumers for additional services tailored to
their needs is creating the need for a new convergence of networks, technologies and applications.
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Service providers are looking for ways to bundle packages of voice, data and video services by deploying
converged networks that will give users more seamless and simple access to communications across
both wireline and mobile networks. At the same time, they are looking for help to streamline their network
operations and to manage their operating expenses more effectively.
We have been seeing a significant increase in discussions with our customers about how they will make
that transition. They are looking for partners who have the knowledge, skill and staying power to help
smooth the transition. More and more major multi-year plans are being developed for next-generation
networks that will deliver IP-based multimedia services.
This is a long-term technology transition, which creates opportunities for us and our customers in growth
areas such as mobile high-speed data, broadband access, metro optical networking and Voice over
Internet Protocol (or VoIP) solutions, as well as professional and managed services. We are working to
turn these technologies and opportunities into cost-effective offers for our customers.
To effectively compete, we have to continue our work to expand our customer base, continue to improve
overall productivity and efficiency and be innovative in delivering new solutions to customers.
Capital spending in our target markets can change rapidly and can vary over short periods of time. As a
result of this uncertainty, it is difficult to make accurate forecasts of near- and long-term results and cash
flow. In addition, because a limited number of customers account for a significant amount of our revenue,
our results are subject to fluctuation from changes in spending by one or more of these customers. This
exposure to fluctuation is most prevalent in our Mobility segment.
As discussed in more detail throughout our MD&A:
x

Results of operations improved significantly during fiscal 2004. This improvement was driven by
an increase in revenues, a higher gross margin rate and lower operating expenses as compared
with fiscal 2003.

x

Revenues increased by 7% during fiscal 2004, following three consecutive years of significant
declines in annual revenues. The increase in fiscal 2004 was driven by higher Mobility revenues,
primarily due to higher CDMA sales in the U.S. as two of our large customers continued to
upgrade their wireless networks and deploy additional capacity to support subscriber growth.
Partially offsetting this increase were lower INS revenues, primarily driven by lower voice
networking sales in the U.S., specifically with traditional circuit switching products, as carriers
face weaker wireline demand and explore next generation networking technologies. The
sustained weakening of the telecommunications market and significant reduction in capital
spending by service providers, among other factors, contributed to a 31% decline in revenues
during fiscal 2003. The impact of product rationalizations and discontinuances under our
restructuring program did not have a significant effect on the overall changes in our revenues
during the past three fiscal years. However, certain product rationalization initiatives have
reduced our total available market opportunities, such as our decision to discontinue our GSM
offerings.

x

Our gross margin rate was 42%, 31% and 13% during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The improvement in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 primarily resulted from the impact of cost
reductions and product mix, as well as certain other items including lower inventory- and
warranty-related charges. Product line discontinuances and the significant and rapid decline
in revenues led to significant inventory charges and high-unabsorbed fixed costs during fiscal
2002.

x

We continued to reflect lower operating expenses through the completion of restructuring actions
taken during the past few years. These actions resulted in net charges of $2.3 billion during fiscal
2002. During fiscal 2004 and 2003, net reversals of $20 million and $149 million were
recognized due to changes in previously estimated costs for prior year plans. These revisions
were mostly related to employee termination benefits and facility closing costs.
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x

We recognized net recoveries of bad debt and customer financings of $230 million and $223
million in fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. These recoveries were primarily due to the
favorable settlement of certain fully reserved notes and accounts receivable, and the expiration
of certain customer financing guarantees. We recognized provisions for bad debts and customer
financings of $1.3 billion during fiscal 2002 as a result of the significant weakening of the financial
condition of certain customers.

x

We recognized charges of $56 million and $481 million during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively,
in connection with the settlement of purported class action securities lawsuits and other related
lawsuits against us and certain of our current and former directors and officers for alleged
violations of federal securities laws, ERISA and related claims. The charges in fiscal 2004
primarily resulted from changes in the estimated fair value of the warrants that we expect to issue
in connection with the global shareowner settlement.

x

We maintained a valuation allowance on substantially all of our deferred tax assets that primarily
originated during fiscal 2002. As a result, federal and certain state and non-U.S. income taxes
attributable to pre-tax income were not provided during fiscal 2004, nor did we record income tax
benefits attributable to pre-tax losses during fiscal 2003 and 2002. We recognized an income tax
benefit of $939 million and $233 million during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively, primarily as a
result of valuation allowance reversals due to the recognition of certain carryback claims,
including an $816 million federal net operating loss carryback claim during fiscal 2004 and
additional benefits from the favorable resolution of certain income tax audit matters. Fiscal 2002
results included a tax provision of $4.8 billion despite a pre-tax loss from continuing operations of
$7.1 billion due to the impact of establishing a full valuation allowance.

x

Cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities increased by $366 million to $4.9 billion
during fiscal 2004, primarily from cash provided by operating activities.

Looking ahead to fiscal 2005, we expect our market and our business to grow as customers invest in
revenue-generating services and more efficient network operations. Mobility should remain a strong
growth sector as service providers continue their transition to 3G networks for mobile high-speed data
services. We will continue to invest in every key area of convergence, manage the product cycle of
declining legacy business and focus on growth in next-generation areas like VoIP, broadband access and
metro optical. We will continue to manage our cost and expense profile as we work on expanding our
revenue base in each of our segments as well as government and emerging markets outside of the
United States. We expect fiscal 2005 annual revenues to grow on a percentage basis in the mid-single
digits, which we believe is at or above the market growth rate; we expect our annual gross margin rate on
a percentage basis will be in the low 40’s; and we expect annual operating expenses as a percentage of
revenue to be about 30%. Actual results could be different from these expectations.
APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Our consolidated financial statements are based on the selection of accounting policies and the
application of significant accounting estimates, some of which require management to make significant
assumptions. Actual results could differ materially from the estimated amounts. We believe that some of
the more critical estimates and related assumptions that affect our financial condition and results of
operations are in the areas of revenue recognition, pension and postretirement benefits, income taxes,
legal contingencies, receivables and customer financing, inventories, business restructuring and
intangible assets. Our critical accounting estimates were discussed with our Audit and Finance
Committee of the Board of Directors.
The impact of changes in the estimates and assumptions pertaining to revenue recognition, inventories
and goodwill and other acquired intangibles arising in fiscal 2004 is directly reflected in our segment
results. The impact of changes in the estimates and assumptions related to goodwill and other acquired
intangibles arising prior to fiscal 2004 and net deferred tax assets are not reflected in the segment results.
However, the long-term forecasts supporting the realization and changes of those assets are significantly
affected by the actual and expected results of each segment. Generally, the changes in estimates related
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to receivables, pension and postretirement benefits, restructuring program and litigation will not affect our
segment results.
There were no accounting policies adopted during fiscal 2004 that had a material effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. Refer to Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements for our
significant accounting policies.
Revenue recognition
Most of our sales are generated from complex contractual arrangements that require significant revenue
recognition judgments, particularly in the areas of multiple-element arrangements, the application of
software revenue recognition rules, contract accounting and collectibility.
Revenues from contracts with multiple-element arrangements, such as those including products with
installation and integration services, are recognized as the revenue for each unit of accounting is earned
based on the relative fair value of each unit of accounting as determined by internal or third party
analyses of market-based prices. A delivered element is considered a separate unit of accounting if it
has value to the customer on a standalone basis, there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value
of undelivered elements in the arrangement, and delivery or performance of undelivered elements is
considered probable and substantially under our control.
Many of our products are integrated with software that is embedded in our hardware at delivery. In those
cases where indications are that software is more than incidental and was a significant factor in the
customer’s purchasing decision, such as where the transaction includes software upgrades or
enhancements, we apply software revenue recognition rules which may affect the amount and timing of
revenue recognition. In multiple element arrangements where software is considered more than
incidental, fair value of an undelivered element is determined using vendor specific objective evidence.
The percentage of completion method of accounting is used for sales generated from certain contracts,
primarily those related to customized network solutions and network build-outs with durations of at least
six months. We make important judgments in estimating revenue and cost and in measuring progress
toward completion. These judgments underlie our determinations regarding overall contract value,
contract profitability and timing of revenue recognition. Revenue and cost estimates are revised
periodically based on changes in circumstances. Revenues recognized under the percentage of
completion method of accounting have increased during recent fiscal years and represented 24%, 18%
and 13% of total revenues during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The assessment of collectibility is critical in determining whether revenues should be recognized. As part
of the revenue recognition process, we determine whether trade and notes receivable are reasonably
assured of collection based on various factors, including our ability to sell the receivables and whether
there has been deterioration in the credit quality of our customers that could result in our inability to
collect or sell the receivables. In situations where we have the ability to sell the receivable, revenue is
recognized up to the value we could reasonably expect to realize from the sale. Revenue and related
costs are deferred if we are uncertain as to whether the receivable can be collected or sold. Revenue is
deferred but costs are recognized when we determine that the collection or sale of the receivable is
unlikely.
Deferred revenues were $593 million and $536 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Pension and postretirement benefits
Our results of operations include the impact of significant pension and postretirement benefits that are
measured using actuarial valuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions, including
assumptions about discount rates, expected return on plan assets and expected participation rates in
retirement health care plans. These assumptions are updated on an annual basis at the beginning of
each fiscal year or more frequently upon the occurrence of significant events. We are required to
consider current market conditions, including changes in interest rates, in making these assumptions.
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Changes in the related pension and postretirement benefit costs or credits may occur in the future due to
changes in the assumptions. Our net pension and postretirement credit ("net pension credit") was $868
million, $669 million and $972 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, excluding the
impact of restructuring actions and discontinued operations. Approximately two-thirds of these amounts
are allocated to operating expenses, with the balance in costs used to determine gross margin. The
allocation is based on a recent comparison of salaries that are related to costs and those that are related
to operating expenses. Refer to our Results of Operations section of this MD&A for a further discussion
of changes in the net pension credit and the related impact on our results.
The expected rate of return on pension plan assets used to develop our pension credit is 8.75%, 8.75%
and 9.0% during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and is determined at the beginning of the
period. We plan to use an expected rate of return of 8.5% during fiscal 2005. Changes in the rate were
generally due to lower expectations of future returns based on studies performed by our external
investment advisors. Similar changes were made to our expected rate of return on postretirement plan
assets for these reasons as well as for changes in the mix of assets held. A lower expected rate of return
will reduce our net pension credit and profitability. The discount rate used to determine our pension credit
was 5.75%, 6.5% and 7.0% during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and is determined at the
beginning of the period. We expect to use 5.5% during fiscal 2005. Changes in the discount rate were
due to declining interest rates. The discount rate is also volatile because it is determined based upon the
prevailing rate as of the measurement date. Similar changes were made to the discount rate used to
determine our postretirement benefit cost for these reasons. An additional 0.25% reduction will also be
reflected in fiscal 2005 due to a shorter expected duration of postretirement plan obligations as compared
to pension plan obligations. A lower discount rate generally will increase our net pension credit and
profitability. The expected rate of return on pension plan assets and discount rate were determined in
accordance with consistent methodologies as described in Note 9 to our consolidated financial
statements.
Holding all other assumptions constant, a 0.5% increase or decrease in the discount rate would have
decreased or increased the fiscal 2004 net pension credit by approximately $60 million. Likewise, a 0.5%
increase or decrease in the expected return on plan assets would have increased or decreased the fiscal
2004 net pension credit by approximately $190 million.
There have also been several recent developments related to retiree health care benefits, including
changes in benefits, cost sharing and legislation, such as Medicare Part D of the Medicare Prescription
Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. These legislative changes and recent experience with
participation rates for management retiree plans have required us to assess the expected future
participation rates of certain retirees in the existing plans. We now assume that approximately 3% of all
retirees subject to cost sharing will opt out of our plans on an annual basis beginning July 1, 2004. The
impact of these participation rates favorably impacts our annual net pension credit and profitability by
approximately $60 million. The impact of differences between actual and assumed experience will affect
our net pension credit and profitability in the future through the amortization of actuarial gains or losses.
We have implemented various actions to reduce our share of retiree health care costs during recent
periods, including the shifting of certain costs to our retirees. Our retiree health care obligations are
determined using the terms of the current plans and consider the existing communication to retirees.
Health care benefits for employees who retired prior to March 1, 1990 are not subject to annual dollar
caps on the Company’s share of future benefit costs. The benefit obligation associated with this retiree
group approximated 60% of the total retiree health care obligation. Management employees who retired
on or after March 1, 1990 have paid amounts above their caps since 2001. The obligation related to
plans covering formerly represented retirees who retired on or after March 1, 1990 assumed that annual
dollar caps are effective and will be enforced beginning November 1, 2004. We have either waived or
increased these caps in two prior negotiations. Our collective bargaining agreements expired on October
31, 2004 but were extended through November 8, 2004.
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We entered into a tentative agreement with the unions on November 9, 2004, that will be submitted to
union members for ratification by mid-December. The agreement will be effective November 1, 2004 and
will expire on May 26, 2012, if ratified. The agreement addresses retiree health care benefits, among
other items. We agreed to continue to subsidize these benefits up to the established cap level that is
consistent with our current actuarial assumptions. Except for costs attributable to an implementation
period ending on or before March 1, 2005 (which we will absorb), costs that are in excess of this capped
level will be borne by the retirees in the form of premiums and plan design changes. We also agreed to
establish a new $400 million trust that will be funded by us over eight years and managed jointly by
trustees appointed by the Company and the unions. The trust will be used to mitigate the cost impact of
premiums or plan design changes on retirees. The agreement also acknowledged that retiree health care
benefits will no longer be a subject of bargaining between the Company and the unions.
As a result of these changes, our required obligation for retiree health care benefits is expected to
increase by the net present value of the $400 million of committed contributions to the trust. This
incremental cost will be amortized over the contract period. We also considered the substantive plan
requirements of SFAS No. 106 and have determined that our obligation for retiree health care benefits is
appropriately stated based on our past practice of shifting certain costs to retirees and the actions that are
contemplated as a result of the new agreement. The net present value of the required contributions to
the new trust is approximately one-third of the amount of the costs that are expected to be in excess of
the capped level during the contract period.
The estimated accumulated benefit obligation related to the U.S. management employees’ pension plan
and several other smaller pension plans exceeded the fair value of the plan assets as of September 30,
2004, 2003 and 2002. This was due primarily to the decline in the discount rate used to estimate the
pension liability as a result of declining interest rates in the United States and negative returns on the
pension funds as a result of the overall decline in the equity markets in 2002 and 2001. Changes in the
minimum pension liability reduced our shareowners’ deficit by $150 million during fiscal 2004 and
increased our shareowners’ deficit by $594 million and $2.9 billion during fiscal 2003 and 2002,
respectively.
The discount rate used to determine the minimum pension liability was 5.5%, 5.75% and 6.5% as of
September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Changes in the discount rates were due to the
reasons described above. Market conditions and interest rates significantly affect the future assets and
liabilities of our pension plans, and similar changes might be required in the future. It is difficult to predict
these factors due to highly volatile market conditions. Holding all other assumptions constant, a 0.5%
decrease or increase in the discount rate would have increased or decreased the minimum pension
liability by approximately $850 million as of September 30, 2004.
Income taxes
Changes in valuation allowances favorably impacted our results of operations by $1.2 billion during fiscal
2004 and unfavorably impacted our results of operations by $129 million and $7.9 billion during fiscal
2003 and 2002, respectively. Our valuation allowance on net deferred tax assets was $7.9 billion and
$9.9 billion as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
We have significant deferred tax assets, resulting from tax credit carryforwards, net operating loss
carryforwards and deductible temporary differences that may reduce taxable income in future periods. A
valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset
will not be realized. Forming a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not needed is difficult when there
is negative evidence such as cumulative losses in recent years even if income is reported in the current
or recent quarters. Cumulative losses weigh heavily in the overall assessment. We determine cumulative
losses on a rolling twelve-quarter basis.
As of September 30, 2001 and continuing through March 31, 2002, we provided valuation allowances on
future tax benefits with relatively short carryforward periods, such as foreign tax credits, foreign net
operating losses, capital losses and most state net operating losses. We believed it was more likely than
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not that the remaining net deferred tax assets of $5.2 billion as of September 30, 2001 and March 31,
2002, would be realized, principally based upon forecasted taxable income, generally within the 20-year
research and development credit and net operating loss carryforward periods, giving consideration to
substantial benefits realized to date through our restructuring program.
Several significant developments were considered in determining the need for a full valuation allowance
during the third quarter of fiscal 2002, including the continuing and more severe market decline,
increasing uncertainty and lack of visibility in the telecommunications market as a whole, a significant
decrease in sequential quarterly revenue levels, a decrease in sequential earnings after several quarters
of sequential improvement and the possible need for further restructuring and cost reduction actions to
attain profitability. As a result of our assessment, we established a full valuation allowance for our
remaining net deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2002. Our net deferred tax assets have essentially
remained fully reserved since then. Accordingly, federal and certain state and non-U.S. income taxes
attributable to pre-tax income were not provided for during fiscal 2004. Income tax benefits attributable to
pre-tax losses were also not provided for during fiscal 2003 and 2002. This has significantly impacted our
results in each of these years.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, we filed a net operating loss carryback claim related to the
carryback of our fiscal year 2001 federal net operating loss to 1996, a year in which we filed our federal
income tax return as part of the AT&T consolidated group. We reached a tentative agreement with the
Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) on September 1, 2004 that allowed for a tax refund of $816 million
(plus statutory interest to the date of payment), subject to approval by the Congressional Joint Committee
on Taxation (the “Joint Committee”). The tax benefit related to the claim was not recognized at that time
or prior to that time because it was related to a complex matter and there was no assurance that the
approval from the Joint Committee would be obtained. On November 8, 2004, we received written
confirmation from the IRS that the Joint Committee approved our tentative agreement with the IRS and
that our agreement with the IRS was final. We were required to reassess the realizability of our net
operating loss carryforwards as of September 30, 2004, because the Joint Committee’s final approval
was received prior to the issuance of our consolidated financial statements. As a result, we recognized
an $816 million income tax benefit from the reversal of valuation allowances and interest income of $45
million during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.
We expect to receive the refund during fiscal 2005, following completion of the IRS’s audit of our 2001
federal income tax return. The refund will be paid by the IRS to AT&T and the entire refund amount will
become payable by AT&T to us under our tax sharing agreements with AT&T. We do not believe there
are any other matters that would impact the refund claim.
We reversed $17 million of valuation allowances related to three non-U.S. tax jurisdictions during fiscal
2004. We determined that it was more likely than not that these net deferred tax assets were realizable
based upon the income projections and certain other factors for those jurisdictions. We were not in a
cumulative loss position in these jurisdictions as of September 30, 2004.
We expect to continue to maintain a full valuation allowance on our remaining net deferred tax assets
until an appropriate level of profitability is sustained, or we are able to develop tax strategies that would
enable us to conclude that it is more likely than not that a portion of our deferred tax assets will be
realizable.
We were profitable during all quarters of fiscal 2004 and the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. If we continue
to generate comparable profits we will no longer be in a U.S. cumulative loss position by the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2005. If this occurs, we will consider the extent to which we can rely on future income
forecasts to support the realization of our net U.S. deferred tax assets. These income forecasts will be
considered in conjunction with other positive and negative evidence, including our forecasts of taxable
income over the applicable carryforward periods, our current financial performance, our market
environment, and other factors, in evaluating the need for a full or partial valuation allowance. Similar
analysis will continue to be performed in other jurisdictions where we are no longer in a cumulative loss
position.
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As a result, we may determine in fiscal 2005 that it is more likely than not that a portion of our net
deferred tax assets is realizable and a portion of the valuation allowance should be reversed. Although
any reversal of valuation allowances will favorably impact our results of operations in the period of the
reversal, federal and certain state and non-U.S. income taxes attributable to pre-tax income will need to
be provided for in subsequent periods, which will reduce net income.
We assess the likelihood of the ultimate determination of various contingent tax liabilities that arise in
many different tax jurisdictions. These tax matters can be complex in nature and uncertain as to the
ultimate outcome. We establish reserves for tax contingencies when we believe an unfavorable outcome
is likely to occur and the liability can be reasonably estimated, similar to accounting for other
contingencies. Although we believe these positions are fully supportable, we consider the likelihood of
potential challenges and sustainability of such challenges upon examination. Changes in our tax reserves
have occurred and are likely to continue to occur as our assessments change based on current facts and
circumstances such as further developments and progress of tax examinations in various jurisdictions.
The net impact of the reassessments of such changes resulted in the recognition of income tax benefits
of $142 million, $77 million and $82 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Legal contingencies
We are subject to proceedings, lawsuits and other claims, including proceedings under laws and
government regulations related to securities, environmental, labor, product and other matters. These
contingencies are often resolved over long periods of time. We assess the likelihood of any adverse
judgments in or outcomes to these contingencies, as well as potential ranges of possible losses.
Reserves are established when it is probable that a liability has been incurred or an asset has been
impaired and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated based on a detailed analysis of each
individual issue, often with the assistance of outside legal counsel. We also determine whether
disclosures are required for each individual contingency based on this assessment. There are several
hundred contingencies that are currently being assessed. Most of these contingencies are not currently
reserved because we have determined that it is not probable that a loss has been incurred. New
developments, such as a change in settlement strategy, may change our assessment as to the likely
outcome or potential range of possible losses. Our most significant reserves are related to our global
shareowners’ settlement and environmental matters that are discussed in Note 13 to our consolidated
financial statements along with our other significant matters.
In connection with our global shareowner settlement, we expect to issue warrants to purchase 200 million
shares of our common stock at $2.75 per share. The estimated fair value of the warrants was $252 million
and $161 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Key assumptions used to determine
the estimated fair value of the warrants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model as of September 30,
2004 and 2003, respectively, included the closing price of our common stock of $3.17 and $2.16, a riskfree interest rate of 3.36% and 2.42% and volatility of 49.91% and 66.93%. Volatility was based on the
implied volatility (bid) of our publicly traded 2007 option with a $2.50 strike price. Charges related to the
warrants were $91 million and $161 million during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. Our future results
of operations are likely to be impacted by changes in the estimated fair value of the warrants until they
are issued.
Receivables and customer financing
We are required to estimate the collectibility of our trade receivables and notes receivable. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the realization of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness of each customer and the related aging of past due balances. Our reserves
are determined by using percentages applied to certain categories of aged receivables. We also evaluate
specific accounts when we become aware of information indicating that a customer may not be able to
meet its financial obligations due to a deterioration of its financial condition, lower credit ratings or
bankruptcy. Reserve requirements are based on the best facts available to us and are re-evaluated and
adjusted as additional information is received. Typically, reserves are reduced only when agings improve
or customer settlement proceeds are recovered.
Recoveries are generally the result of direct
negotiations with the customer, resolutions in bankruptcy or legal actions.
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Our provision for (recovery of) bad debts and customer financings were ($230) million, ($223) million and
$1.3 billion during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Receivables of $1.4 billion and $1.5 billion
were net of reserves of $110 million and $246 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Drawn commitments of $4 million and $27 million under our customer-financing program were net of $135
million and $415 million of reserves as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Additional
provisions or recoveries may occur in the future due to changes in the financial condition of our
customers or as settlements of past due balances are reached.
Inventories
In assessing the ultimate realization of inventories, we make judgments as to future demand
requirements and compare these with the current or committed inventory levels. Reserve requirements
generally increase as our projected demand requirements decrease due to market conditions,
technological and product life cycle changes and longer than previously expected usage periods.
We incurred net inventory charges of $17 million, $56 million and $621 million during fiscal 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively. We experienced significant charges related to changes in required reserves
during fiscal 2002 due to changes in strategy, discontinuing product lines, and rapid weakening of market
conditions. Inventories of $822 million and $632 million were net of reserves of $720 million and $980
million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. It is possible that changes in inventory reserves
may be required in the future if there is a rapid change in the demand for our products due to fluctuations
in market conditions or to new technological developments.
Business restructuring
Our restructuring reserves reflect many estimates, including those pertaining to employee separation
costs, inventory, contractual obligations, facility exit costs and proceeds from asset sales. We reassess
the reserve requirements for completing each individual plan under our restructuring program at the end
of each reporting period. Actual experience has been and may continue to be different from these
estimates. We have recognized significant reversals or charges related to revisions of our estimates for
certain restructuring plans initiated in prior periods. Liabilities associated with our restructuring program
were $220 million and $467 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Most of the
remaining reserve requirements are related to leases on exited facilities as of September 30, 2004.
Facility exit costs of $202 million are expected to be paid over the remaining lease terms, ranging from
several months to 11 years, and are reflected net of expected sublease rental income of $137 million.
Additional charges or reversals may be required if the expected amount of sublease rental income
changes in the future or if other circumstances change. Refer to Note 2 to our consolidated financial
statements for more information including the impact of restructuring actions on our results of operations.
Intangible assets
Our intangible assets include goodwill and other acquired intangibles of $434 million, development costs
for software to be sold, leased or otherwise marketed of $284 million and internal use software
development costs of $142 million as of September 30, 2004. As a result of the Telica acquisition in fiscal
2004, we recorded $238 million of goodwill and acquired intangible assets. Refer to Note 3 to our
consolidated financial statements for information related to the purchase price allocation.
Prior to October 1, 2002, goodwill and identifiable intangible assets were amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. With the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on October 1, 2002, goodwill
is no longer amortized but is tested for impairment annually, or more often, if an event or circumstance
indicates that an impairment loss has been incurred. Other intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events such as product discontinuances, plant closures, product dispositions or other changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. We recognized significant
impairment charges during fiscal 2003 and 2002, and similar charges may be required in the future.
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The initial goodwill impairment test under SFAS No. 142 was completed during the first quarter of fiscal
2003 and resulted in no transitional impairment loss. We assessed the realizability of goodwill related to
our multi-service switching reporting unit within INS during the third quarter of fiscal 2003 as a result of
business decisions to partner with other suppliers to use their products in our sales offerings. The
reporting unit’s fair value was determined using projected cash flows over a seven-year period discounted
at 15% after considering terminal value and related cash flows associated with service revenues. The
excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over its implied fair value in the amount of
$35 million was recognized as an impairment charge in the third quarter of fiscal 2003. Annual goodwill
impairment tests completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 and 2003 did not result in an
impairment loss.
During fiscal 2002, the continued decline in the telecommunications market prompted a reassessment of
all key assumptions underlying our goodwill valuation judgments, including those relating to short- and
long-term growth rates. As a result of our analysis, we determined that an impairment charge of $975
million, including $826 million related to goodwill was required because the forecasted cash flows were
less than the carrying values of certain businesses. The goodwill impairment related primarily to goodwill
recognized in connection with our September 2000 acquisition of Spring Tide Networks. Fair values were
determined on the basis of discounted cash flows.
We recognized approximately $200 million of impairment charges related to capitalized software and $50
million of impairment charges related to property, plant and equipment during fiscal 2002. These
charges were primarily related to delays and increasing uncertainties in the development of the universal
mobile telecommunications systems (“UMTS”) market. We recognized an additional $50 million
impairment charge related to the remaining UMTS capitalized software during fiscal 2003. Software
development costs related to UMTS technology were expensed as incurred during fiscal 2004 and 2003.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues
Years ended September 30,
2003
2002
33%
$ 3,300
39%
$ 4,599
44%
3,080
36%
4,444
21%
1,840
22%
2,761
-%
-%
114
2%
250
3%
403
100%
$ 8,470 100%
$ 12,321

(in millions)
INS
Mobility
Services
Optical fiber business
Other
Revenues

2004
$ 2,984
4,007
1,932
122
$ 9,045

U.S.
Other Americas (Canada, Caribbean & Latin
America)
EMEA (Europe, Middle East & Africa)
APAC (Asia Pacific & China)
Revenues

$ 5,517

61%

$ 5,149

61%

$ 8,150

66%

538
1,293
1,697
$ 9,045

6%
14%
19%
100%

424
1,207
1,690
$ 8,470

5%
14%
20%
100%

717
1,762
1,692
$ 12,321

6%
14%
14%
100%
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37%
36%
23%
1%
3%
100%

Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
Revenues increased by 7% during fiscal 2004, primarily due to a $927 million increase in Mobility and a
$92 million increase in Services, partially offset by a $316 million decline in INS and a $128 million
decline in other revenues. The decrease in other revenues was due to decline in patent licensing
revenue. The segment discussion later in this MD&A contains information on changes in revenues by
segment and product.
The increase in the United States was primarily due to higher spending by Verizon Wireless and Sprint to
upgrade their CDMA wireless networks and deploy additional capacity to support subscriber growth.
Sales to these two customers increased by approximately $1.0 billion and accounted for 38% of our
consolidated sales during fiscal 2004. The increase in Other Americas was primarily driven by higher DSL
and wireless revenue in Canada, Mexico and Brazil. The increase in EMEA was primarily due to higher
sales of optical products and UMTS data cards in Europe and sales in Iraq. Revenues from customers
located in China represented 10% and 11% of consolidated revenues during fiscal 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
Our revenues are subject to fluctuation as a result of changes in customer spending patterns and shortterm capital requirements, as well as the timing of customer acceptances. The impact of changes in
foreign currency rates did not have a significant effect on our consolidated revenues in all periods
presented.
Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
Revenues decreased by 31% during fiscal 2003. The significant reduction in capital spending by large
service providers was the primary reason for the decline. The net decrease in revenues was primarily
due to a $1.3 billion decrease in INS, a $1.4 billion decrease in Mobility, and a $921 million decrease in
Services.
The decline in revenues affected all geographic areas. United States revenues declined 37% in fiscal
2003, primarily as a result of spending reductions by large service providers. Other Americas revenues
declined in fiscal 2003 by 41%, primarily due to the economic instability in Latin America. EMEA
revenues declined by 31% compared with the prior period, primarily due to lower spending for optical
networking products, resulting from service provider overcapacity and to a lesser extent, lower revenues
from a long-term project in Saudi Arabia. Revenues in the APAC region were fairly consistent with the
prior period, due to sales related to a CDMA wireless network build-out in India and ongoing wireline and
wireless build-outs in China.
Gross Margin
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
$ 3,779
$ 2,652
$ 1,552
42%
31%
13%

(in millions)
Gross margin
Gross margin rate

The most significant costs used in determining our gross margin are the cost of materials, components
and manufacturing that are sourced from third parties. These costs are negotiated through supply
agreements and fluctuate with changes in sales volume. Employee-related costs, such as salaries and
related benefits associated with services, logistics and warehousing and other direct supply chain
functions, are also included. Employee-related costs are more fixed in nature and will not usually
fluctuate based on changes in sales volume. However, employee-related costs may change as a result
of actions to align our resources to market conditions, annual salary or wage increases or changes in
employee benefits, including those related to pension or health care costs for active employees and
retirees. A portion of employee-related costs are subject to collective bargaining agreements. To a
lesser extent, amortization of software development costs, certain other overhead items related to IT and
facility related costs, as well as charges associated with warranty and inventory values, are also used in
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determining gross margin. Most of the costs used in determining gross margin are included in our
reportable segments.
Our gross margin rate is subject to fluctuation due to changes in volume, or mix, the impact of significant
inventory-related charges and revisions to estimates related to long-term contracts. In addition, our gross
margin rate may be impacted by other factors, such as competitive pricing pressures, the initial impact of
sales of next generation products, our efforts in entering emerging markets and our ability to continue to
realize cost reductions.
Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
The gross margin rate increased by 11 percentage points in fiscal 2004 from fiscal 2003.
Certain items accounted for four percentage points of the improvement in the gross margin rate in fiscal
2004. These items favorably affected the gross margin rate by approximately one percentage point during
fiscal 2004, and negatively affected the gross margin rate by approximately three percentage points
during fiscal 2003. The changes between periods reflected lower provisions for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories, including inventories associated with customers experiencing financial difficulties;
costs associated with supplier and customer contract settlements; adjustments to long-term contracts;
costs associated with warranty; and certain customer obligations and product performance issues.
Sales volume favorably impacted the gross margin rate by approximately one percentage point, because
the fixed costs were spread over higher revenue levels.
Lower intellectual property licensing revenues and higher short- and long-term employee incentive
awards each unfavorably impacted the gross margin rate by approximately one percentage point.
Cost reductions and the impact of product and geographic mix accounted for eight percentage points of
improvement in the gross margin rate. Cost reductions were realized primarily from supply chain
rationalization and efficiency gains, as well as product redesign. We also realized savings from employee
workforce reductions primarily in the Services segment in fiscal 2004. Increased sales of certain U.S.
Mobility products with higher gross margin contributed to the gross margin rate improvement. Historically,
our Mobility gross margin rate was higher than the INS and Services gross margin rates. Our gross
margin rate was also higher in the U.S. compared to non-U.S. regions. These trends are expected to
continue in fiscal 2005.
Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
The gross margin rate increased by approximately 18 percentage points in fiscal 2003 from fiscal 2002,
despite a 31% decline in sales volume.
Inventory and other charges negatively affected the gross margin rate by approximately three percentage
points during fiscal 2003 and 13 percentage points during fiscal 2002, resulting in an improvement of 10
percentage points. The higher charges during fiscal 2002 were primarily related to issues or events
associated with customers experiencing financial difficulties (in some cases, declaring bankruptcy or
becoming insolvent), costs associated with supplier and customer contract settlements, higher provisions
for slow-moving and obsolete inventory, adjustments to long-term projects and higher than expected
costs due to certain customer obligations and product performance issues.
We recognized $26 million in reversals and $64 million in charges during fiscal 2003 and 2002,
respectively, for inventory associated with product line rationalizations and product line discontinuances
under our restructuring program. The inventory reversal had a negligible favorable impact on the gross
margin rate in fiscal 2003 and had a one-percentage point negative impact on the gross margin rate in
fiscal 2002.
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The remaining improvement in the gross margin rate was due to cost reductions realized from supply
chain rationalization and efficiency gains, which accounted for six percentage points of improvement. We
reduced costs across the supply chain through internal restructuring and efficiencies, product redesign
and resourcing products to lower cost regions. To a lesser extent, the improvement was due to favorable
product mix, including a higher proportion of intellectual property licensing revenues to total revenues.
Operating Expenses
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)
Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses,
excluding the following two items:
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts and customer financings
Amortization of goodwill and other acquired intangibles
SG&A
Research and development (“R&D”)
In-process research and development (“IPR&D”)
Goodwill impairment
Business restructuring
Operating expenses

$ 1,523
(230)
3

$ 1,717
(223)
15

$ 2,466
1,253
250

1,296
1,270
14
(20)

1,509
1,488
35
(158 )

3,969
2,310
826
1,426

$ 2,560

$ 2,874

$ 8,531

The most significant cost included in operating expenses is salaries and related employee benefits
associated with selling, general and product development functions. These employee related expenses
are usually more fixed in nature and do not fluctuate significantly with short-term changes in revenue
levels, unless there are changes in staffing levels to align employee resources with market conditions.
However, employee related expenses may change as a result of salary increases or changes in related
benefits, including those related to pension or health care for active employees and retirees. Salary
increases are usually provided to employees on an annual basis and historically have been between 3%
and 4%. Changes in the funding levels of short- and long-term employee incentive awards may also
impact trends between various periods. To a lesser extent, third party consulting fees and certain other
overhead items such as IT and facility related costs are also included in operating expenses. Most of the
SG&A expenses are included in our global sales organization and shared services, such as general
corporate functions. In contrast, most of the R&D expenses are directly associated with research and
product development of our wireline and wireless products and included in our reportable segments.
SG&A expenses
Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
Excluding bad debts and customer financings and amortization of other acquired intangibles, SG&A
expenses decreased by $194 million or 11% during fiscal 2004. The decrease was primarily a result of
employee workforce reductions under our restructuring program and other cost saving initiatives that limited
discretionary spending. Our restructuring program is complete and is not expected to further reduce SG&A
expense levels during fiscal 2005.
SG&A included approximately $100 million of higher accruals for short- and long-term employee incentive
awards during fiscal 2004. The comparability of SG&A levels was also impacted by additional
depreciation and other related charges of $108 million recognized during fiscal 2003 due to the
shortening of the estimated useful lives of several properties that were in the process of being sold at the
time.
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Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
Excluding provisions for bad debts and customer financings and amortization of goodwill and other
acquired intangibles, SG&A expenses decreased by $749 million or 30% during fiscal 2003. The
decrease was primarily a result of employee workforce reductions under our restructuring program and
other cost savings initiatives that limited discretionary spending. These savings were partially offset by
accelerated depreciation and other related charges discussed above. Most of the SG&A reductions
resulted from lower spending in our global sales organization, shared services such as general corporate
functions and INS.
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts and customer financings
In the past, we provided substantial long-term financing to some of our customers as a condition of
obtaining or bidding on infrastructure projects. Such financing took the form of both commitments to
extend credit and third-party financial guarantees. These commitments were extended to established
companies, as well as start-up companies, and ranged from modest amounts to more than a billion
dollars. Our overall customer financing exposure, coupled with the rapid and sustained decline in
telecommunications market conditions, negatively affected our results of operations and cash flows in
fiscal 2002. We may provide or commit to additional customer financings on a limited basis. Significant
recoveries were realized during fiscal 2004 and 2003. Further recoveries or charges may occur in the
future.
Fiscal 2004 and 2003
We had net recoveries of bad debts and customer financings of $230 million and $223 million, during
fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. These recoveries included charges for bad debts and customer
financings of $24 million and $100 million during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. Recoveries were
realized from the favorable settlement of certain fully reserved notes receivable and accounts receivable,
significantly lower bad debt and customer financing exposure and the expiration of certain customer
financing guarantees.
Settlements generally occur through debt workout procedures, including
consummation of bankruptcy proceedings.
Fiscal 2002
The significant provisions reflected in fiscal 2002 were net of recoveries of $44 million. These provisions
were realized due to the deterioration in the creditworthiness of certain customers as a result of the
decline in the telecommunications market.
Amortization of goodwill and other acquired intangibles
We adopted FAS 142 during the first quarter of fiscal 2003. As a result, we no longer amortize goodwill
but test for impairment annually or more often if an event or circumstance indicates that an impairment
may have occurred. Our goodwill was $373 million as of September 30, 2004.
Amortization of other acquired intangibles was $3 million, $15 million and $42 million during fiscal 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively. We expect the annual amortization of other acquired intangible assets to
increase by approximately $13 million during fiscal 2005 as a result of higher amortization for intangible
assets acquired in the Telica acquisition in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.
R&D
Our continuing R&D investment is focused on enhancing and expanding our broad portfolio of leading
edge technologies. In Mobility, our R&D investment is focused primarily on CDMA and UMTS nextgeneration technologies and includes expenses associated with UMTS product trials with certain
customers. This investment continues to support our leadership position in spread-spectrum technology
and our development of high-speed mobile data solutions. Our INS R&D investment supports a broad
array of current and next-generation technologies, including VoIP, metro optical and broadband
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networking solutions. Together, Mobility and INS share R&D investment in a unified softswitch platform to
support both wireless and wireline applications. Our R&D investment also supports reshaping our product
portfolio to capture convergence opportunities and Bell Labs long-term research programs in such areas
as computer science, materials science and bioengineering. We believe our current R&D spending levels
and plans are aligned with current and expected market opportunities.
R&D costs are charged to expense as incurred. However, the costs incurred for the development of
computer software that will be sold, leased or otherwise marketed are capitalized when technological
feasibility has been established. The amortization of these costs was reflected as a cost component in
determining our gross margin. Unamortized software development costs determined to be in excess of
the net realizable value of the product are expensed immediately and reflected in R&D if such
determination is made prior to when the product is available for general release to the customer.
Costs capitalized for the development of computer software that will be sold, leased or otherwise
marketed were $258 million, $313 million and $485 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The amortization of these costs was reflected as a cost component in determining gross
margin and amounted to $281 million, $291 million and $365 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.
Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
R&D expenses decreased by $218 million or 15% in fiscal 2004, primarily due to employee workforce
reductions and product rationalizations under our restructuring program. Our restructuring program is
complete and not expected to further reduce R&D expenses during fiscal 2005. R&D expenses included
approximately $175 million of higher accruals for short- and long-term employee incentive awards during
fiscal 2004 and a $50 million UMTS impairment charge during fiscal 2003.
Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
R&D expenses decreased by $822 million or 36% in fiscal 2003 primarily due to employee reductions and
product rationalizations. Approximately 84% of the reduction for fiscal 2003 was reflected in INS, due to
the greater number of INS product rationalizations. In addition, R&D expense included impairment
charges of $50 million and $250 million during fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively.
In-Process Research and Development (IPR&D)
IPR&D charges of $14 million resulted from the acquisition of Telica. Refer to Note 3 to our consolidated
financial statements for information regarding the purchase price allocation.
Goodwill impairment
Fiscal 2003
Our business decisions to partner with other suppliers to use their products in our sales offerings
prompted an assessment of the recoverability of certain goodwill associated with the multi-service
switching reporting unit within INS during the third quarter of fiscal 2003. The excess of the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over its implied fair value was recognized as a $35 million
impairment charge.
Fiscal 2002
The continued, sharper decline in the telecommunications market prompted an assessment of all key
assumptions underlying goodwill valuation judgments, including those related to short- and long-term
growth rates. The excess of the carrying amount over the estimated fair value of the goodwill previously
recognized in connection with the acquisition of Spring Tide was recognized as an $826 million
impairment charge.
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Business restructuring
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
$ (14)
$ (47)
(15)
(16)
12
17
(3)
(18)
(20)
(64)
1
(120)
(1)
35
$ (20)
$ (149)

(in millions)
Employee separations
Contract settlements
Facility closings
Other
Restructuring costs (reversals)
Asset write-downs
Net gains on sales
Impairment of goodwill
Impairment of other intangible assets
Net charge (reversal)

2002
$ 799
(93 )
301
16
1,023
458
(140 )
826
149
$ 2,316

Included in:
Costs
Operating expenses
Goodwill impairment
Total

$

(20)
$ ( 20)

$

(26)
(158)
35
$ (149)

$

64
1,426
826
$ 2,316

During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, we committed to and began implementing a restructuring
program to realign resources to market conditions and focus on the large service providers. We
assessed our product portfolio and associated R&D, and then streamlined the rest of our operations to
support those reassessments. We eliminated some marginally profitable or non-strategic product lines,
merged certain technology platforms, consolidated development activities, eliminated management
positions and many duplications in marketing functions and programs, centralized our sales support
functions and sold or leased certain of our manufacturing facilities and made greater use of contract
manufacturers. We sold or disposed of the assets related to the eliminated product lines, closed facilities
and reduced the employee workforce on a global basis.
Since the inception of the restructuring program, we reduced our employee workforce by approximately
74,200 employees, to approximately 31,800 employees as of September 30, 2004 (including the impact
of attrition and other employee workforce reductions in the ordinary course of business). In addition, the
restructuring plans included the exit of a significant number of owned and leased facilities, totaling
approximately 15.9 million square feet. All of these sites were exited as of September 30, 2003.
We have completed the restructuring actions but continue to evaluate the remaining restructuring
reserves at the end of each reporting period. Additional charges or reversals may be required if the
expected amount of sublease rental income changes in the future or if other circumstances change.
Refer to Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements for additional details on our business
restructuring program.
Fiscal 2004
The net reversals were primarily related to employee separations and net contract settlements for
amounts lower than originally estimated. Net facility-closing charges were due to changes in estimated
costs and reductions in expected sublease rental income.
Fiscal 2003
The net reversals were primarily related to actual termination benefits and curtailment costs for employee
separations that were lower than the estimated amounts due to certain differences in actual versus
assumed demographics, including age, service lives and salaries of the separated employees. In
addition, net contract settlement reversals were related to the settlement of certain contractual obligations
and purchase commitments for amounts lower than originally estimated. Facility closing charges were
primarily due to lower estimates for expected sublease rental income on certain properties, offset by
reversals resulting from negotiated settlements for lower amounts than originally planned on certain
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properties. The adjustments to prior asset write-downs included changes to original plans for certain
owned facility closings and reversals of inventory reserves as we utilized more discontinued product
inventory than anticipated.
Fiscal 2002
The net charges primarily related to additional employee workforce reductions; revisions to facility
closings as a result of changes in estimates for the amount and timing of expected sublease rental
income; net asset write-downs primarily related to property, plant and equipment, capitalized software
and inventory associated with additional product exits and the disposition of a manufacturing facility. The
net gains on sales were related to business dispositions including the enterprise professional services
business and the billing and customer care business.
Pension, Postretirement and Postemployment Benefits
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)
Pension benefit credit
Postretirement benefit cost
Postemployment benefit cost (credit)
Net pension, postretirement and postemployment benefit credit
Included in:
Business restructuring
Other costs and expenses
Discontinued operations
Net credit

$ (1,111)
243
40
$ (828)
$

$

(828)
(828)

$ (1,097 )
351
(93)
$ (839)

$ (575 )
290
(17 )
$ (302)

$

$

$

(118)
(721)
(839)

544
(955)
109
$ (302)

We maintain defined benefit pension plans covering the majority of employees and retirees, as well as
postretirement benefit plans for U.S. retirees that include health care, dental benefits and life insurance
coverage. Additionally, we offer various postemployment benefits to certain employees after employment
but before retirement, including disability benefits, severance pay and workers’ compensation. Refer to
Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for further information.
Excluding the amounts reflected in business restructuring and discontinued operations, approximately
two-thirds of the net credit is reflected in operating expenses, with the balance in costs used to determine
our gross margin.
The changes in the net credit during fiscal 2004 compared to fiscal 2003 were due to the net impact of the
following items:
x
x
x
x
x
x

Revised estimates of termination benefits and curtailments during fiscal 2003 that related to
restructuring actions.
Elimination of certain pension death benefits and reductions in certain retiree health care benefits.
Reduction in the discount rate from 6.5% to 5.75%.
Reduction in the market-related value of plan assets due to the impact of actual losses incurred
on plan assets during fiscal 2002 and 2001.
Accelerated gain amortization related to postemployment benefits during fiscal 2003.
Initial recognition of the prescription drug benefit under Medicare Part D of the Medicare
Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) and expected reduction
in plan participation rates as a result of recent experience and the Act.
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The changes in the net credit during fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002 were due to the net impact of the
following items:
x
x
x
x
x

Significant termination benefits and curtailments related to restructuring actions during fiscal
2002.
Employee workforce reductions associated with our restructuring actions.
Reduction in the discount rate from 7.0% to 6.5%.
Reduction in the market related value of plan assets and a reduction in the expected rate of
return on plan assets from 9.0% to 8.75%.
Accelerated gain amortization related to postemployment benefits during fiscal 2003.

We expect the net credit will decrease by approximately $200 million during fiscal 2005, primarily due to
negative asset returns during fiscal 2001 and 2002 which continue to reduce the market related value of
plan assets, the reduction in the expected rate of return on pension plan assets from 8.75% to 8.5%, and
the impact of the tentative collective bargaining agreement, if ratified.
Other Income (Expense), Net and Interest Expense
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
$ (84)
$ (401)
$ (212)
(25)
(7)
(97)
49
725
75
(10)
4
89
86
114
135
16
73
(10)
10
(46 )
(22)
(63)
(209)
89
(18)
(157)
$ 240
$ (428)
$ 292

(in millions)
Legal settlements
SEC settlement
Debt conversion cost and gain on extinguishments, net
Gain on sales of businesses, net
Gain (loss) on sale of investments
Interest income
Interest income on tax settlements
Gain (loss) on foreign currency transactions
Other-than-temporary write-down of investments
Other, net
Other income (expense), net
Interest expense

$ 396

$ 353

$ 382

Other income (expense)
Fiscal 2004
We recognized charges of $56 million related to the shareowner lawsuit settlement, including $91 million
related to changes in the estimated fair value of the warrants that are expected to be issued. These
changes are primarily caused by the market price of our common stock and are likely to continue until the
warrants are issued. We also recovered $40 million from fiduciary insurance carriers and recognized a $5
million charge related to changes in the fair value of our common stock that was deposited into escrow
and subsequently sold. The remaining legal settlement charges of $28 million were primarily related to
Y2K claims under our separation agreement with Avaya and the prior period sale of our consumer
products business. Refer to Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on
legal settlements.
We reached an agreement with the SEC and paid a $25 million fine in connection with the SEC’s
investigation into our revenue recognition issues previously identified in November and December of
2000. The final judgment and consent decree to settle the investigation with the SEC was entered into
during May 2004.
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The gain on sale of an investment was primarily related to the maturity of a forward contract for the sale
of Corning common stock we owned. We obtained the shares of Corning in connection with the sale of
certain joint ventures associated with OFS in fiscal 2002.
Interest income on tax settlements was due primarily to the favorable resolution of certain prior year
federal income tax audits and the recognition of a federal net operating loss carryback claim under tax
sharing agreements with AT&T, Avaya and Agere. Refer to Note 7 to our consolidated financial
statements for further information on these tax matters.
Fiscal 2003
Legal settlements included a $481 million charge for the settlement of purported class action lawsuits and
other lawsuits against us and certain of our current and former directors and officers for alleged violation
of federal securities laws, as well as for ERISA, and related claims. The charge included $315 million for
payment in cash, stock or a combination of both; warrants, originally valued at $95 million, which
increased to $161 million during fiscal 2003 as a result of a change in their estimated fair value; and $5
million in administrative fees. Partially offsetting the charge was an $80 million reserve reduction for a
legal settlement associated with our former consumer products leasing business, due to lower than
anticipated claims experience.
The debt conversion cost and gain on extinguishments was a result of the exchange of a portion of 7.75%
trust preferred securities and certain other debt obligations for shares of our common stock and cash.
Refer to Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on these exchanges,
including the number of securities exchanged.
The other-than-temporary write-down of investments was due to sustained weakness in the private equity
markets. Refer to the section “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” for a
discussion of Equity Price Risk.
The gain on sales of businesses included $41 million of business disposition reserve reversals, primarily
associated with the resolution of contingencies related to the sale of OFS.
Fiscal 2002
Other income (expense) included $725 million of gains from business dispositions, $664 million of which
was from the sale of the OFS business and China joint ventures, and interest income of $187 million,
including $73 million related to the favorable resolution of federal income tax audits. This was partially
offset by a legal settlement of $162 million related to our former consumer products leasing business, a
$50 million purchase price adjustment to settle a claim with VTech Holdings Limited and VTech
Electronics Netherlands B.V., and other-than-temporary investment write-downs of $209 million, primarily
related to an investment in Commscope.
Interest Expense
Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
Interest expense increased by $43 million during fiscal 2004, primarily due to the exchange of our 8.00%
redeemable convertible preferred stock for 8.00% subordinated debentures in November 2003. The
impact of additional interest on the 2.75% convertible securities that were issued in the third quarter of
fiscal 2003 was largely offset by our debt recapitalization efforts.
Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
Interest expense decreased by $29 million due to lower borrowings and amortization of fees related to a
terminated credit facility, partially offset by higher average outstanding balances related to our trust
preferred securities.
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Income Taxes
Fiscal 2004
The tax benefit of $939 million during fiscal 2004 included the impact of maintaining a valuation allowance
on substantially all of our net deferred tax assets. As a result, federal and certain state and non-U.S.
income taxes attributable to pre-tax income were not provided. Refer to the “Application of Critical
Accounting Estimates” included in this MD&A and Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for
more detail regarding income taxes.
The tax benefit also included current tax expense related to certain non-U.S. operations and discrete
items. The discrete items included the recognition of an $816 million net operating loss carryback claim
and $142 million primarily related to the net favorable resolution of income tax audits for years 1990
through 1998. We also recognized interest income of $135 million related to these items.
The United States Congress passed the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Creation Act”),
which the President signed into law on October 22, 2004. Key provisions of the Jobs Creation Act include
a temporary incentive for United States multinational corporations to repatriate foreign earnings, a
domestic manufacturing deduction and international tax reforms designed to improve the global
competitiveness of United States businesses. Our review of the Jobs Creation Act’s provisions and our
tax positions indicates that it will not have a material effect on our financial condition or results of
operations during fiscal 2005.
Fiscal 2003
The tax benefit of $233 million during fiscal 2003 included the impact of maintaining a full valuation
allowance on our net deferred tax assets and current tax expense, primarily related to certain non-U.S.
operations, and several discrete items. Federal and certain state and non-U.S. income tax benefits
attributable to pre-tax losses were not provided. The discrete items included the realization of $213
million in tax benefits from fully-reserved net operating losses as a result of carryback claims for taxes
paid in prior years, principally by previously merged companies and our former foreign sales corporation.
In addition, a $77 million tax benefit was recognized as a result of an expected favorable resolution of
certain tax audit matters.
Fiscal 2002
The provision for income taxes of $4.8 billion during fiscal 2002 was primarily due to a charge for a full
valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets. At that time, several significant developments were
considered in determining the need for a full valuation allowance, including the continuing severe market
decline, uncertainty and lack of visibility in the telecommunications market as a whole, a significant
decrease in sequential quarterly revenue levels, a decrease in sequential earnings after several quarters
of sequential improvement, and the possible need for further restructuring and cost reduction actions to
attain profitability. As a result, federal and certain state and non-U.S. income tax benefits attributable to
pre-tax losses were not provided.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT
INS

(in millions)
Voice networking
Data and network management
Optical networking
Total revenues
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total revenues

$ 1,490
1,494
$ 2,984

$ 1,754
1,546
$ 3,300

35%

27%

Gross margin %
Segment income (loss)
Return on sales

Years ended September 30,
2003
Change
2002
$ 1,560
(14%)
$ 2,122
1,034
(10%)
1,132
706
1%
1,345
$ 3,300
(10%)
$ 4,599

2004
$ 1,336
933
715
$ 2,984

$

345

$

12%

102
3%

(15%)
(3%)
(10%)
$

Change
(26%)
(9%)
(48%)
(28%)

$ 2,444
2,155
$ 4,599

8 pts

(1%)

243

$ (1,693)

9 pts

(37%)

(28%)
(28%)
(28%)
28 pts
$

1,795
40 pts

Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
INS revenues declined by $316 million due primarily to a significant reduction in sales to AT&T as it
completed certain capital spending programs in prior periods and reduced its annual spending during
fiscal 2004. Five customers accounted for approximately 39% and 40% of INS revenues during fiscal
2004 and 2003, respectively. Lower non-U.S. sales were primarily in APAC, including China, as a result
of competitive pricing pressures and the timing of completing certain project deployments. The
decreases in APAC sales were primarily prevalent in the data and network management and optical
product lines.
Voice networking revenues declined by $224 million due to lower circuit switching product sales.
Traditional circuit switching product sales are currently declining at a faster rate than the growth in next
generation technologies. The decline is also more prevalent in the U.S., where certain customers are
shifting their spending to other areas, such as broadband access (DSL). Circuit switching represented
approximately 42% and 52% of voice networking revenues during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Beginning in fiscal 2004, INS voice networking revenues include an allocation of revenue earned from
switching equipment common platform sales to Mobility customers. This attribution is intended to better
match revenue from these common platforms with the underlying R&D investment. The revenue impact
to voice networking results for fiscal 2004 was $85 million. Data and network management revenues
declined $101 million due primarily to lower revenues from multi-service switching products. Optical
networking revenues increased by $9 million as higher sales of metro-optical products in the U.S. and
EMEA, offset lower revenues from legacy optical products. We believe that we have transitioned most of
our optical product contracts with key customers to next generation optical products.
Although customer-spending levels for INS products are not expected to change significantly in the
aggregate, the mix of what they purchase is likely to continue to change or fluctuate. Our future revenues
will be impacted by our success in offering a product portfolio that effectively addresses customer needs.
Quarterly revenues declined sequentially each quarter except in the fourth quarter and ranged from $715
million to $790 million during fiscal 2004. We expect that our quarterly revenue levels will remain volatile
as customers carefully consider alternatives in transitioning to next generation networks.
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Segment income improved by $243 million. This improvement was driven by a $143 million increase in
gross margin and a $100 million decrease in operating expenses. The higher gross margin was due to
an eight-percentage point increase in the gross margin rate, which more than offset the impact of lower
revenues. The increase in the gross margin rate primarily resulted from certain items, including lower
inventory- and warranty-related charges that accounted for four percentage points of the improvement
and continued cost reductions. R&D and SG&A expenses declined due to the impact of restructuring
actions during fiscal 2003. However, segment operating expenses included charges of $23 million
related to the Telica acquisition for IPR&D, employee compensation expense and amortization of
intangible assets during fiscal 2004.
Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
INS revenues declined by $1.3 billion. The $690 million decline in the U.S. was due to reductions and
delays in capital spending by large telecommunications service providers. The $609 million decline in the
non-U.S. regions was particularly concentrated in EMEA and APAC. In EMEA, revenues decreased by
$303 million as certain European service providers responded to excess network capacity, principally
within the optical area. To a lesser extent, the decline was also due to the timing of revenues associated
with several projects in China.
Voice networking revenues declined by $562 million due to lower circuit switching product sales. Data
and network management revenues declined by $98 million due to a decrease in access networking
revenues. Optical networking revenues declined by $639 million, primarily related to lower sales of longhaul products, as service providers in Europe and the U.S. responded to excess network capacity.
Segment income improved by $1.8 billion. This improvement was driven by a $961 million increase in
gross margin, despite lower sales volume, and an $834 million decrease in operating expenses. The
gross margin rate increased by 28 percentage points primarily due to lower inventory-related charges,
that accounted for 12 percentage points of the improvement, and continued cost reductions from supply
chain rationalization and efficiency gains. The remaining improvement in the gross margin rate was due
to a more favorable product mix. The lower operating expenses were due to the restructuring program
and less discretionary spending, of which over 80% was from lower R&D spending resulting from product
rationalizations.
Mobility

(in millions)
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total revenues
Gross margin %
Segment income
Return on sales

2004
$ 2,843
1,164
$ 4,007

Years ended September 30,
2003
Change
2002
$ 2,116
34%
$ 3,578
964
21%
866
$ 3,080
30%
$ 4,444

51%
$ 1,240

40%
$

31%

173
6%

11 pts
$

1,067
25 pts

Change
(41%)
11%
(31%)

28%
$

2
0%

12 pts
$

171
6 pts

Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
Mobility revenues increased $927 million. U.S. revenues increased $727 million due primarily to higher
CDMA sales to Verizon Wireless and Sprint as they continued to upgrade their wireless networks and
deploy additional capacity to support subscriber growth. These two customers accounted for 61% and
52% of total Mobility revenues during fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. Including these two
customers, five customers accounted for approximately 80% and 74% of Mobility revenues during fiscal
2004 and 2003, respectively. The $200 million increase in the non-U.S. regions was primarily due to
higher UMTS data card sales in EMEA and higher CDMA sales in APAC and other Americas as certain
customers continued to expand their networks.
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Quarterly revenues ranged from $951 million to $1.1 billion during fiscal 2004. Although the quarterly
revenues during fiscal 2004 have been more stable than in prior years, future quarterly revenue trends
remain volatile as a result of the high concentration of revenue among a limited number of customers and
shifts in their spending patterns, as well as the timing of revenue recognition related to long-term
contracts.
Approximately 91% of the fiscal 2004 wireless product revenue was derived from CDMA technology. We
continue to conduct third-generation UMTS / W-CDMA trials in the U.S. and China. We expect certain
customers to continue to increase investments in mobile high-speed data equipment during fiscal 2005.
Segment income improved by $1.1 billion. This improvement was driven by an $820 million increase in
gross margin and a $247 million decrease in operating expenses. Gross margin increased due to higher
sales volume and an 11 percentage point increase in the gross margin rate. The increase in the gross
margin rate was driven by favorable product and geographic mix, continued cost reductions, lower
inventory and warranty charges and better absorption of fixed costs due to the higher revenues. R&D
and SG&A expenses declined primarily due to the impact of restructuring actions and relocating certain
activities to areas with lower cost structures. We also recognized a $50 million impairment charge for
UMTS capitalized software during fiscal 2003. UMTS software development costs continued to be
expensed as incurred. Lower R&D expenses accounted for 85% of the decrease in operating expenses.
Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
Mobility revenues decreased $1.4 billion. The decrease resulted from reductions in capital spending,
primarily in the U.S., as large service providers continued to preserve capital resources. The decline in
U.S. revenues were also attributable to two large service providers, AT&T Wireless and Cingular, which
selected alternatives to our TDMA technologies. Revenues from these two customers represented 7%
and 21% of Mobility sales during fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively, and the decline in revenues
attributable to these two customers represented 51% of the Mobility revenue decline in the U.S. during
fiscal 2003. Non-U.S. revenues increased by $98 million during fiscal 2003, primarily as a result of large
CDMA network build-outs in the APAC region, primarily in China and India. Quarterly revenues ranged
from $624 million to nearly $1.1 billion during fiscal 2003. Approximately 85% of our wireless product
revenue was derived from CDMA technology.
Segment income improved by $171 million. The improvement was due to a $177 million decrease in
operating expenses, partially offset by a $6 million decline in gross margin. Despite the decline in
revenues, gross margin was consistent with the fiscal 2002 level. The gross margin rate increased by 12
percentage points in fiscal 2003. The higher gross margin rate was due to lower inventory-related
charges, that accounted for eight percentage points of the improvement, supply chain rationalization and
efficiency gains, and, to a lesser extent, favorable product mix. The lower operating expenses reflected a
$160 million decline in R&D expenses. This decline included a $100 million net impact of UMTS asset
impairment charges of $50 million and $250 million during fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively, as well as
expensing UMTS development costs as incurred during fiscal 2003. The remainder of the operating
expense decline was primarily due to cost reductions realized from our restructuring program and lower
discretionary spending.
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Services

(in millions)
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Total revenues

2004
$ 1,063
869
$ 1,932

Gross margin %
Segment income
Return on sales

Years ended September 30,
2003
Change
2002
$ 1,006
6%
$ 1,754
834
4%
1,007
$ 1,840
5%
$ 2,761

25%
$

282

19%
$

15%

225
12%

6 pts
$

57
3 pts

Change
(43%)
(17%)
(33%)

14%
$

227
8%

5 pts
$

(2)
4 pts

Fiscal 2004 vs. 2003
Services revenues increased by $92 million. Revenues increased in the U.S. by $57 million and in the
non-U.S. regions by $35 million. Five customers accounted for approximately 38% and 36% of Services
revenues during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. Quarterly revenues ranged from $466 million to $514
million during fiscal 2004.
The increase in revenues was due to higher maintenance and professional services. Professional
services increased primarily due to new government contracts. Our traditional installation services
decreased as a result of competitive pricing pressures, more customer self-installation, and lower wireline
product sales. Deployment services related to researching, selecting and preparing sites for placement of
our customers’ wireless equipment have partially offset the decrease in traditional installation services.
Segment income increased by $57 million. This improvement was due to a $139 million increase in gross
margin, partially offset by an $82 million increase in operating expenses. The higher gross margin
resulted from an increase in the gross margin rate and to a lesser extent higher revenues. The gross
margin rate increased by six-percentage points as a result of employee workforce reductions. Operating
expenses increased due to higher sales and marketing expenses in order to expand worldwide service
offerings.
Fiscal 2003 vs. 2002
Services revenues declined by $921 million. Revenues declined in all regions except APAC, due to a
large project in China. The decline in U.S. revenues was primarily due to lower deployment services for
large service providers.
Deployment services accounted for approximately 85% of the total Services decline. These services
declined primarily due to lower sales of wireline equipment requiring installation. Competitive pricing
pressures have also adversely affected deployment services.
Segment income decreased by $2 million. This decline was due to a $27 million decline in gross margin,
partially offset by a $25 million decrease in operating expenses. The services gross margin rate
increased by five-percentage points in fiscal 2003. The gross margin rate improvement was primarily due
to a larger proportion of services revenues being derived from maintenance services, which historically
have higher gross margin rates than engineering and installation services, and significant cost reduction
efforts aimed at aligning our cost structure with market opportunities. The operating expense decrease
was primarily due to employee workforce reductions under our restructuring program and lower
discretionary spending.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash flow overview
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities increased $366 million during fiscal 2004 to $4.9
billion, primarily from $634 million of cash provided by operating activities and $276 million of proceeds
from common stock issued for certain employee benefit plans, partially offset by the repayment of certain
debt obligations and convertible securities of $500 million.
Operating activities
Operating activities provided $634 million of cash during fiscal 2004. This primarily resulted from net
income of $1.4 billion (adjusted for non-cash items of $587 million) offset by changes in other operating
assets and liabilities of $799 million. The changes in other operating assets and liabilities included an
increase in other current assets related to an $861 million income tax refund that is expected to be
received during fiscal 2005 and cash outlays for our restructuring program of $227 million and capitalized
software of $258 million that were partially offset by the impact of certain insurance and customer
settlements and customer financing recoveries of approximately $600 million. Cash flow from operating
activities also included net proceeds from tax refunds of $118 million (including related interest).
Operating activities used approximately $1.0 billion of cash during fiscal 2003. The improvement in cash
flow from operating activities during fiscal 2004 as compared with fiscal 2003 was primarily due to
improved financial results driven by cost reductions, higher settlements and recoveries, and lower cash
outlays for business restructuring.
Changes in working capital requirements (receivables, inventories and contracts in process, accounts
payable and deferred revenue) provided $18 million of cash during fiscal 2004. We periodically sell
certain non-U.S. receivables with extended payment terms where it is cost effective to do so. We sold
$468 million of receivables during fiscal 2004, of which $263 million was due after September 30, 2004.
This impact is reflected in the change in receivables. We also commit to extended billing terms on a
limited basis, of which $232 million was outstanding as of September 30, 2004. Our days sales
outstanding was 51 days and inventory turnover was 6.9 as of September 30, 2004.
Generally, working capital requirements will increase or decrease with changes in quarterly revenue
levels. Our working capital requirements have also been reduced through more favorable billing terms,
collection efforts and streamlined supply chain operations. In addition to changes in working capital, the
timing of certain payments will also impact our quarterly cash flow. For example, while employee
incentive awards are accrued throughout the fiscal year, they are usually paid during the first quarter of
the subsequent fiscal year. The fiscal 2004 annual incentive awards of approximately $600 million are
expected to be paid during the first quarter of fiscal 2005.
Operating activities used $948 million of cash during fiscal 2003. This primarily resulted from a net loss of
$566 million (adjusted for non-cash items of $204 million) and changes in other operating assets and
liabilities of $931 million. This was partially offset by a reduction in working capital requirements of $549
million. The reduction in working capital was due to the decrease in sales volume during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2003 compared with the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. The changes in other operating
assets and liabilities include cash outlays for our restructuring program of $629 million and capitalized
software of $313 million.

F-26

Operating activities used $756 million of cash during fiscal 2002. This primarily resulted from a loss from
continuing operations of $2.9 billion (adjusted for non-cash items of $8.9 billion) and changes in other
operating assets and liabilities of $1.6 billion, offset in part by a reduction in working capital requirements
of $3.7 billion. The reduction in working capital primarily resulted from the significant decrease in sales
volume during fiscal 2002 compared with fiscal 2001. In addition to the effect of reduced sales volume,
the decline in inventory and contracts in process was also a result of our continued efforts to streamline
supply chain operations and accelerate billings for our long-term contracts. The changes in other
operating assets and liabilities include cash outlays under our restructuring program of $1.0 billion and a
reduction in other operating assets and liabilities due to the decrease in sales volume and employee
workforce. Federal and state income tax refunds amounted to approximately $1.0 billion, including $616
million received in connection with changes in tax legislation.
Investing activities
Investing activities used $869 million of cash during fiscal 2004. These activities included net purchases of
marketable securities of $821 million and capital expenditures of $157 million, of which $54 million was for
internal use software. Partially offsetting these cash outflows were cash proceeds of $63 million from the
sale of certain manufacturing and real estate facilities in the United States and China. We do not expect to
receive any significant cash proceeds from business or asset dispositions in the near future. We may
continue to purchase marketable securities in an attempt to improve our investment returns.
Investing activities provided $758 million of cash during fiscal 2003. This was primarily due to net maturities
of marketable securities of $845 million, proceeds from the sale of facilities of $158 million and the sale of
certain other investments of $78 million. Capital expenditures were $291 million, which included $102
million for the repurchase of certain real estate under a synthetic lease agreement that was previously used
to fund certain real estate construction costs. In addition, we purchased the remaining 10% minority interest
in AG Communication Systems for $23 million.
Investing activities provided $757 million of cash during fiscal 2002. This was primarily from the $2.6 billion
of net cash proceeds received from the disposition of businesses and the sale of certain manufacturing
operations, partially offset by $1.5 billion of purchases of marketable securities and $449 million of capital
expenditures. Cash proceeds from dispositions primarily included the $2.1 billion received from the sale of
our OFS business, $60 million from the sale of our voice enhancement and echo cancellation business,
$93 million from the sale of New Venture Partners II LP, $250 million from the sale of our billing and
customer care business and $96 million from the sale of certain manufacturing operations.
Financing activities
Financing activities used $239 million of cash during fiscal 2004. We used $500 million of cash to repay
or repurchase certain debt obligations and convertible securities, including $249 million under our
recapitalization program and $216 million of variable interest notes related to our Insured Special Purpose
Trust. We also received net proceeds of $276 million from the issuance of 91 million common shares for
certain employee benefit plans.
Financing activities provided $1.1 billion of cash during fiscal 2003. This was primarily from the issuance
of 2.75% Series A and Series B convertible senior debentures for a net amount of $1.6 billion. A portion
of these proceeds were used to repay or retire certain debt obligations and convertible securities, all of
which had higher interest or dividend rates than the debentures issued (the remainder of the proceeds
were used for general corporate purposes). Specifically, we paid approximately $500 million toward
these obligations, including the prepayment of $240 million of a mortgage loan for three of our primary
facilities, retirement of $176 million of certain other long-term debt obligations and $69 million for the
partial retirement of 8% redeemable convertible preferred stock. We also received other proceeds of
$113 million from prepaid forward sales agreements for our investment in Corning common stock, which
we received in connection with the sale of our OFS business. These forward sales agreements were
reflected as secured borrowings as of September 30, 2003, and matured on October 1, 2003. We also
paid our 8% redeemable convertible preferred stock dividend requirement of $91 million with 46 million
shares of our common stock and $6 million of cash.
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Financing activities provided $468 million of cash during fiscal 2002. This included $1.8 billion of
proceeds from the sale of 7.75% convertible trust preferred securities in March 2002. Fees paid in
connection with this transaction were approximately $46 million. Partially offsetting these proceeds were
repayments of $1.1 billion for amounts outstanding under credit facilities and other short-term borrowings
and $149 million for preferred stock dividends.
Recapitalization program
We are currently authorized by our board of directors to issue shares of our common stock or use cash in
exchange for our convertible securities and certain other debt obligations. Since the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2002, we retired approximately $2.5 billion of our convertible securities and certain other debt
obligations in exchange for approximately 643 million shares of our common stock and $736 million in
cash in separate, multiple and privately negotiated transactions. Most of these transactions reduced
future obligations at a discount and reduced annual fixed charges such as interest and dividend
requirements. We may use cash or issue more of our common shares in similar transactions in the
future. If our common stock is issued, it would result in additional dilution to our common shareowners.
Subsequent to September 30, 2004, and through December 3, 2004, we retired $20 million of our debt
obligations for approximately $21 million of cash.
We exchanged all of our outstanding 8% redeemable convertible preferred stock for 8% convertible
subordinated debentures on November 24, 2003. This action increased our flexibility to settle this
obligation by eliminating certain legal requirements related to available capital surplus as defined by
Delaware law.
Our 8% convertible subordinated debentures are redeemable at the option of the holders on various
dates. The next available redemption date at the option of the holder is August 2, 2007. We have the
right to redeem the debentures beginning August 15, 2006. We have the option to satisfy the redemption
with cash, shares of our common stock or a combination of both. The principal amount of these
debentures was $817 million as of September 30, 2004.
Cash management
Achieving optimal returns on our cash balance involves concentrating domestic cash in a primary account
with our lead bank in order to make efficient investment decisions in various instruments and maturities.
Short-term domestic cash is invested daily in money market funds and other short-term instruments such
as U.S. commercial paper and discount agency bills. Strategic long-term domestic cash is outsourced to
various fund managers and the portfolio consists of investment grade quality debt securities such as
treasury notes, corporate bonds, high quality asset-backed securities and government agency bonds with
various maturities. International cash is invested in international money market funds, time deposits and
other bank accounts. Approximately 80% of our cash and marketable securities was held domestically as
of September 30, 2004.
Future capital requirements and funding sources
We do not expect our operations will generate cash on a sustainable basis until our pre-tax income
exceeds the amount of net non-cash income items, which have been driven primarily by our pension
credit. Our pension credit was $1.1 billion during fiscal 2004. Our cash requirements during the next few
years are primarily related to funding our operations, capital expenditures, debt obligations and other
matters discussed below and in our contractual obligations table. We believe our cash and cash
equivalents of $3.4 billion and marketable securities of $1.5 billion as of September 30, 2004, are
sufficient to fund our cash requirements for fiscal 2005 as well as the following few years. However, we
cannot provide assurance that our actual cash requirements will not be greater than we currently expect.
If sources of liquidity are not available or if we cannot generate sufficient cash flow from operations, we
might be required to obtain additional sources of funds through additional operating improvements, capital
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market transactions, asset sales or financing from third parties, or a combination thereof. We cannot
provide assurance that these additional sources of funds will be available or, if available, would have
reasonable terms.
On November 8, 2004, we received written confirmation from the IRS that the Joint Committee approved
our tentative agreement with the IRS that allowed for a tax refund of approximately $816 million (plus
statutory interest to the date of payment). We expect to receive the refund during fiscal 2005, following
completion of the IRS’s audit of our 2001 federal income tax return. The refund will be paid by the IRS to
AT&T and, under our tax sharing agreements with AT&T, would then be payable by AT&T to us. We do
not believe there are any other matters that would impact the refund claim.
The cash requirements of our restructuring program are $2.6 billion, of which $2.4 billion had been paid
through September 30, 2004. The remaining cash requirement is expected to be paid over the next 11
years, including approximately $100 million during fiscal 2005. This cash requirement is primarily for
lease obligations, which are net of expected sublease rental income of approximately $137 million. Our
cash requirements could increase in the future years if we do not receive this expected income.
We do not expect to make contributions to our qualified U.S. pension plans in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006.
Annual contributions to our non-qualified and non-U.S. pension plans are expected to be approximately
$50 million over the next several years. Legislative and regulatory changes were passed that alter the
manner in which liabilities are determined for the purpose of calculating required pension contributions.
The funding requirements for our pension plans are not expected to be significantly affected through fiscal
2006 as a result of these changes. We are unable to provide an estimate of future funding requirements
beyond fiscal 2006 for U.S. pension plans. However, based on our actuarial projections, we believe it is
unlikely that any required contributions would have a material effect on our liquidity during fiscal 2007
through fiscal 2009.
We currently provide retiree health care benefits for our retirees in the United States. These benefits are
provided under a single plan covering 48,000 management retirees and 71,000 formerly represented
retirees as well as an additional 81,000 dependents of retirees. The plans for management and formerly
represented retirees are accounted for separately. Historically, retiree health care benefits were funded
through plan assets set aside in trusts and transfers of excess pension assets. There are currently no
plan assets available in these trusts to fund the obligations of the management retirees. There are
approximately $600 million of assets in the trust that is available to fund the obligations of the formerly
represented retirees, and approximately $400 million of plan assets in a welfare benefits trust that can be
made available upon authorization from our senior management.
We are permitted to transfer pension plan assets that are in excess of 125% of pension plan obligations
under Section 420 of the Internal Revenue Code to fund retiree health care benefits. The funding levels
were below the required thresholds that would allow for Section 420 transfers in either of our U.S.
pension plans as of the January 1, 2004 valuation date. The next valuation date is January 1, 2005. Our
cumulative Section 420 transfers during the past several years were $1.9 billion, although no transfers
were made within the management retiree plan since fiscal 2002 or within the formerly represented
retiree plan since fiscal 2003. If a Section 420 transfer is made, we are required to maintain a certain
level of cost per participant for a period of five years beginning with the year of transfer. As a result,
although these excess pension asset transfers can help fund retiree health care benefits, they limit the
ability to implement effective cost reductions in the future. We expect to seek legislative changes to allow
more flexibility regarding this aspect of cost maintenance, together with our unions. If we are successful
in obtaining the legislative changes, we believe that a majority of the Company’s funding requirements for
formerly represented retirees could be addressed through Section 420 transfers based on current
actuarial assumptions. However, no assurances can be given that we will be successful in these efforts.
If the legislative changes are not obtained by September 1, 2006, the Company’s obligation to fund $400
million to a trust, as described below, terminates, and the Company can change the level of its subsidy at
its sole discretion beginning January 1, 2007.
The retiree health care benefit payments were approximately $500 million for formerly represented
retirees and approximately $275 million for management retirees during fiscal 2004 after plan participant
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contributions of $80 million. The benefits for formerly represented retirees were funded through the
assets that were available in the trusts. The benefits for management retirees were funded through
Company contributions of $225 million and the remaining trust assets. We received $212 million from our
welfare benefits trust in October 2004 as a reimbursement for management retiree health care
contributions that we made during fiscal 2004. The Company’s expected funding requirements for retiree
health care benefits are expected to be $201 million, $426 million, $534 million, $494 million and $465
million during fiscal 2005 and the next four consecutive fiscal years, respectively. These amounts
exclude potential Section 420 transfers, $400 million that we agreed to contribute to a trust through
September 30, 2012, in accordance with the tentative agreement with our unions, and approximately
$400 million of plan assets in a welfare benefits trust that can be made available upon authorization from
our senior management. However, expected annual Medicare Part D subsidies of approximately $60
million are included beginning in fiscal 2007. These expected funding requirements are subject to
change.
As discussed in more detail in Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements, we may fund up to $315
million of our shareowner litigation settlement with cash, common stock or a combination of both, at our
option. On December 24, 2003, we deposited 33 million shares of our common stock into escrow,
representing the initial $100 million payment of the settlement amount. The appeals process has ended
and the claims administration process is almost complete. We expect the final distribution to occur during
the first or second quarter of fiscal 2005.
We expect to file a shelf registration statement to register 200 million shares of our common stock that
may be issued upon the exercise of the warrants we will be issuing as part of the settlement proceeds for
our shareowner litigation.
We have effective shelf registration statements with the SEC for the issuance of up to approximately $1.9
billion of securities, including shares of common stock and preferred stock, debt securities, warrants,
stock purchase contracts and stock purchase units.
Contractual obligations and other commercial commitments and contingencies
Our contractual obligations as defined by the SEC’s rules and regulations are presented in the table
below. However, our expected cash flow cannot be entirely assessed based on such obligations since
they are subject to changes based on future events. Many of our outsourced manufacturing agreements
are linked to future sales forecasts and will vary based on customer demands. Furthermore, we have
other cash requirements that are not included in the table. These requirements are related to our normal
operations that are not based on “commitments”, such as purchases of services on an “as needed” basis,
employee compensation, and other items. The most significant factor affecting our future cash flows is
our ability to earn and collect cash from our customers.

Contractual obligations

(in millions)
Long-term debt (a)
Interest on long-term debt
Operating leases (b)
Unconditional purchase obligations (c)
Total (d) (e)

Payments due in periods
Total
$ 6,003
4,338
1,001
856
$12,198

Less than
1 Year
$
1
345
180
783
$ 1,309

1-3
Years
$ 1,267
656
237
65
$ 2,225

3-5
Years
$ 291
503
161
8
$ 963

More than
5 Years
$ 4,444
2,834
423
$ 7,701

(a) The long-term debt principle amounts exclude $13 million of fair value basis adjustments and unamortized
discounts. Refer to Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for additional information related to longterm debt and convertible securities, including early redemption features.
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(b) The contractual obligations under operating leases exclude approximately $275 million of potential lease
obligations that were assigned to Avaya, Agere and other entities for which we remain secondarily liable.
The operating lease obligations for facilities reserved under our restructuring program of approximately $240
million are included in the table.
(c) Unconditional purchase obligations include all commitments to purchase goods or services that are
noncancelable or would impose a penalty if the agreements were cancelled prior to expiration. In these
situations, the amount of the penalty was included in the “Less than 1 Year” column in the table above.
Amounts exclude obligations included in accounts payable as of September 30, 2004.
(d) Certain other long-term liabilities of $1.0 billion are excluded in the above table because they do not
represent contractual obligations as defined by the SEC’s rules. These liabilities are contingencies related
to tax, litigation and insurance matters, long-term employee compensation and non-cash items, such as
minority interests and deferred income. The estimated future cash payments for these items are expected
to be $409 million in 2006 through 2007, $179 million in 2008 through 2009, and $134 million thereafter.
Other long-term liabilities related to facility reserves in connection with our restructuring plans are included in
the operating leases caption.
(e) Obligations related to pensions, postretirement health and welfare benefits and post-employment benefit
obligations are excluded from the table. Refer to Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements and the
above discussion for a summary of our expected contributions to these plans.

Other commercial commitments

(in millions)
Letters of credit
Undrawn customer commitments
Total

Amounts expiring in periods
Total
$ 353
11
$ 364

Less than
1 Year
$ 317
$ 317

1-3
Years
$ 26
1
$ 27

3-5
Years
$ 4
3
$ 7

More than 5
Years
$ 6
7
$ 13

Letters of credit
Letters of credit are obtained to ensure the performance or payment to third parties in accordance with
specified terms and conditions. Secured and unsecured outstanding letters of credit were $353 million
and $588 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The estimated fair value of these
letters of credit was $8 million and $14 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. On
October 1, 2004, we amended and restated our two primary agreements. The first agreement provides
for the issuance of up to $215 million of new letters of credit until September 30, 2006. The second
agreement permits us to request renewal of $199 million of letters of credit until September 30, 2006.
Under these revised agreements, we are no longer required to meet specified levels of quarterly
consolidated minimum operating income or to provide cash collateral for letters of credit issued.
However, we are required to maintain a minimum amount of unrestricted cash and short-term investments
in the U.S. as defined in the agreements.
On October 1, 2004, we also amended our Guarantee and Collateral Agreement and Collateral Sharing
Agreement. Under these agreements, certain of our U.S. subsidiaries guaranteed certain of our
obligations, and these subsidiaries pledged significant portions of their assets as collateral. These
agreements secure certain obligations, including letters of credit, specified hedging arrangements,
guarantees to lenders for vendor financing, lines of credit, cash management and other bank operating
arrangements. These outstanding obligations amounted to $261 million as of September 30, 2004.
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Customer financing commitments
September 30, 2004
Total loans
and
guarantees

Loans

$ 139
11
-

Total commitments

$ 150

Reserves

$ 135

(in millions)
Drawn commitments
Available but not drawn
Not available

September 30, 2003

Guarantees

Total loans
and
guarantees

Loans

$ 125

$ 14

$ 442

$ 354

3
-

8
-

49
14

6
14

43
-

$ 128

$ 22

$ 505

$ 374

$ 131

Guarantees
$

88

$ 415

We may provide or commit to additional customer financings on a limited basis. We are focusing on the
larger service providers that typically have less demand for such financing. We carefully review each
individual request for customer financing. Such review assesses the credit quality of the individual
borrowers, their respective business plans and market conditions. We also assess our ability to sell or
transfer the undrawn commitments and drawn borrowings to unrelated third parties.
We monitor drawn borrowings and undrawn commitments by assessing, among other things, each
customer's short-term and long-term liquidity positions, the customer’s current operating performance
versus plan, the execution challenges facing the customer, changes in the competitive landscape and the
customer’s management experience and depth. When potential problems are evident, we undertake
certain mitigating actions, including cancellation of commitments. Although these actions can limit the
extent of our losses, we remain exposed to the extent of drawn amounts. Our customer financing
commitments were reduced during fiscal 2004, as a result of the collections, settlement or write-off of
certain fully reserved notes and the expiration of several commitments.
Credit ratings
Our credit ratings are below investment grade. Any credit downgrade affects our ability to enter into and
maintain certain contracts on favorable terms and increases our cost of borrowing. Our credit ratings as
of December 3, 2004, are as follows:
Long-term
debt

8% convertible
securities

B
B2
B

CCC+
Caa1
CCC+

Rating Agency
Standard & Poor's (a)
Moody's (a)
Fitch (a)

_________
(a) Ratings outlook is positive.
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Liability to
subsidiary
trust issuing
preferred
securities
CCC
Caa1
CCC+

Last change

March 10, 2004
September 10, 2004
July 21, 2004

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices. We manage our exposure to risk from changing exchange rates and interest rates through the
use of derivative financial instruments, coupled with other strategies. Our risk management objective is to
minimize the effects of volatility on our cash flows by identifying the assets, liabilities or forecasted
transactions exposed to these risks and hedging them. Hedges may be achieved either by forward or
option contracts, swap derivatives, or terms embedded into certain contracts that affect the ultimate
amount of cash flows under the contract. The gains and losses on these exposures are generally offset
by reciprocal changes in the value of the hedging instruments when used because there is a high
correlation between the hedging instruments and the underlying exposures. We use derivative financial
instruments as risk management tools and not for trading or speculative purposes. Generally, price risk
on equity holdings is not hedged.
Foreign currency risk
As a multinational company, we conduct our business in a wide variety of currencies and are therefore
subject to market risk for changes in foreign exchange rates. We use foreign exchange forward and
option contracts to minimize exposure to the risk of the eventual net cash inflows and outflows resulting
from foreign currency denominated transactions with customers, suppliers and non-U.S. subsidiaries.
Our objective is to hedge all types of foreign currency risk to preserve our cash flows, but we generally do
not expect to designate these derivative instruments as hedges under current accounting standards
unless the benefits of doing so are material. Cash inflows and outflows denominated in the same foreign
currency are netted on a legal entity basis or at the corporate level. The corresponding net cash flow
exposure is appropriately hedged. To the extent that the forecasted cash flow exposures are overstated
or understated or if there is a shift in the timing of the anticipated cash flows during periods of currency
volatility, we may experience unanticipated currency gains or losses. We do not hedge our net
investment in non-U.S. entities because we view those investments as long-term in nature.
Our primary net foreign currency exposures as of September 30, 2004 and 2003 included the euro,
Chinese yuan, Japanese yen and British pound. The fair value of foreign exchange contracts is subject
to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. For the purpose of assessing this risk, we use a
sensitivity analysis to determine the effects that market risk exposures may have on the fair value of the
foreign currency forwards and options and on our results of operations. To perform the sensitivity
analysis, we assess the risk of loss in fair values from the effect of a hypothetical 10% change in the
value of foreign currencies, assuming no change in interest rates. For contracts outstanding as of
September 30, 2004 and 2003, a 10% adverse movement in the value of foreign currencies against the
U.S. dollar from the prevailing market rates, including the primary foreign currency exposures noted
above, would have resulted in an incremental pre-tax net unrealized loss of $32 million and $12 million,
respectively. The model to determine sensitivity assumes a parallel shift in all foreign currency exchange
spot rates, although exchange rates rarely move together in the same direction.
In fiscal 2004 we began using a value-at-risk (“VAR”) model to estimate and monitor our exposure to
financial market risks because we believe it to be a better statistical measure of risk. We use the Monte
Carlo simulation model to calculate VAR. This model estimates the potential loss in fair value of foreign
currency forwards and options over a defined period of time within a certain confidence level by randomly
generating different foreign currency exchange rates repeatedly and then applying those exchange rates
to our outstanding forwards and options. As a result of our foreign currency VAR calculations, we
estimate with 95 percent confidence that the fair value of our foreign currency derivatives would not
decline by more than $12 million over a quarterly period. Consistent with the nature of the economic
hedge, any changes in the value of the forwards and options would be offset by reciprocal changes in the
underlying exposure.
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Interest rate risk
We are exposed to various forms of interest rate risk. The fair value of our fixed-rate available-for-sale
marketable securities and the interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents may fluctuate as
interest rates change. In addition, if interest rates remain low, we may forgo the opportunity to obtain
more favorable interest rates on borrowings due to our fixed rate debt obligations. Our objective is to
mitigate the variability of cash inflows and outflows resulting from interest rate fluctuations by maintaining
a balanced mix of fixed and floating-rate debt and investments. We mitigate our interest rate risk by
entering into interest rate swaps on a portion of our debt obligations to make them variable-rate debt
instruments and by including fixed-rate assets in our investment portfolio. We also expect that these
transactions will reduce our overall cost of borrowing and increase investment returns.
As of September 30, 2004, we had interest rate swaps where we received fixed interest rates (5.5% and
7.25%) and paid floating rates based upon the three and six-month LIBOR rates plus agreed upon
spreads (ranging from 1.72% to 2.89%) on notional amounts aggregating $600 million. As of September
30, 2004, the three and six-month LIBOR rates were 2.02% and 2.20%, respectively. We do not foresee
any significant changes in our interest rate risk management strategy or in our exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.
The impacts of a sensitivity analysis we performed under a model that assumes a hypothetical 75 basis
point shift in interest rates are as follows:

(in millions)
Assets:
Short-term marketable securities
Long-term marketable securities
Interest rate swaps
Liabilities:
Long-term debt (including liability to
subsidiary trust issuing preferred
securities)

Fair value as of
September 30,
2004
$

Hypothetical
decrease in fair
value as of
September 30,
2004

858

$

Fair value as of
September 30,
2003
3

$

686

Hypothetical
decrease in fair
value as of
September 30,
2003
$

4

636
17

9
10

28

10

6,325

318

4,597

230

Our sensitivity analysis on long-term debt obligations excludes variable-rate debt instruments because
the changes in interest rates would not significantly affect the fair values of such instruments. In addition,
our variable-rate customer finance notes have been excluded because a significant portion of the
principal balances and related receivables for accrued interest are fully-reserved. Refer to Note 8 to our
consolidated financial statements for information related to long-term debt.
Equity price risk
Our investment portfolio includes equity investments in publicly held companies that are classified as
available-for-sale and other strategic equity holdings in privately held companies and venture funds.
These securities are exposed to price fluctuations and are generally concentrated in high-technology
industries. The carrying values of our available-for-sale equity securities and privately held securities were
$2 million and $75 million as of September 30, 2004, respectively. The carrying values of our availablefor-sale equity securities and privately held securities were $5 million and $131 million as of September
30, 2003, respectively.
We generally do not hedge our equity price risk due to hedging restrictions imposed by the issuers, illiquid
capital markets or our inability to hedge non-marketable equity securities in privately held companies. An
adverse movement in equity prices on our available-for-sale equity securities would not have a material
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impact due to their immaterial carrying values as of September 30, 2004 and 2003. An adverse
movement in equity prices on our holdings in privately held companies cannot be easily quantified, as our
ability to realize returns on investments depends on the investees’ ability to raise additional capital or
derive cash inflows from continuing operations or through liquidity events such as initial public offerings,
mergers or private sales.
The process of determining the fair values of our privately held equity investments inherently requires
certain assumptions and subjective judgments. These valuation assumptions and judgments include
consideration of: (1) the investee’s earnings and cash flow position, cash flow projections, and rate of
cash consumption; (2) recent rounds of equity infusions by us and other investors; (3) the strength of the
investee’s management; and (4) valuation data provided by the investee that may be compared with data
for peers. Investment impairment charges were $22 million, $63 million and $209 million during fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Similar charges may be required in the future if declines in the fair
value of investments are determined to be other-than-temporary.
We entered into prepaid forward sales agreements for all of our Corning shares during fiscal 2003. As a
result, we received proceeds of $113 million and locked in $64 million of unrealized appreciation. This
gain was recognized during fiscal 2004.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
Years ended September 30,
2003
2002
2001

2004
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues
Business restructuring
Goodwill impairment
Income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) per common share from
continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Dividends per common share

$

FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $
Assets
Debt
8.00% redeemable convertible preferred stock
Shareowners’ (deficit) equity

9,045 $
(20)
(939)
2,002

0.47
0.42
4,873
16,963
5,990
(1,379)
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8,470
(184)
35
(233)
(770)

$

(0.29)
(0.29)
$

4,507
15,911
5,980
868
(4,239)

12,321 $ 21,294
1,490
7,567
826
3,849
4,757
(5,734)
(11,826)
(14,170)

(3.51)
(3.51)
$

4,420
17,791
5,106
1,680
(4,734)

2000
$ 28,904
924
1,433

(4.18)
(4.18)
0.06
$

2,390
33,664
4,409
1,834
11,023

0.44
0.43
0.08
$

1,467
47,512
6,498
26,172

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
Management is responsible for the preparation of Lucent Technologies Inc.’s consolidated financial
statements and all related information appearing in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial
statements and notes have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America and include certain amounts that are estimates based upon currently
available information and management ’s judgment of current conditions and circumstances.
To provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition and that accounting records are reliable for preparing financial statements, management
maintains a system of accounting and other controls, including an internal audit function. Even an
effective internal control system, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations - including the
possibility of circumvention or overriding of controls - and therefore can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement presentation. The system of accounting and other controls
is improved and modified in response to changes in business conditions and operations and
recommendations made by the independent accountants and the internal auditors.
The Audit and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors, which is composed of independent directors,
meets periodically with management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors to review the
manner in which these groups are performing their responsibilities and to carry out the Audit and Finance
Committee’s oversight role with respect to auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters. Both
the internal auditors and the independent auditors periodically meet privately with the Audit and Finance
Committee and have access to its individual members.
Lucent engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, to audit
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), which includes consideration of our internal control structure
for purposes of designing their audit procedures.

Patricia F. Russo
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Frank A. D ’Amelio
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of
LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC.:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in shareowners’ (deficit) equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Lucent Technologies Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of September
30, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended September 30, 2004, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company ’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2003 the Company changed its
accounting method for goodwill and other intangible assets.

Florham Park, New Jersey
October 20, 2004,
except for Note 7 and the second and eleventh paragraphs of Note 13,
as to which the date is November 9, 2004.
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LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
Revenues:
Products
Services
Total revenues
Costs:
Products
Services
Total costs
Gross margin
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
In-process research and development
Goodwill impairment
Business restructuring
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income (expense), net
Interest expense
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes
Income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)
Conversion and redemption cost – 8% preferred stock
Preferred stock dividends and accretion
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners

$ 7,113
1,932
9,045

$ 6,630
1,840
8,470

$ 9,560
2,761
12,321

3,824
1,442
5,266
3,779

4,329
1,489
5,818
2,652

8,386
2,383
10,769
1,552

1,296
1,509
3,969
1,270
1,488
2,310
14
35
826
(20)
(158)
1,426
2,560
2,874
8,531
1,219
(222)
(6,979)
240
(428)
292
396
353
382
1,063
(1,003)
(7,069)
(939)
(233)
4,757
2,002
(770)
(11,826)
73
2,002
(770)
(11,753)
(1)
(287)
(29)
12
(103)
(167)
$ 2,013 $ (1,160) $ (11,949)

Income (loss) from continuing operations:
Basic
Diluted
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners:

$
$

0.47 $
0.42 $

(0.29) $
(0.29) $

(3.51)
(3.51)

Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

0.47 $
0.42 $

(0.29) $
(0.29) $

(3.49)
(3.49)

3,950
3,950

3,427
3,427

4,258
5,313

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except per share amounts)
September 30,
2004
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities
Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Total current assets
Marketable securities
Property, plant and equipment, net
Prepaid pension costs
Goodwill and other acquired intangibles, net
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll and benefit-related liabilities
Debt maturing within one year
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Postretirement and postemployment benefit liabilities
Pension liabilities
Long-term debt
Liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

September 30,
2003

$ 3,379
858
1,359
822
1,813
8,231
636
1,376
5,358
434
928
$ 16,963

$ 3,821
686
1,511
632
1,213
7,863
1,593
4,659
188
1,608
$ 15,911

$

$

872
1,232
1
2,361
4,466
4,881
1,874
4,837
1,152
1,132
18,342

1,072
1,080
389
2,393
4,934
4,669
2,494
4,439
1,152
1,594
19,282

Commitments and contingencies
8.00% redeemable convertible preferred stock
SHAREOWNERS’ DEFICIT
Preferred stock—par value $1.00 per share; authorized shares: 250;
issued and outstanding: none
Common stock — par value $.01 per share;
Authorized shares: 10,000; 4,396 issued and 4,395 outstanding shares
as of September 30, 2004, and 4,170 issued and 4,169 outstanding
shares as of September 30, 2003
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareowners’ deficit
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock and
shareowners’ deficit

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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-

868

-

-

44
23,005
(20,793)
(3,635)
(1,379)
$ 16,963

42
22,252
(22,795)
(3,738)
(4,239)
$ 15,911

LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREOWNERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
(in millions)

Shares of
Common
Stock
Balance as of September 30, 2001
Net loss
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Reclassification of foreign currency translation gain realized
upon the sale of foreign entities
Unrealized holding losses on certain investments
Reclassification adjustment for realized holding losses and
impairment losses on certain investments
Net unrealized holding losses on derivatives
Amounts transferred to Agere
Comprehensive loss
Issuance of common stock in connection with exchange of 8%
convertible redeemable preferred stock
Issuance of common stock related to employee benefit plans
Preferred stock dividends and accretion
Spin-off of Agere
Other
Balance as of September 30, 2002

3,414

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Common
Stock
$

34

$ 21,702

Accumulated
Deficit
$ (10,272)
(11,753)

$ (441)
(2,927 )
40
20

58
18

1

3,490

35

20
(27)

(8 )
(1)
(6)

(8)
(1)
(6)

175
55
(167)
(1,191)
33

174
55
(167)
(1,191)
33
(22,025 )
(770)

20,606

(3,350)

563

6

46

1

46
24

1,430

1,436

129

129

85

86

76
51
(103 )

76
51
(103)

(22 )
4,169

42

(22)
(22,795 )

22,252

Net income
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Reclassification adjustment for realized gains on investments
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Unrealized holding losses on investments
Comprehensive income
Issuance of common stock in connection with the exchange of
certain debt obligations
Issuance of common stock related to employee benefit plans
Issuance of common stock in connection with settlement of
shareowner lawsuit
Issuance of common stock related to Telica acquisition
Preferred stock dividends and accretion

(4,734)
(770)
(594)
135
71
(1,158)

Other
Balance as of September 30, 2003

$ 11,023
(11,753)
(2,927)
40

(27 )

(594 )
135
71

Comprehensive loss
Issuance of common stock in connection with the exchange of
convertible securities and certain other debt obligations
Conversion costs in connection with the exchange of 7.75%
trust preferred securities
Issuance of common stock in connection with the payment of
preferred stock dividend
Issuance of common stock in connection with contribution to
Lucent Technologies Inc. Represented Employees Postretirement Health Benefits Trust
Issuance of common stock related to employee benefit plans
Preferred stock dividends and accretion

Total
Shareowners’
(Deficit) Equity

(14,662)

Net loss
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized holding gains on certain investments

Balance as of September 30, 2004

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss

(3,738)

(4,239)

150
(75)
34
(6)

2,002
150
(75)
34
(6)

2,002

2,105
22
93

1

33
78

1

105
253
12

4,395

$ 44

$ 23,005

92

92
291

292
105
254
12
$ (20,793 )

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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$ (3,635)

$ (1,379)

LUCENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

2004

Operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Less: Income from discontinued operations
Income (loss) from continuing operations

$

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities, net of effects of acquisitions and
dispositions of businesses and manufacturing operations:
Non-cash portion of business restructuring
Impairment of goodwill
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts and customer financings
Deferred income taxes
Pension credit
Gains on sales of businesses
Other adjustments for non-cash items
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables
(Increase) decrease in inventories and contracts in process
Decrease in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Dispositions of businesses and manufacturing operations
Purchases of marketable securities
Maturities of marketable securities
Sales of marketable securities
Proceeds from the sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment
Other investing activities
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Years ended September 30,
2003
2002

2,002
2,002

$

(11,753)
73
(11,826)

(205)
35
978
(223)
(1,018)
(49)
686

827
826
1,470
1,253
5,268
(1,220)
(725)
1,240

200
(59)
(203)
80
(799)
634

205
747
(257)
(146)
(931)
(948)

2,493
2,552
(539)
(791)
(1,584)
(756)

(157)
(2,091 )
918
352
63
46
(869)

(291)
9
(684)
1,529
158
37
758

(449)
2,576
(1,518)
194
(46)
757

$

1,631
46
(535)
38
(69)
(6)
(54)
1,051
66
927
2,894
3,821

$

1,750
(1,000)
(104)
(47)
64
(149)
(46)
468
35
504
2,390
2,894

$
$

109
336

$
$

804
349

$

2
(479)
276
(21)
(17)
(239)
32
(442)
3,821
3,379

Income tax refunds, net
Interest payments

$
$

52
371
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(770)
(770)

1
693
(230)
(19)
(1,111 )
79

Financing activities:
Issuance of convertible senior debt
Issuance of 7.75% trust preferred securities
Repayments of credit facilities
Net proceeds (repayments) of other short-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term debt
Issuance of common stock
Repayments of preferred stock
Dividends paid on preferred stock
Other financing activities
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

$

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include all majority-owned subsidiaries over which we exercise
control. Investments where we exercise significant influence but do not control (generally a 20% to 50%
ownership interest), are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. All material intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated. Except as otherwise noted, all amounts and
disclosures only include continuing operations.
Use of Estimates
We are required to make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial
statements and footnotes. Actual results could be different from estimated amounts. We believe that
some of the more critical estimates and related assumptions that affect our financial condition and results
of operations are in the areas of revenue recognition, pension and postretirement benefits, income taxes,
legal contingencies, receivables and customer financing, inventories, business restructuring and
intangible assets. Estimates and assumptions are periodically reviewed, and the effects of any material
revisions are reflected in the period that they are determined to be necessary.
Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions
Results of operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates and assets and liabilities
are translated at end-of-period exchange rates for operations outside the United States that prepare
financial statements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Translation adjustments are included as a
separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in shareowners’ deficit. Gains
and losses from foreign currency transactions are reflected in other income (expense), net.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, delivery has occurred, the
amount is fixed or determinable, and collection of the resulting receivable, including receivables of
customers to which we have provided customer financing, is probable.
Most of our sales are generated from complex contractual arrangements that require significant revenue
recognition judgments, particularly in the areas of multiple-element arrangements, the application of
software revenue recognition rules, contract accounting and collectibility.
Revenues from contracts with multiple-element arrangements, such as those including products with
installation and integration services, are recognized as the revenue for each unit of accounting is earned
based on the relative fair value of each unit of accounting as determined by internal or third party
analyses of market-based prices. A delivered element is considered a separate unit of accounting if it
has value to the customer on a standalone basis, there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value
of undelivered elements in the arrangement, and delivery or performance of undelivered elements is
considered probable and substantially under our control. Revenue is generally recognized when title
passes to the customer, which usually is upon delivery of the equipment, provided our installation
requirements are expected to be completed within 90 days from equipment delivery and all other revenue
recognition criteria is met. Revenue is generally recognized for products sold through multiple distribution
channels when the reseller or distributor sells the product to the end user. Services revenue is generally
recognized at the time of performance.
We apply software revenue recognition rules when we sell software on a standalone basis, or when
software is embedded with our hardware and the software is considered more than incidental. We
determine that software is more than incidental when it is apparent that it is a significant factor in the
customer’s purchasing decision such as when a transaction also includes software upgrades or
enhancements. In multiple element arrangements where software is considered more than incidental, fair

F-43

value of an undelivered element is determined using vendor specific objective evidence (VSOE). If VSOE
cannot be determined or any undelivered element is essential to the functionality of the delivered
element, revenue is deferred until such criteria are met or until the last element is delivered.
The percentage of completion method of accounting is used for sales generated from certain contracts,
primarily those related to customized network solutions and network build-outs with durations of at least
six months. The units-of-delivery method or units-of-work performed method is used to measure progress
on each contract. Revenue and cost estimates are revised periodically based on changes in
circumstances. Any expected losses on contracts are recognized immediately upon contract signing or as
soon thereafter as identified.
The assessment of collectibility is critical in determining whether revenue should be recognized. As part
of the revenue recognition process, we determine whether trade and notes receivables are reasonably
assured of collection based on various factors. Revenue and related costs are deferred if we are
uncertain as to whether the receivable can be collected or sold. Revenue is deferred but costs are
recognized when we determine that the collection or sale of the receivable is unlikely.
Research and Development and Software Development Costs
Research and development costs are charged to expense as incurred. However, the direct labor and
related overhead costs incurred for the development of computer software that will be sold (“marketed
software”) are capitalized when technological feasibility is established. Technological feasibility is
established upon completion of all of the planning, designing, coding and testing activities that are
necessary in order to establish that the product can be produced to meet its design specifications,
including functions, features and technical performance requirements. These capitalized costs are subject
to an ongoing assessment of recoverability based on anticipated future revenues and changes in
hardware and software technologies.
Capitalization ceases and amortization of marketed software development costs begins when the product
is available for general release to customers. Amortization is recognized as costs included in our gross
margin on a product-by-product basis, generally using the straight-line method over a 12 to 18-month
period. Unamortized marketed software development costs determined to be in excess of the net
realizable value of the product are charged to Research and Development expense prior to the general
release to the customer, or to Costs thereafter.
Internal Use Software
Direct labor and related overhead costs incurred during the application development stage and the
implementation stage for developing, purchasing or otherwise acquiring software for internal use are
capitalized. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the software, generally three
years. Costs incurred during the preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred.
Stock-Based Compensation
We follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, for
our stock-based compensation plans and do not recognize expense for stock option grants if the exercise
price is at least equal to the market value of the common stock at the date of grant. Stock-based
compensation expense reflected in the as reported net income (loss) includes expense for restricted
stock unit awards and option modifications and the amortization of certain acquisition-related deferred
compensation expense.
In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 123, “Accounting for StockBased Compensation”, as amended by SFAS 148, the following table summarizes the pro forma effect of
stock-based compensation as if the fair value method of accounting for stock options had been applied in
measuring compensation cost.
No tax benefits were attributed to the stock-based employee
compensation expense during fiscal 2004 and 2003 because we maintained a valuation allowance on
substantially all of our net deferred tax assets.

F-44

(in millions, except per share amounts)
Net income (loss), as reported
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included
in as reported net income (loss), including tax expense of
$13 during fiscal 2002
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under the fair value based method, including
tax expense of $1,408 during fiscal 2002
Pro forma net income (loss)
Income (loss) per share applicable to common shareowners:
Basic – as reported
Diluted – as reported
Basic – pro forma
Diluted – pro forma

Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
$ 2,002
$ (770)
$ (11,753)

16

17

50

(338)
$ 1,680

(285)
$ (1,038)

(2,562)
$ (14,265)

$ 0.47
0.42
0.40
0.36

$ (0.29)
(0.29)
(0.36)
(0.36)

$ (3.49)
(3.49)
(4.22)
(4.22)

The fair value of stock options used to compute the pro forma disclosures is estimated using the BlackScholes option-pricing model. This model requires the input of subjective assumptions, including the
expected price volatility of the underlying stock. Projected data related to the expected volatility and
expected life of stock options is based upon historical and other information. Changes in these subjective
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates. The following table summarizes the
assumptions used to compute the weighted average fair value of stock option grants.
2004
0.0%
90.2%
2.6%
3.2
$ 1.83

Dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected holding period (in years)
Weighted average fair value of options granted

2003
0.0%
95.1%
2.2%
3.0
$ 0.87

2002
0.0%
78.9%
3.6%
2.5
$ 2.11

Refer to Note 10 for further information regarding our stock-based compensation plans.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash
equivalents. These primarily consist of money market funds and to a lesser extent, certificates of deposit
and commercial paper. Cash held as collateral or escrowed for contingent liabilities is included in other
current and non-current assets based on the expected release of the underlying obligation.
Marketable Securities
Our marketable securities consist of debt securities that are designated as available-for-sale and
recorded at fair value. Unrealized holding gains or losses are reported as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains or losses resulting from the sale of these securities
are determined based on the specific identification of the securities sold. Marketable securities with
maturities greater than three months and less than one year are classified as short-term, otherwise they
are classified as long-term.
An impairment charge is recognized when the decline in the fair value of a security below the amortized
cost basis is determined to be other-than-temporary. We consider various factors in determining whether
to recognize an impairment charge, including the duration of time and the severity to which the fair value
has been less than our amortized cost basis, any adverse changes in the investees’ financial condition
and our intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in market value.
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Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost (which approximates cost determined on a first-in,
first-out basis) or market. Excess and obsolete inventory reserves are generally determined by future
demand forecasts. Inventories associated with deferred revenue and where title and risk of loss was
transferred to the customer were $166 million and $158 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
determined using accelerated and straight-line methods over the estimated useful lives of the various
asset classes. Useful lives for buildings and building improvements, furniture and fixtures, and machinery
and equipment principally range from five to fifty years, five to ten years and two to ten years,
respectively.
Acquisition costs and substantial improvements to property, plant and equipment are capitalized. The
cost of normal maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
We adopted SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, in the first quarter of fiscal 2003. As a
result, goodwill is no longer amortized but is tested for impairment in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year
or more often if an event or circumstance indicates that an impairment loss has been incurred. An
impairment charge is recognized if a reporting unit’s goodwill carrying amount exceeds its implied fair
value. We experienced no transitional impairment loss upon adoption of SFAS 142. Prior to adoption,
goodwill and identifiable intangible assets were amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Other acquired intangible assets continue to be amortized on a straight-line basis over the
periods benefited, primarily over four years. The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying
value of goodwill and other acquired intangible assets.
Goodwill

(in millions)
As of September 30, 2002
Acquisition/contingencies
Impairment/amortization
Other
As of September 30, 2003
Acquisition/contingencies
Impairment/amortization
Other
As of September 30, 2004

INS
$ 151
5
(35)
10
131
127
(1)
$ 257

Mobility
$ 11
5
16
11
(2)
$ 25
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Services
$ 38
38
53
$ 91

Other
$ 9
(9)
$ -

Total
$ 209
10
(35)
1
185
191
(3)
$ 373

Other
Acquired
Intangible
Assets
$ 15
3
(15)
3
60
(3)
1
$ 61

Other acquired intangible assets were net of accumulated amortization of $48 million and $45 million as
of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The following table presents the net loss for fiscal 2002,
adjusted to exclude goodwill amortization of $208 million.
Year ended September 30,
2002

(in millions, except per share amounts)
Net loss:
As reported
Adjusted

$ (11,753)
(11,545)

Basic and diluted loss per share:
As reported
Adjusted

$

(3.49)
(3.43)

The following table summarizes the estimated future amortization expense of other acquired intangible
assets.
(in millions)
Fiscal Year:
2005
2006
2007
2008
Total

Amount
$ 16
16
15
14
$ 61

Impairment of Other Long-Lived Assets
Other long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, capitalized software and other acquired
intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events such as product discontinuances, plant
closures, product dispositions or other changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of a long-lived asset
exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the asset’s use and eventual
disposition. An impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its fair
value, which is typically calculated using discounted expected future cash flows. The discount rate
applied to these cash flows is based on our weighted average cost of capital, which represents the
blended after-tax costs of debt and equity.
Reclassifications
Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to our current period presentation.
2. BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING
During the second quarter of fiscal 2001, we committed to and began implementing a restructuring
program to realign resources to focus on the large telecommunications service provider market. We
assessed our product portfolio and associated R&D, and then streamlined the rest of our operations to
support those reassessments. We eliminated some marginally profitable or non-strategic product lines,
merged certain technology platforms, consolidated development activities, eliminated management
positions and many duplications in marketing functions and programs, centralized our sales support
functions and sold or leased certain of our manufacturing facilities and made greater use of contract
manufacturers. We sold or disposed of the assets related to the eliminated product lines, closed facilities
and reduced the employee workforce on a global basis.
All reportable segments, sales and marketing, and general corporate functions participated in these
actions, however the charges or subsequent reversals to the reserves were excluded from their results
and were reported separately. The following table summarizes the net charges or reversals under our
restructuring program.
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Years ended September 30,
2003
2002

2004
(in millions)
Restructuring costs
Asset write-downs
Business dispositions
Impairment of goodwill and other acquired
intangible assets
Net charges (reversals)
Reflected in:
Costs
Operating expenses
Impairment of goodwill
Net charges (reversals)

2001

$ (20)
1
(1)

$

(64)
(120)
-

$ 1,023
458
(140)

$

$ (20)

35
$ (149)

975
$ 2,316

3,849
$ 11,416

$

$

$

$ 1,259
6,308
3,849
$ 11,416

(20)
$ (20)

(26)
(158)
35
$ (149)

64
1,426
826
$ 2,316

4,767
2,800
-

Restructuring Costs
Restructuring costs consisted of employee separations of $3.4 billion, contract settlements of $944
million, facility closings of $304 million, and other charges of $79 million during fiscal 2001. The following
table summarizes the components of restructuring costs and related reserve activity.
Employee
Contract
Separations Settlements
(in millions)
Restructuring reserve as of September 30, 2001

$

Facility
Closings

Total

588

$ 610

296

$ 125

$ 1,619

944
5
(150)

90
18
(201)

210
116
(25)

34
2
(20)

1,278
141
(396)

799
(1,020)
367

(93)
(367)
150

301
(114)
483

16
(72)
69

1,023
(1,573)
1,069

18
163
(228)
(47)
(258)

17
27
(60)
(16)
(100)

54
(37)
17
(133)

1
5
(24)
(18)
(47)

36
249
(349)
(64)
(538)

62

34

367

4

467

Charges related to prior year plans
Reversals related to prior year plans

(14)

(15)

44
(32)

(3)

44
(64)

Total restructuring costs for fiscal 2004
Utilization of reserves
Restructuring reserve as of September 30, 2004

(14)
(38)
10

(15)
(11)
$
8

12
(177)
$ 202

(3)
(1)
$ -

(20)
(227)
$
220

Charges related to current year plans
Charges related to prior year plans
Reversals related to prior year plans
Total restructuring costs for fiscal 2002
Utilization of reserves
Restructuring reserve as of September 30, 2002
Charges related to current year plans
Charges related to prior year plans
Reversals related to prior year plans
Total restructuring costs for fiscal 2003
Utilization of reserves
Restructuring reserve as of September 30, 2003

$
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$

Other

Employee Separations
There were approximately 53,600 voluntary and involuntary employee separations associated with
employee separation charges from fiscal 2001 through fiscal 2003. Substantially all of the employee
separations were completed as of September 30, 2003. The employee separations affected all business
groups and geographic regions. Management represented approximately 70% of the total employee
separations. In addition, involuntary separations represented approximately 70% of the total employee
separations.
The fiscal 2003 charges for new plans were for approximately 200 employee separations associated with
the discontinuance of the TMX Multi-Service Switching and Spring Tide product lines in the INS segment.
The fiscal 2002 charges for new plans were for approximately 17,300 employee separations and included
charges for pension termination benefits for certain former U.S. employees funded through our pension
assets, pension and postretirement curtailment charges and postemployment benefit curtailment credits.
The fiscal 2004 and 2003 revisions to prior year plans were due to actual termination benefits and
curtailment costs being lower than the estimated amounts as a result of certain differences in assumed
demographics, including the age, service lives and salaries of the separated employees. Fiscal 2003 also
included a reversal of approximately 900 employee separations due to higher than expected attrition
rates. Components of the fiscal 2003 net reversal included non-cash reversals for pension and
postretirement termination benefits to certain former U.S. employees funded through our pension assets,
and pension, postretirement and postemployment benefit curtailments. The fiscal 2002 revisions to prior
year plans were due to higher than expected attrition rates that resulted in a reduction of 2,200 expected
employee terminations. Also, the actual severance cost per person was lower than the original estimates
after execution of the various plans in many countries.
Contract Settlements
Contract settlement charges were primarily incurred for settlements of purchase commitments with
suppliers and contract renegotiations or cancellations of contracts with customers, all of which resulted
from the discontinuance of various product lines. Revisions to prior year plans were due primarily to the
negotiated settlement of obligations and commitments for amounts lower than originally estimated.
Facility Closings
The planned exit of certain owned and leased facilities consisting of approximately 15.9 million square
feet were included in the restructuring program. All of these sites were exited as of September 30, 2003.
Charges were recognized for the expected remaining future cash outlays associated with trailing lease
liabilities, lease termination payments and expected restoration costs in connection with the plans. The
trailing lease liabilities were reduced by expected sublease rental income.
Revisions to prior year plans were due to the impact of changes in estimated facility closing costs,
including additional space consolidation, expected sublease rental income on certain properties resulting
from changes in the commercial real estate market and early termination of certain lease obligations.
The facility closings charges were net of expected sublease rental income of $136 million and $241
million during fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively. This expected sublease rental income was
subsequently reduced by $105 million, $55 million and $63 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The remaining reserve as of September 30, 2004 of $202 million is expected to be paid
over the remaining lease terms ranging from several months to 11 years and is reflected net of expected
sublease income of $137 million. We have received commitments for approximately $30 million of this
expected sublease rental income as of September 30, 2004. Additional charges may be required in the
future if the expected sublease income is not realized.
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Utilization of business restructuring reserves
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
$ (227)
$ (629)
$ (1,022)

(in millions)
Cash payments
Net pension and postretirement termination benefits to certain former
U.S. employees to be funded through our pension assets
Net pension and postretirement benefit curtailments
Net postemployment benefit curtailments
Other
Utilization of reserves

$ (227)

33
44
41
(27)
$ (538)

(205)
(337)
34
(43)
$ (1,573)

Asset write-downs
The following table summarizes the components of asset write-downs.
(in millions)
Fiscal 2001 asset write-downs
Charges related to current year plans
Charges related to prior year plans
Reversals related to prior year plans
Fiscal 2002 asset write-downs

Inventory
$ 1,259
$

$

Charges related to current year plans
Charges related to prior year plans
Reversals related to prior year plans
Fiscal 2003 asset write-downs

$

$

Fiscal 2004 asset write-downs

$

Property, plant
and equipment
$ 425

129
97
(162)
64

$

$

3
26
(55)
(26)

304
51
(35)
320

$

-

Capitalized
software
$ 362
$

$

2
24
(113)
$ (87)

$

$

-

72
72

Other
$ 754
$

$

31
(29)
2

$

$

-

$

(7)
(7)

$

-

$

1

Total
$ 2,800
$

536
148
(226)
$ 458
$

5
50
(175)
$ (120)
$

1

Significant asset write-downs were required as a result of our restructuring actions, including the
elimination of product lines, the sale or lease of certain manufacturing operations, the exit of certain
facilities and the elimination of certain management positions. The realizability of each asset affected by
the restructuring actions was assessed and written down to a new cost basis if required, based on
estimated future cash flows.
Inventory charges included an estimate of amounts related to products rationalized or discontinued that
were not required to fulfill existing customer obligations. Additional inventory charges or reserve
reductions were recognized if the fulfillment of those customer obligations were different from amounts
estimated. In addition, reversals related to property, plant and equipment were recognized due to
changes in the original plans for certain owned facility closings.
Business dispositions
The fiscal 2002 net gain of $140 million related to business dispositions contemplated as part of our
overall restructuring program, including a $188 million gain related to the sale of the billing and customer
care business and a $38 million loss related to the sale of the enterprise professional services business.
Impairment of goodwill and other acquired intangible assets
Business decisions during fiscal 2003 to partner with other suppliers to use their products in our sales
offerings prompted an assessment of the recoverability of certain goodwill associated with the multiservice switching reporting unit within the INS segment. The reporting unit’s fair value was determined
using projected cash flows over a seven-year period, discounted at 15% after considering terminal value
and related cash flows associated with service revenues. The excess of the goodwill’s carrying value
over its implied fair value was recognized as an impairment charge in the amount of $35 million.
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The continued and sharper decline in the telecommunications market prompted an assessment during
fiscal 2002 of all key assumptions underlying goodwill valuation judgments, including those relating to
short- and long-term growth rates. It was determined that the carrying amounts of goodwill and other
intangible assets, primarily related to the September 2000 acquisition of Spring Tide, were greater than
the forecasted undiscounted cash flows. As a result, impairment charges of $826 million for goodwill and
$149 million for other acquired intangibles were recognized based on the difference between the
estimated fair values and corresponding carrying amounts. Fair values were determined on the basis of
discounted cash flows.
3. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
Acquisitions
On August 20, 2004, we acquired 100 percent of the outstanding equity of Telica. Telica provides VoIP
communications switching equipment that enables service providers to deliver enhanced and traditional
voice services over Internet Protocol and legacy networks. The operating results of Telica were included
in our consolidated results since the date of acquisition. Pro forma results were not presented because
the effect of the acquisition was not material.
The aggregate purchase price of $262 million included approximately 80 million shares of our common
stock valued at $258 million and options to purchase shares of our common stock. The value of the
common shares was determined based on the average market price of our common shares over the 2day period before and after the date of the acquisition agreement. The purchase price includes $9 million
that was recognized as a current liability because certain Telica shares were not presented for exchange
as of September 30, 2004. An additional nine million shares of our common stock, valued at $29 million,
is held in an escrow account for potential general indemnification matters through February 2006.
Goodwill will be increased if these common shares are released.
In addition to the consideration referenced above, a $7 million cash bonus was paid to Telica’s
employees. An additional $7 million cash bonus will be provided to employees if certain product
development milestones are achieved during the next two years. We have begun to accrue this cost over
the milestone period because we expect that they will be achieved.
The purchase price in excess of the estimated fair value of tangible assets acquired was allocated to
goodwill ($178 million), identifiable intangible assets ($60 million) and in-process research and
development (IPR&D) ($14 million). The identifiable intangible assets were attributed to developed
technology that is amortized over its expected useful life of four years. IPR&D represents technology that
has not reached technological feasibility and has no alternate future use. The value allocated to IPR&D
was determined using an income approach that included an excess earnings analysis reflecting the
appropriate cost of capital for each project. These estimated future cash flows considered estimates of
revenue, gross margin, operating expenses and income taxes and were consistent with historical pricing,
cost and expense levels for similar products. A 33% discount rate was utilized to discount the cash flows
based on consideration of our weighted average cost of capital, as well as other factors including the
estimated useful life of each project, the anticipated profitability of each project, the uncertainty of
technology advances that were known at the time and the stage of completion of each project.
On February 3, 2003, we purchased the remaining 10% minority interest in AG Communications Systems
Corporation for $23 million. This transaction resulted in $3 million of goodwill and $3 million of other
acquired intangible assets that related to developed technology.
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Dispositions
On September 30, 2002, we sold two of our China-based joint ventures to Corning Incorporated. These
joint ventures were part of the optical fiber solutions business (“OFS”). The total purchase price of $200
million included a cash payment of $123 million, shares of Corning common stock valued at $50 million
and a note receivable of $27 million. The note receivable was collected during fiscal 2003. A gain of $100
million was recognized and included in other income during fiscal 2002.
On May 31, 2002, we sold certain manufacturing equipment and inventory for $96 million and
commenced a three-year supply agreement with Solectron Corporation for certain optical networking
products. Due to continuing market uncertainties, we terminated the agreements, purchased certain
assets back from Solectron and paid $50 million to Solectron in November 2002. The contract
manufacturing work for the optical networking products was transitioned to other suppliers during the first
half of fiscal 2003. These events did not significantly impact our results of operations.
On February 28, 2002, we sold our billing and customer care business to CSG Systems International, Inc.
for $250 million. After the settlement of certain post-closing purchase price adjustments, a gain of $188
million was recognized and included in business restructuring during fiscal 2002.
On November 16, 2001, we sold OFS to The Furukawa Electric Co., Ltd. for approximately $2.3 billion,
including shares of CommScope, Inc.’s common stock valued at $173 million. A gain of $564 million was
recognized and included in other income during fiscal 2002. The favorable resolution of certain
contingencies resulted in an additional gain of $41 million during fiscal 2003.
Discontinued Operations
On June 1, 2002, we completed the spin-off of Agere Systems Inc. ("Agere"), our former microelectronics
business, by distributing our 57.8% interest in Agere common stock, consisting of 37.0 million shares of
Agere Class A common stock and 908.1 million shares of Agere Class B common stock, to our common
shareowners of record on May 3, 2002. Each of our shareowners received one share of Agere Class A
common stock for every 92.768991 shares of our common stock held and one share of Agere Class B
common stock for every 3.779818 shares of our common stock held. The historical carrying amount of the
net assets transferred to Agere of approximately $1.2 billion was charged to shareowners’ deficit during
fiscal 2002. Our results of operations included $73 million of income on disposal of Agere, including tax
expense of $34 million during fiscal 2002. This income included subsequent adjustments to the related
loss reserve for our share of Agere’s net losses from the initial measurement date through the spin-off
date, including pension termination benefit charges of $102 million related to business restructuring
actions taken by Agere prior to the spin-off.
During fiscal 2002 and through the spin-off date, Agere’s net cash used by operating activities was $521
million, net cash provided by investing activities was $279 million and net cash used by financing
activities was $1.7 billion.

F-52

4. SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)
Supplementary Statement of Operations Information:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of software development costs
Amortization of other acquired intangible assets
Amortization of goodwill
Other amortization
Depreciation and amortization

$

$

Legal settlements
SEC settlement
Debt conversion cost and gain on extinguishments, net
Gain on sale of businesses, net
Gain (loss) on sale of investments
Interest income
Interest income on tax settlements
Gain (loss) on foreign currency transactions
Other-than-temporary write-down of investments
Other, net
Other income (expense), net

$

$

284
376
3
30
693

$

(84)
(25)
(7)
75
89
135
(10)
(22)
89
240

$

$

$

559
393
15
11
978

$

(401)
(97)
49
(10)
86
16
10
(63)
(18)
(428)

$

$

$

718
469
42
208
33
1,470
(212)
725
4
114
73
(46)
(209)
(157)
292

September 30,
2004
2003

(in millions)
Supplementary Balance Sheet Information:
Completed goods
Work in process
Raw materials
Inventories

$

$

Contracts in process, gross
Less: progress billings
Contracts in process

$
$
$

604
49
169
822

$

$

465
43
124
632

3,696
3,798
(102)

$

$
$

251
(218)
33

$

7,053
7,020
33

Costs and recognized income not yet billed
Billings in excess of costs and recognized income
Contracts in process

$

106
(208)
(102)

Retainage receivables (included in other assets)

$

16

$

207

Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, electronic and other equipment
Property, plant and equipment, gross
Less: accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, net

$

76
1,505
2,223
3,804
2,428
1,376

$

86
1,645
2,350
4,081
2,488
1,593

$

Income tax receivables, including related interest
Non-trade receivables
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash
Forward contracts receivable
Contracts in process
Other
Other current assets

$

$
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868
360
197
187
148
24
29
1,813

$
$

$

134
198
146
217
140
322
33
23
1,213

September 30,
2004
2003
$
284
$
323
142
183
125
116
78
582
77
136
222
268
$
928
$ 1,608

Marketed software
Internal use software
Restricted cash
Non-trade receivables
Investments
Other
Other assets
Deferred revenue
Shareholder lawsuit settlement
Warranty reserve
Contracts in process
Restructuring
Other
Other current liabilities

$

593
572
221
102
88
785
2,361

$

Deferred income taxes
Deferred compensation
Restructuring
Environmental
Warranty
Minority interests
Other, including contingencies
Other liabilities

$

178
155
122
83
76
35
483
1,132

$

$

507
481
244
115
1,046
2,393

$
$

146
90
290
93
86
58
831
$ 1,594

Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable:
Allowance at beginning of year
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts
Transfers to (from) other accounts
Write-offs
Allowance at end of year

$

$

Inventory valuation reserves:
Reserve at beginning of year
Charged to costs
Transfers to (from) other accounts
Write-offs
Reserve at end of year

$

$

246
(42)
7
(101)
110

$

980
17
(26)
(251)
720

$ 1,490
56
109
(675)
$ 980

$

325
(67)
134
(146)
246

$

$

634
488
(797)
325

$ 1,814
621
334
(1,279)
$ 1,490

5. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by
dividing net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners, adjusted to exclude preferred dividends
and accretion, conversion costs, redemption costs and interest expense related to the potentially dilutive
securities, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, plus any
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if potentially dilutive common shares had
been issued during the period.
The following table summarizes the computation of basic and diluted EPS. Due to the net loss incurred in
fiscal 2003 and 2002, the diluted loss per share was the same as basic because any potentially dilutive
securities would have reduced the loss per share.
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Years ended September 30,
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Net income (loss)
Conversion and redemption cost – 8.00% convertible securities
Preferred stock dividends and accretion
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners – basic
Adjustment for dilutive securities on net income (loss):
Interest expense related to convertible securities
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners – diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options
2.75% convertible securities
8.00% convertible securities
7.75% convertible securities
Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted
EPS:
Basic
Diluted

2004
$ 2,002
(1)
12
2,013

2003
$ (770)
(287)
(103)
(1,160)

2002
$ (11,753)
(29)
(167)
(11,949)

200
$ 2,213

$ (1,160)

$ (11,949)

4,258

3,950

3,427

72
496
249
238
5,313

3,950

3,427

$ 0.47
0.42

$(0.29)
(0.29)

$(3.49)
(3.49)

The loss from continuing operations applicable to common shareowners was approximately $12.0 billion
or $3.51 per share during fiscal 2002. Income from discontinued operations was $73 million or $0.02 per
share during fiscal 2002.
The following table summarizes the potential shares of common stock that were excluded from the diluted
per share calculation, because the effect of including these potential shares was antidilutive.

(in millions)
8% convertible securities
7.75% convertible securities
2.75% convertible securities
Stock options
Other
Potentially dilutive shares
Stock options excluded from the diluted per share calculation
because the exercise price was greater than the average market
price of the common shares

Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
3
685
519
273
193
326
14
4
2
3

1,298

718

252

300

471

The calculation of dilutive or potentially dilutive common shares related to our convertible securities
considers the conversion features or redemption features, whichever is more dilutive. Redemption
features are only considered if we have the right to settle redemption requests through the issuance of
our common stock as in the case of our 2.75% and 8.00% convertible securities. In this case, the "if
redeemed" calculations are based upon the 12-month average price of our common stock and the
weighted average number of the respective securities outstanding during the periods presented. The
conversion features related to our 2.75% convertible securities are only considered if certain conditions
are met, otherwise the “if redeemed” calculations are used. The dilutive effect of our convertible securities
may fluctuate from period to period as a result of the as reported net income levels and the average
market price of our common stock.
In September 2004, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) finalized EITF Issue No. 04-8, “The
Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share”. As a result, beginning in
the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the conversion features related to our 2.75% convertible securities will
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always be considered in the diluted EPS calculation and will be used unless the “if redeemed” calculation
is more dilutive. The impact of EITF 04-8 is not expected to materially effect our future diluted EPS
calculations and would not have changed our quarterly and annual fiscal 2004 diluted EPS.
6. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss are summarized below. Foreign currency
translation adjustments are generally not adjusted for income taxes as they relate to indefinite
investments in non-U.S. subsidiaries.

(in millions)
Balance as of October 1, 2001
Current-period change
Amounts transferred to Agere
Balance as of September 30, 2002
Current-period change
Balance as of September 30, 2003
Current-period change
Balance as of September 30, 2004

Foreign
currency
translation
adjustment

Change in net
unrealized holding
gains / losses on
investments

$ (467)
60
(6)
(413)
135
(278)
34
$ (244 )

$

$

Total accumulated
other
comprehensive
loss

Minimum
pension
liability
adjustment

40
(36)
4
71
75
(81 )
(6 )

$

(14)
(2,927)
(2,941)
(594)
(3,535)
150
$ (3,385)

$

(441)
(2,903)
(6)
(3,350)
(388)
(3,738)
103
$ (3,635)

7. INCOME TAXES
The following table summarizes the U.S. and non-U.S. components of income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes and the provision (benefit) for income taxes.

(in millions)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes:
U.S.
Non-U.S.
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes

Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
$

985
78
$ 1,063

$ (1,048)
45
$ (1,003)

$ (7,076)
7
$ (7,069)

$

$

$

Provision (benefit) for income taxes:
Current:
Federal
State and local
Non-U.S.
Subtotal
Deferred:
Federal
State and local
Non-U.S.
Subtotal
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

$
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(967)
(10)
57
(920)
(19)
(19)
(939)

$

(309)
4
72
(233)
(233)

$

(611)
100
(511)
4,242
837
189
5,268
4,757

The following table summarizes the principal reasons for the difference between the effective tax (benefit)
rate on continuing operations and the U.S. federal statutory income tax (benefit) rate.

U.S. federal statutory income tax (benefit) rate
State and local income tax (benefit) rate, net of federal income tax effect
Foreign earnings taxed at different rates
Research credits
IPR&D, goodwill amortization and impairments
Disposition of OFS business
Conversions of 7.75% trust preferred securities
Tax audit-related adjustments
Other differences, net
Change in valuation allowance
Effective income tax (benefit) rate

Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
35.0%
(35.0)%
(35.0)%
3.1
(3.6)
(3.3)
(2.3)
8.4
0.2
(0.9)
(0.7)
0.5
1.2
5.0
(7.3)
4.5
(13.4)
(7.7)
(1.2)
0.5
(3.0)
(1.7)
(111.8)
12.9
111.3
(88.4)%
(23.2)%
67.3%

The following table summarizes the change in the valuation allowance.
(in millions)
Valuation allowance at beginning of year
Charged (credited) to expense
Charged (credited) to other comprehensive loss
Write-off of carryforwards
Acquisitions and other
Valuation allowance at end of year

2004
$ 9,934
(1,188)
(29)
(756)
(21)
$ 7,940

September 30,
2003
$ 9,989
129
205
(389)
$ 9,934

2002
$ 742
7,868
1,472
(93)
$ 9,989

The following table summarizes the components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

(in millions)
Bad debt and customer financing reserves
Inventory reserves
Business restructuring reserves
Other operating reserves
Postretirement and other benefits
Net operating loss/credit carryforwards
Other
Valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets

September 30,
2004
2003
$
98
$ 259
216
304
86
183
479
541
2,358
2,149
6,053
6,882
223
748
(7,940)
(9,934)
$ 1,573
$ 1,132

Pension
Other
Deferred tax liabilities

$ 1,367
187
$ 1,554

$

Net deferred tax assets

$

19

$

-

$

197
178
19

$

146
146
-

Included in:
Other current assets
Other liabilities
Total

$
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842
290
$ 1,132

$

The following table summarizes carryforwards of losses (tax-effected) and tax credits.
(in millions)

Amount

Federal net operating losses
State net operating losses
Capital losses
Foreign net operating losses/credits
Foreign tax credits
Research credits
State credits (various)

$ 2,881
792
430
495
252
958
245

Total as of September 30, 2004

$ 6,053

Expiration
2022 to 2024
2006 to 2024
2007 to 2008
2005 to indefinite
2010
2017 to 2022
2007 to 2018

The write-off of carryforwards includes the impact of the expiration of certain net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards, the repatriation of non-U.S. earnings to the U.S. and audit-related and other
adjustments that reduced the net operating loss carryforwards during the respective periods.
A valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax
asset will not be realized. A review of all available positive and negative evidence needs to be
considered, including a company’s current and past performance, the market environment in which the
company operates, the utilization of past tax credits, length of carryback and carryforward periods and
existing contracts or sales backlog that will result in future profits.
Forming a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not needed is difficult when there is negative objective
evidence such as cumulative losses in recent years. Cumulative losses weigh heavily in the overall
assessment. We determine cumulative losses on a rolling twelve-quarter basis. Accordingly, as of June
30, 2002, we concluded that it was appropriate to establish a full valuation allowance for our net deferred
tax assets. Subsequent to June 30, 2002, we have maintained a valuation allowance on substantially all
of our net deferred tax assets. We expect to continue to maintain a full valuation allowance until an
appropriate level of profitability is sustained or we are able to develop tax strategies that would enable us
to conclude that it is more likely than not that a portion of our deferred tax assets would be realizable.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, we filed a net operating loss carryback claim related to the
carryback of our fiscal year 2001 federal net operating loss to 1996, a year in which we filed our federal
income tax return as part of the AT&T consolidated group. We reached a tentative agreement with the
Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) on September 1, 2004 that allowed for a tax refund of $816 million
(plus statutory interest to the date of payment), subject to approval by the Congressional Joint Committee
on Taxation (the “Joint Committee”). The tax benefit related to the claim was not recognized at that time
or prior to that time because it was related to a complex matter and there was no assurance that the
approval from the Joint Committee would be obtained. On November 8, 2004, we received written
confirmation from the IRS that the Joint Committee approved our tentative agreement with the IRS and
that our agreement with the IRS was final. We were required to reassess the realizability of our net
operating loss carryforwards as of September 30, 2004, because the Joint Committee’s final approval
was received prior to the issuance of our consolidated financial statements. As a result, we recognized
an $816 million income tax benefit from the reversal of valuation allowances due to the realization of
deferred tax assets and interest income of $45 million during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004.
We expect to receive the refund during fiscal 2005, following completion of the IRS’s audit of our 2001
federal income tax return. The refund will be paid by the IRS to AT&T and the entire refund amount will
become payable by AT&T to us under our tax sharing agreements with AT&T. We do not believe there
are any other matters that would impact the refund claim.
During fiscal year 2004, $908 million of undistributed earnings of various non-U.S. subsidiaries were
repatriated to the U.S. The income taxes on these distributions are not expected to be significant as a
result of our U.S. net operating loss carryforwards and valuation allowance. These tax efficient one time
distributions were made to reset the operating cash needs in certain foreign jurisdictions and reflect
recent changes in our business and business model as well as various other contributing factors. We
have not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes or foreign withholding taxes on the remaining
F-58

undistributed earnings of $1.9 billion of our non-U.S. subsidiaries since these earnings are intended to be
reinvested indefinitely. As a result of our U.S. net operating loss carryforwards and valuation allowance,
the amount of additional taxes that might be payable on such undistributed earnings is not expected to be
significant. However, if significant changes to our net operating loss carryforwards and valuation
allowance occur in the future, the amount of additional taxes on undistributed earnings could be
significant. As a result, it is not practical to estimate the amount of additional taxes that might be payable
on such undistributed earnings.
We are subject to ongoing tax examinations and assessments in various jurisdictions. Accordingly, we
may record incremental tax expense based upon the probable outcomes of such matters. In addition, we
adjust the previously reported tax expense to reflect the expected results of these examinations. The net
income tax benefit recognized as a result of the expected favorable resolution of certain tax audit matters
were $142 million, $77 million and $82 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
8. DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND EARLY EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT
The following table summarizes components of long-term debt obligations.

(in millions)

2004

Variable interest notes due November 21, 2007 (5.75% as of September 30, 2003)
7.25% notes due July 15, 2006
11.755% notes due July 1, 2006
8% convertible securities redeemable on August 2, 2007
5.50% notes due November 15, 2008
2.75% Series A debentures due June 15, 2023
2.75% Series B debentures due June 15, 2025
6.50% debentures due January 15, 2028
6.45% debentures due March 15, 2029
Unamortized discount
Fair value basis adjustment attributable to hedged debt obligations
Other
Subtotal long-term debt
Amounts maturing within one year

$

September 30,
2003

450
817
291
750
881
300
1,360
(30)
17
2
4,838
(1)

$

216
561
34
409
750
881
300
1,360
(33)
28
47
4,553
(114)

Long-term debt

$ 4,837

$ 4,439

Liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities

$ 1,152

$ 1,152

Variable interest notes were repaid during fiscal 2004 as a result of settling a dispute with an unaffiliated
insurer relating to our Insured Special Purpose Trust.
Debt maturing within one year included $275 million classified as a secured borrowing attributed to a
prepaid forward sales agreement as of September 20, 2003. The agreement matured during fiscal 2004.
The 8% convertible securities were classified as preferred stock on September 30, 2003. On November
24, 2003, we exchanged all of our outstanding 8% redeemable convertible preferred stock for 8%
convertible subordinated debentures.
The weighted average interest rate on long-term debt outstanding, including the liability to subsidiary
trust issuing preferred securities, was 5.9% and 5.8% as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
The maturities of long-term debt and liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities as of
September 30, 2004 for the next successive five fiscal years and thereafter were $1 million in 2005, $450
million in 2006, $817 million in 2007, $0 in 2008, $291 million in 2009, and $4.4 billion thereafter.
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2.75% series A and B debentures
During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, we sold 2.75% Series A Convertible Senior Debentures and 2.75%
Series B Convertible Senior Debentures for an aggregate amount of $1.6 billion, net of the underwriters
discount and related fees and expenses of $46 million. The debentures were issued at a price of $1,000
per debenture and were issued under our universal shelf registration statement. The debentures rank
equal in priority with all of the existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness and senior
in right of payment to all of the existing and future subordinated indebtedness. The terms governing the
debentures limit our ability to create liens, secure certain indebtedness and merge with or sell
substantially all of our assets to another entity.
The debentures are convertible into shares of common stock only if (1) the sale price of our common
stock for at least twenty trading days during the period of thirty consecutive trading days ending on the
last trading day of the previous calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 120% of the applicable
conversion price, (2) the trading price of the debentures is less than 97% of the product of the sale price
of our common stock and the conversion rate during any five consecutive trading-day period, (3) the
debentures have been called for redemption by us or (4) certain specified corporate actions occur.
At our option, the debentures are redeemable for cash after certain dates ("optional redemption periods")
at 100% of the principal amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest. In addition, at our option, the
debentures are redeemable earlier ("provisional redemption periods") if the sale price of the common
stock exceeds 130% of the applicable conversion price. Under these circumstances, the redemption
price would also include a make-whole payment equal to the present value of all remaining scheduled
interest payments through the beginning of the optional redemption periods.
At the option of the holder, the debentures are redeemable on certain dates at 100% of the principal
amount plus any accrued and unpaid interest. In these circumstances, we may pay the purchase price
with cash, common stock (with the common stock to be valued at a 5% discount from the then current
market price) or a combination of both.
The following table summarizes the specific terms of these securities.
Series A

Series B

$ 750,000,000

$ 881,000,000

299.4012

320.5128

$ 3.34

$ 3.12

June 20, 2008 thru June 19, 2010

June 20, 2009 thru June 19, 2013

Amount
Conversion ratio of common share per debenture
Initial conversion price
Redemption periods at our option:
Provisional redemption periods
Optional redemption periods
Redemption dates at the option of the holder

After June 19, 2010

After June 19, 2013

June 15, 2010, 2015 and 2020

June 15, 2013 and 2019

June 15, 2023

June 15, 2025

Maturity dates

Liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities (7.75% convertible securities)
During fiscal 2002, Lucent Technologies Capital Trust I (“the Trust”) sold 7.75% cumulative convertible
trust preferred securities for an aggregate amount of $1.75 billion. We own all of the common securities
of the Trust and as a result had previously consolidated the Trust. The Trust used the proceeds to
purchase our 7.75% convertible subordinated debentures due March 15, 2017, which represent all of the
Trust’s assets. The terms of the trust preferred securities are substantially the same as the terms of the
debentures.
In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
(“FIN 46(R)”). The revision clarified certain provisions of what constitutes a variable interest and
addressed substantive ownership provisions related to consolidation. We adopted FIN 46(R) during the
second quarter of fiscal 2004.
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We determined that the holders of the trust preferred securities were the primary beneficiaries of the Trust
upon review of the provisions of FIN 46(R). As a result, we de-consolidated the Trust and reflected our
obligation to the Trust under the caption “liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities.” We
renamed the related balance as of September 30, 2003 to conform with the current period presentation.
The effect of this change had no effect on our reported liabilities or results of operations. We continue to
be obligated to repay the debentures held by the Trust and guarantee repayment of the preferred
securities issued by the Trust.
We may redeem the debentures, in whole or in part, for cash at premiums ranging from 103.88%
beginning March 20, 2007, to 100.00% on March 20, 2012, and thereafter. To the extent we redeem
debentures, the Trust is required to redeem a corresponding amount of trust preferred securities. We
have irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, the payments due on the trust
preferred securities to the extent we make payments on the debentures to the Trust.
The ability of the Trust to pay dividends depends on the receipt of interest payments on the debentures.
We have the right to defer payments of interest on the debentures for up to 20 consecutive quarters. If
payment of interest on the debentures is deferred, the Trust will defer the quarterly distributions on the
trust preferred securities for a corresponding period. Deferred interest accrues at an annual rate of
9.25%. At the option of the holder, each trust preferred security is convertible into shares of our common
stock, subject to an additional adjustment under certain circumstances. The following table summarizes
the terms of this security.
Conversion ratio of common shares per security

206.6116

Conversion price
Redemption period at our option

$ 4.84
After March 19, 2007

Maturity date

March 15, 2017

8% convertible securities
The following table summarizes the terms of this security.
Conversion ratio of common shares per security

168.3502

Conversion price

$ 5.94

Liquidation preference per share

$1,000 plus accreted unpaid dividends

Redemption period at our option

After August 15, 2006

Redemption dates at the option of the holder

On August 2, 2007, 2010 and 2016

Mandatory redemption date

August 1, 2031

On November 24, 2003, we exchanged all of our outstanding 8% redeemable convertible preferred stock
for 8% convertible subordinated debentures. This exchange was made pursuant to rights we had under
the terms of the preferred stock to exchange the stock for the convertible subordinated debentures.
These debentures have an interest rate of 8%, the same as the dividend rate on the preferred stock, and
have the same payment and record dates as the preferred stock dividends, but the interest on the
debentures must be paid in cash. The subordinated debentures have terms substantially the same as the
preferred stock with respect to put rights, redemptions and conversion into common stock. Securities
tendered to us pursuant to the August 2004 redemption feature were less than $1 million.
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Early extinguishment of convertible securities and debt obligations
The following table summarizes the impact of convertible securities and certain debt obligations retired
through exchanges of our common stock and cash.

2004

(in millions)
8% convertible securities
7.75% convertible securities

$

Total convertible securities

58
-

$

835
598

$

175
-

58

1,433

175

274

519

-

$ 332

$ 1,952

22

563

Other debt obligations
Total convertible securities and debt extinguished

Years ended September 30,
2003
2002

Shares of our common stock exchanged

$

175
58

Cash used for early extinguishments

$ 249

$

487

8% convertible securities – conversion/ redemption costs

$

$

(287)

$ (29)

-

(129)

-

(4)

32

-

7.75% convertible securities – conversion costs
Debt obligations – gains (losses)
Impact on net income (loss) applicable to common
shareowners

$

(4)

(8)

$

(384)

$

-

$ (29)

Conversion costs were recognized in amounts equal to the fair value of the additional common shares
issued to the holders of each respective preferred security to prompt the exchange over the number of
shares of common stock obligated to be issued pursuant to the original conversion terms of the
respective security.
9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
We maintain defined benefit pension plans covering the majority of employees and retirees, and
postretirement benefit plans for U.S. retirees that include health care, dental benefits and life insurance
coverage. The pension plans feature a traditional service-based program as well as a cash balance
program. The cash balance program was added to our defined benefit pension plan for U.S. management
employees hired after December 31, 1998. No employees were transitioned from our traditional program
to our cash balance program. Additionally, employees covered by the cash balance program are not
eligible to receive company-paid postretirement health and group life coverage. We are not obligated to
pay for postretirement group life and health care benefits for U.S. management employees with less than
15 years of service as of June 30, 2001.
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The following tables summarize changes in the benefit obligation, the plan assets and the funded status
of our pension and postretirement benefit plans as well as the components of net periodic benefit costs,
including key assumptions. The measurement dates for plan assets and obligations were September 30,
2004 and 2003.
Pension benefits
September 30,
2004
2003

(in millions)
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains) losses
Amendments
Benefits paid
Plan participant contributions
Settlements
Termination benefits
Curtailments
Exchange rate changes
Benefit obligation assumed by Agere and OFS
Benefit obligation at end of year
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Benefits paid
Plan participant contributions
Company contributions
Exchange rate changes
Other (including transfer of assets from pension to
postretirement plans)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year
Funded status of the plan
Unrecognized prior service cost (credit)
Unrecognized transition obligation
Unrecognized net loss
Net asset (liability) recognized
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Prepaid pension costs
Other assets
Payroll and benefit-related liabilities
Postretirement and postemployment benefit liabilities
Pension liabilities
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Net asset (liability) recognized
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Postretirement
benefits
September 30,
2004
2003

$ 31,235
150
1,716
832
(11)
(2,671)
3
(5)
(1)
53
$ 31,301

$ 30,312 $ 8,511
155
8
1,859
434
2,502
(1,489)
(464)
(110)
(2,984)
(967)
4
100
(27)
(21)
(200)
99
$ 31,235 $ 6,487

$ 9,845
8
583
112
(1,148)
(985)
65
5
17
9
$ 8,511

$ 30,148
4,507
(2,671)
3
57
48

$ 28,598 $ 2,327
4,848
162
(2,984)
(967)
4
100
69
27
96
-

$ 2,445
377
(985)
65
87
-

(19)
$ 32,073

(483)
(19)
$ 30,148 $ 1,630

338
$ 2,327

$

772
85
1
6,017
$ 6,875

$ (1,087) $ (4,857)
169
(1,282)
1
6,628
1,263
$ 5,711 $ (4,876)

$ (6,184)
(1,268)
2,802
$ (4,650)

$ 5,358
11
(5)
(1,874)
3,385
$ 6,875

$ 4,659 $
16
(5)
(258)
(4,618)
(2,494)
3,535
$ 5,711 $ (4,876)

$

(310)
(4,340)
$ (4,650)

Postretirement
benefits
September 30,
2004
2003

Pension benefits
September 30,
2004
2003

Additional Information:
(in millions)
Benefit obligation by major plans:
U.S. management
U.S. occupational
Non-U.S. and supplemental
Non-represented health
Formerly represented health
Group Life and other
Benefit obligation at end of year

$ 17,684
12,459
1,158
$ 31,301

$ 17,714
12,686
835
$ 31,235

$

1,503
3,369
1,615
$ 6,487

$

Plan assets by major plans:
U.S. management
U.S. occupational
Non-U.S. and supplemental
Non-represented health
Formerly represented health
Group Life and other
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$ 15,974
15,354
745
$ 32,073

$ 15,134
14,367
647
$ 30,148

$

$

Accumulated benefit obligation

$ 30,953

$ 30,863

n/a

n/a

18,287
16,090

18,058
15,225

6,487
1,630

8,511
2,327

17,957
16,086

17,700
15,206

n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a

Plans with under-funded or non-funded benefit obligation:
Aggregate benefit obligation
Aggregate fair value of plan assets
Plans with under-funded or non-funded accumulated benefit
obligation:
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation
Aggregate fair value of plan assets

612
1,018
$ 1,630

2,771
4,232
1,508
$ 8,511

35
1,111
1,181
$ 2,327

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost:
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)
Pension credit:
Service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of unrecognized prior service costs
Amortization of transition asset
Amortization of net loss (gain)
Subtotal
Termination benefits
Curtailments
Settlements
Pension credit
Distribution of pension credit:
Continuing operations:
Business restructuring
Other costs and expenses
Subtotal
Discontinued operations
Pension credit

$

150
1,716
(3,059)
70
6
(1,117)
1
5
$ (1,111)

$

155
1,859
(3,137)
94
(9)
1
(1,037)
(21)
(48)
9
$ (1,097)

238
1,981
(3,384)
236
(92)
(189)
(1,210)
340
305
(10)
$ (575)

$

$

$

(1,111)
(1,111)
$ (1,111)

F-64

(79)
(1,018)
(1,097)
$ (1,097)

$

543
(1,220)
(677)
102
$ (575)

Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)
Postretirement benefit cost:
Service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of unrecognized prior service costs
Amortization of net loss (gain)
Subtotal
Termination benefits
Curtailments
Postretirement benefit cost

$

$

Distribution of net postretirement benefit cost:
Continuing operations:
Business restructuring
Other costs and expenses
Subtotal
Discontinued operations
Postretirement benefit cost

$

$

8
434
(161)
(97)
59
243
243

243
243
243

$

$

$

$

8
583
(280)
(51)
91
351
6
(6)
351

2
349
351
351

$

$

$

$

18
622
(361)
(24)
255
35
290

35
248
283
7
290

Key assumptions:
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine:
Benefit obligations:
Discount rate – pension
Discount rate – postretirement
Rate of compensation increase

5.50%
5.25%
4.00%

5.75%
5.75%
3.50%

6.50%
6.50%
3.50%

Net cost or credit:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets – pension
Expected return on plan assets – postretirement
Rate of compensation increase

5.75%
8.75%
5.53%
3.50%

6.50%
8.75%
7.93%
3.50%

7.00%
9.00%
9.00%
4.50%

The weighted average expected rate of return on plan assets that will be used to determine the fiscal
2005 net periodic benefit cost is 8.50% for pension and 5.72% for postretirement benefits.
September 30,
2004
2003
Assumed health care cost trend rates:
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year (excluding postretirement
dental benefits)
Rate that the cost trend rate gradually declines to
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is assumed to remain at

11.1 %

10.4%

11.4 %
5.0 %
2010

10.6%
5.0%
2009

The assumed health care cost trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported. A onepercentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have the following effects:
1 percentage point

(in millions)
Effect on total of service and interest cost components
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation

Increase

$ 13
255

Decrease

$ (12)
(227)

We considered the available yields on high-quality fixed-income investments with maturities
corresponding to our benefit obligations to determine our discount rates at each measurement date.
Although we considered yields and changes in yields of several funds, the primary fund we considered is
the Moody’s Aa long-term corporate yield fund. The average duration of our primary pension obligations
and postretirement health care obligations were 11 years and 7 years, respectively as of September 30,
2004.
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We considered several factors in developing our expected rate of return on plan assets based on input
from our external advisors. Individual asset class return forecasts were developed based upon current
market conditions, for example, price-earnings levels and yields and long-term growth expectations.
Historical returns were used to test for reasonableness. The expected long-term rate of return is the
weighted average of the target asset allocation of each individual asset class. Our long-term expected
rate of return on plan assets included approximately 0.5% for an anticipated premium over market returns
from our active investment managers. Our actual 10-year annual rate of return on pension plan assets
were 11.0%, 9.9% and 9.5% during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The expected return on plan assets was determined using the expected rate of return and a calculated
value of assets referred to as the “market-related value.” The aggregate market-related value of pension
and postretirement plan assets was $37.7 billion and $39.6 billion as of September 30, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, which exceeded the fair value of plan assets by $4.0 billion and $7.1 billion. Differences
between the assumed and actual returns are amortized to the market-related value on a straight-line
basis over a five-year period. The amortization of these differences, including those resulting from the
actual losses incurred during fiscal 2002 and 2001, will continue to reduce both the market-related value
and our pension credit.
Gains and losses resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions and from differences between
assumed and actual experience (except those differences being amortized to the market-related value)
are amortized over the expected remaining service periods of active plan participants for the
management pension plan and over the average remaining life expectancy of the inactive participants for
all other plans to the extent they exceed 10% of the higher of the market-related value or the projected
benefit obligation of each respective plan.
On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States signed the Medicare Prescription Drug
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003. This Act introduced a prescription drug benefit under
Medicare (Medicare Part D) as well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefits plans
that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. We currently sponsor
retiree health care plans that provide prescription drug benefits to our U.S. retirees.
We elected to prospectively recognize the effects of the Act during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, which
reduced the accumulated benefit obligation by approximately $600 million. The impact of the Act is
expected to reduce the annual expense of providing the prescription drug benefit by approximately $90
million, including lower participation rates. Approximately 25% of this impact was recognized during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. This included an estimated impact for retirees who may determine the
addition of Part D makes the complete reliance on Medicare more financially attractive than remaining a
participant in our retiree medical plans. While the accounting treatment has been addressed, other
detailed regulations necessary to implement the Act have not yet been promulgated. These regulations
will need to specify how actuarial equivalency must be determined and demonstrated to the Secretary of
Health and Human Services and specify the reimbursement mechanism for the subsidy. These final
regulations may change the estimated impact of the Act.
Plan Assets
The following table summarizes the target asset allocation ranges of our pension and postretirement
trusts by asset category.

Asset category:
Equity securities
Fixed income securities
Real estate
Private equity and other
Total

Pension target
allocation range as of
September 30, 2004

52% - 70%
20% - 28%
5% - 9%
6% - 10%

Percentage of pension
plan assets as of
September 30,
2004
2003

62%
24
6
8
100%
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63%
24
5
8
100%

Postretirement target
allocation as of
September 30, 2004

50%
50%

Percentage of
postretirement plan assets
as of September 30,
2004
2003

51%
48
1
100%

41%
57
2
100%

The majority of the pension plan assets are held in a master pension trust. Postretirement plan assets
are held in three separate trusts. Plan assets are managed by independent investment advisors with the
objective of maximizing returns with a prudent level of risk. We periodically complete asset-liability
studies to assure that the optimal asset allocation is maintained in order to meet future benefit obligations.
The pension target allocation ranges summarized above were approved by our Board of Directors during
fiscal 2003, upon completion of a study by our external advisors. There were no changes from our
previous target allocations. Investment advisors managing plan assets may use derivative financial
instruments including futures contracts, forward contracts, options and interest rate swaps to manage
market exposure and foreign currency and interest-rate risk.
Pension plan assets included $12 million and $7 million of our common stock as of September 30, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Postretirement plan assets included $40 million and $47 million of our common
stock as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Contributions
We contribute to our pension and postretirement benefit plans to make benefit payments to plan
participants and to pre-fund some benefits by means of trust funds. For our U.S. pension plans, the
funding policy is to contribute amounts to the trusts sufficient to meet minimum funding requirements as
set forth in employee benefit and tax laws plus such additional amounts as we may determine to be
appropriate. Contributions are made to benefit plans for the sole benefit of plan participants.
In addition, we received $212 million from our welfare benefits trust during October 2004 as
reimbursement for retiree health care contributions that were made during fiscal 2004. The Company’s
contributions for postretirement benefits of $27 million are reflected net of this amount during fiscal 2004.
The following table summarizes expected contributions to our various pension and postretirement plans
through fiscal 2014. We do not expect to make contributions to our qualified U.S. pension plans during
fiscal 2005 or 2006. We are unable to estimate the expected contributions to our qualified U.S. pension
plans beyond fiscal 2006. Actual contributions may differ from expected contributions.
Pension
Formerly
represented
retiree health
plans
$
237
367
342
323
1,315

Non -qualified
and non-U.S.
pension plans
$
53
51
52
54
53
270

(in millions)
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010-14

Postretirement
Nonrepresented
retiree health
plans
$
201
189
167
152
142
570

Other
benefit
plans
$
11
11
12
11
11
55

Benefit Payments
The following table summarizes expected benefit payments from our various pension and postretirement
plans through fiscal 2014. Actual benefit payments may differ from expected benefit payments. These
amounts are reflected net of expected plan participant contributions and the annual Medicare Part D
subsidy of approximately $60 million beginning in fiscal 2007.

(in millions)
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010-14

Pension
Qualified
Non-qualified
U.S. pension
and non-U.S.
plans
pension plans
$ 2,453
$
71
2,421
53
2,385
54
2,351
57
2,312
57
10,974
302

Formerly
represented retiree
health plans
$
453
407
367
342
323
1,315

F-67

Postretirement
Non-represented
retiree health
plans
$
201
189
167
152
142
570

Other
benefit
plans
$
86
89
93
95
97
515

Savings Plans
Our savings plans allow employees to contribute a portion of their compensation on a pre-tax and/or
after-tax basis in accordance with specified guidelines. We match a percentage of the employee
contributions up to certain limits, in cash, in accordance with participants’ investment elections. Savings
plan expense charged to continuing operations was $97 million, $75 million and $71 million for fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Postemployment Benefits
We offer various postemployment benefits to certain employees after employment but before retirement.
These benefits are paid in accordance with our established postemployment benefit practices and
policies. Postemployment benefits include disability benefits, severance pay and workers' compensation
benefits. We accrue for these future postemployment benefits, which are funded on a pay-as-you-go
basis. The expense (credit) under these plans was $40 million, $(93) million and $(17) million during
fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, including $41 million and $34 million of credits related to our
restructuring actions. The accrued postemployment liability was $310 million and $417 million as of
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These amounts include $47 million and $88 million in
payroll and benefit related liabilities as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
10. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS
We have stock-based compensation plans under which directors, officers and other eligible employees
receive stock options and other equity-based awards. The plans provide for the grant of stock options,
stock appreciation rights, performance awards, restricted stock awards and other stock unit awards.
Stock options generally are granted with an exercise price equal to 100% of the market value of a share
of common stock on the date of grant, have terms of five to 10 years and vest within four years from the
date of grant. Subject to customary antidilution adjustments and certain exceptions, the total number of
shares of common stock authorized for option and other equity grants under the plans was 563 million
shares as of September 30, 2004.
On April 22, 2002, we commenced a voluntary offer to eligible employees to exchange certain
outstanding stock options to purchase shares of common stock, including all stock options issued during
the six-month period ended April 22, 2002, for our promise to grant a new stock option on or about
November 25, 2002. In response to this offer, employees tendered stock options to purchase an
aggregate of 214 million shares of our common stock in exchange for promises to grant new stock
options to purchase up to an aggregate of 123 million shares of our common stock. On November 25,
2002, 111 million new stock options were granted in connection with the exchange with an exercise price
of $1.78 per share, which was the fair market value of our common stock on the date of the grant. The
214 million stock options tendered by employees in the exchange were cancelled.
Under the terms of the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“2001 ESPP”), eligible employees may have up
to 10% of eligible compensation deducted from their pay to purchase shares of common stock, subject to
plan limits, at a discount of 15% of the market value at either the purchase date or at certain earlier dates
defined in the plan. During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, 18 million, 12 million and 10 million shares of
common stock were purchased, respectively. As of September 30, 2004, 210 million shares were
available for issuance under the 2001 ESPP.
During fiscal 2002, four million restricted stock units were awarded at a weighted average market value of
$6.74.
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The following table summarizes stock option activity.
Weighted average
exercise price
per share

Shares
(in millions)

Outstanding as of September 30, 2001
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited/expired
Cancelled due to exchange offer

683
13
(7)
(101)
(213)

$ 26.43
6.37
1.50
26.85
30.22

Outstanding as of May 31, 2002

375

23.96

Outstanding as of June 1, 2002, after spin-off adjustments (a)
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited/expired

363
1
(77)

21.04
2.09
0.41
36.85

Outstanding as of September 30, 2002

287

16.73

Granted
Exercised
Forfeited/expired

162
(1)
(60)

1.67
1.40
8.79

Outstanding as of September 30, 2003

388

11.70

Granted / assumed

55

3.05

Exercised
Forfeited/expired

(9)
(31)

1.67
10.46

Outstanding as of September 30, 2004

403

10.84

_____________
(a) Effective with the spin-off of Agere on June 1, 2002, Lucent stock options held by Agere employees were
converted to Agere stock options. For the remaining unexercised stock options, the number of stock options and the
exercise price were adjusted to preserve the intrinsic value of the stock options that existed prior to the spin-off.

The following table summarizes information about stock options.

Range of exercise prices per share

Stock options outstanding
Weighted
Weighted
average
remaining
average
exercise
contractual
Shares
life
price
(in millions)
(years)
per share

$ 0.02 to $ 2.25
$ 2.26 to $ 3.50
$ 3.51 to $ 6.26
$ 6.27 to $ 9.99
$10.00 to $ 16.03
$16.04 to $ 77.10

124
48
61
35
79
56

Amounts as of September 30, 2004

$

Shares
(in millions)

Weighted
average
exercise
price
per share

1.63
3.20
6.11
9.44
12.24
42.08

56
56
35
79
56

403

$ 10.84

282

$ 14.47

Amounts as of September 30, 2003

388

$ 11.70

246

$ 16.54

Amounts as of September 30, 2002

287

$ 16.73

219

$ 18.40
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4.0
6.2
2.2
2.1
2.1
4.4

Stock options exercisable

$

1.70
2.80
6.16
9.45
12.23
42.08

11. OPERATING SEGMENTS
We design and deliver networks for the world’s largest communications service providers. The
accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those applied in the consolidated
financial statements. The reportable segments are Integrated Network Solutions (“INS”), Mobility
Solutions (“Mobility”) and Lucent Worldwide Services (“Services”). INS provides a broad range of
software and wireline equipment related to voice networking (primarily consisting of switching products,
which we sometimes refer to as convergence solutions, and voice messaging products), data and
network management (primarily consisting of access and related data networking equipment and
operating support software) and optical networking. Mobility provides software and wireless equipment to
support radio access and core networks. Services is a worldwide organization that provides deployment,
maintenance, professional and managed services in support of both our product offerings as well as
multivendor networks. Performance measurement and resource allocation for the reportable segments
are based on many factors. Total assets by reportable segment are not included in the measures of each
segment reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The primary financial measures include the
revenues, costs and expenses directly controlled by each reportable segment and excludes the following:
x

Business restructuring.

x

Global sales organization expenses.

x

Bad debt and customer financing expenses and recoveries.

x

Certain personnel costs and benefits, including most of the impacts related to pension,
postretirement and postemployment benefits, differences between the actual and budgeted
benefit rates and differences between actual and budgeted employee incentive awards.

x

Certain costs related to shared services, such as general corporate functions, which are
managed on a common basis in order to realize economies of scale and efficient use of
resources.

x

Revenues and expenses associated with licensing and protecting intellectual property rights.

x

Results of the optical fiber business.

x

Certain other general and miscellaneous costs and expenses not directly used in assessing the
performance of the operating segments, including impairment or amortization of goodwill and
other acquired intangible assets related to acquisitions completed prior to fiscal 2004.
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2004

(in millions)

Revenues:
INS
Mobility
Services
Reportable segments
Optical fiber business
Other (a)
Revenues
Operating income (loss):
INS
Mobility
Services
Reportable segments
Business restructuring
Global sales organization
Bad debts and customer financings
Goodwill and other acquired intangible asset amortization
Goodwill impairment
Optical fiber business
Unallocated personnel costs and benefits
Shared services such as general corporate functions
Other
Operating income (loss)

Years ended September 30,
2003
2002

$ 2,984
4,007
1,932
8,923
122
$ 9,045

$ 3,300
3,080
1,840
8,220
250
$ 8,470

$ 4,599
4,444
2,761
11,804
114
403
$ 12,321

$

$

$ (1,693)
2
227
(1,464)
(1,490)
(924)
(1,253)
(250)
(826)
(68 )
1,718
(1,756)
(666)
$ (6,979)

345
1,240
282
1,867
20
(515)
230
(1)
859
(1,162)
(79)
$ 1,219

102
173
225
500
184
(527)
223
(15)
(35)
1,207
(1,499)
(260)
$ (222)

Supplemental Segment Information
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)

Depreciation and amortization:
INS
Mobility
Services
Reportable segments
Non-segment
Depreciation and amortization

$

$

171
181
26
378
315
693

$

$

231
177
41
449
529
978

$

429
230
64
723
747
$ 1,470

Products and Services Revenues
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002
$ 4,007
$ 3,080
$ 4,444
1,336
1,560
2,122
933
1,034
1,132
715
706
1,345
1,932
1,840
2,761
114
122
250
403
$ 9,045
$ 8,470
$ 12,321

(in millions)

Wireless
Voice networking
Data and network management
Optical networking
Services
Optical fiber
Other (a)
Totals

______________
(a) Includes intellectual property licensing revenues.
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Geographic Information

(in millions)

Revenues (a)
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

Long- lived assets (b)
September 30,
2004
2003
2002

U.S.
Non-U.S.

$ 5,517
3,528

$ 5,149
3,321

$ 8,150
4,171

$ 1,567
243

$ 1,397
384

$ 1,540
661

Totals

$ 9,045

$ 8,470

$ 12,321

$ 1,810

$ 1,781

$ 2,201

______________
(a) Revenues are attributed to geographic areas based on the location of customers.
(b) Includes property, plant and equipment and goodwill and other acquired intangible assets.

Concentrations
Historically, we have relied on a limited number of customers for a substantial portion of our total
revenues. Revenues from Verizon, including Verizon Wireless, accounted for 27%, 22% and 19% of
consolidated revenues in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Revenues from Sprint accounted for
11% in consolidated revenue in fiscal 2004. Revenues from customers located in China accounted for
10% and 11% of consolidated revenues in fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. We expect a significant
amount of our future revenues will continue to be generated by a limited number of customers. The loss
of any of these customers or any substantial reduction in orders by any of these customers could
adversely affect our operating results. Refer to Note 13 for a discussion of our contract manufacturing
concentration.
12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair Values
The following table summarizes the carrying values and estimated fair values of financial instruments,
based on quoted market prices. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables
and debt maturing within one year approximate fair value.
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
Carrying
value

(in millions)

Long-term debt
Liability to subsidiary trust issuing preferred securities
8% redeemable convertible preferred stock
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Fair
value

Carrying
value

Fair
value

$ 4,837

$ 5,048

$ 4,439

$ 3,777

1,152

1,277

1,152

956

-

-

868

901

The following table summarizes our available-for-sale debt securities.

(in millions)
U.S. Treasury and government agency debt
securities
Corporate bonds
Asset-backed securities
Total as of September 30, 2004

Amortized
cost
$

Gross
unrealized
gains

979
340
179
$ 1,498

$

$

$

Gross
unrealized
losses
1
1

$

$

Classified as:
Current
Non-current
Total

859
639
$ 1,498

$
$

1
1

U.S. Treasury and government agency debt
securities – classified as current as
of September 30, 2003

$

$

-

686

$

$

$

Estimated fair
value

(3)
(1)
(1)
(5)

$

(1)
(4)
(5)

$

-

976
340
178
$ 1,494

858
636
$ 1,494

$

686

Gross unrealized losses of $5 million were primarily related to U.S. Treasury and government agency
debt securities that were in a continuous loss position for less than one year. These unrealized losses
were primarily caused by increases in interest rates. We do not consider these investments to be otherthan-temporarily impaired because we have the ability and intent to hold these investments until maturity
or until the fair value is recovered.
Proceeds from the sale of marketable debt securities were $352 million during fiscal 2004. The realized
gains and losses on these sales were $1 million and $2 million for fiscal 2004, respectively. There were
no sales of marketable debt securities during fiscal 2003 and 2002.
The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of our available-for-sale debt securities.
Amortized cost
$
859
555
11
73

(in millions)

2005
2006 – 2010
2011 – 2015
2016 and thereafter

Estimated fair value
$
858
552
11
73

The following table summarizes the carrying value of our non-consolidated equity investments.
September 30,
2004
2003
$ 2
$ 5
70
98
5
33
$ 77
$ 136

(in millions)

Available-for-sale
Cost-method
Equity-method
Non-consolidated equity investments

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale equity securities were $178 million during fiscal 2003. During
fiscal 2003, we entered into prepaid forward sales agreements for all of our Corning shares, under which
we received proceeds $113 million and locked in $64 million of unrealized appreciation. This gain was
recognized during fiscal 2004. Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale equity securities were not
material during fiscal 2004 and 2002. Gross unrealized losses on available-for-sale equity securities
were not material during fiscal 2004 and 2003 and were $150 million during fiscal 2002.
All investments are periodically reviewed to determine if declines in fair value below cost basis are otherthan-temporary. This review considers among other factors, significant and sustained decreases in
quoted market prices, a series of historical and projected operating losses, changes in the market
demand for technology and our intent to provide future funding. If the decline in fair value has been
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determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment loss is recognized, and a new cost basis is
established. We recognized $22 million, $63 million and $209 million of other-than-temporary impairment
losses related to our non-consolidated equity investments during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.
Credit Risk
All financial instruments involve credit risk for non-performance by counterparties. The contract or
notional amounts of these instruments reflect the extent of involvement we have in particular classes of
financial instruments.
Our maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial
instruments for commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees is limited to the amount drawn and
outstanding on those instruments. Exposure to credit risk is controlled through credit approvals, credit
limits and continuous monitoring procedures. Reserves for losses are established based upon
collectibility assessments.
Derivative Financial Instruments and Market Risk
All financial instruments inherently expose the holders to market risk, including changes in currency and
interest rates and equity prices. We manage our exposure to these market risks through our regular
operating and financing activities, including the use of derivative financial instruments.
Foreign currency risk
Our business is conducted using different foreign currencies. The objective of our foreign currency risk
management policy is to preserve the value of cash flows in non-functional currencies. Our policy is to
hedge all significant booked and firmly committed cash flows identified as creating foreign currency
exposure on a rolling 12-month basis. In addition, we typically hedge a portion of our exposure resulting
from identified anticipated cash flows, providing the flexibility to mitigate the variability of longer-term
forecasts as well as changing market conditions.
Foreign exchange forward and option contracts are used to manage our foreign currency risk. We have
hedged foreign exchange risk in certain sales and purchase contracts by embedding terms in the
contracts that affect the ultimate amount of cash flows under the contract. Our primary net foreign
currency exposures included the euro, Chinese yuan, Japanese yen, and British pound as of September
30, 2004 and 2003.
The following table provides a summary of the total net notional amounts of foreign exchange forward and
option contracts.
September 30,
2004
2003

(in millions)
Purchase contracts
Sale contracts

$ 208
532

$ 257
134

The fair value of our hedged contracts and the notional amounts and fair values of embedded derivatives
were not material as of September 30, 2004 and 2003.
We hedge all types of foreign currency risk to preserve our cash flows in accordance with corporate risk
management policies but generally do not designate related derivative instruments as hedges under
SFAS 133, for cost/benefit reasons. Accordingly, the changes in fair value of these undesignated
freestanding foreign currency derivative instruments are recorded in other income (expense) in the period
of change and have not been material because of the short maturities of these instruments.
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Our foreign currency embedded derivatives consist of sales and purchase contracts with cash flows
indexed to changes in or denominated in a currency that neither party to the contract uses as its
functional currency. Changes in the fair value of these embedded derivatives were not significant during
fiscal 2004 and 2003.
Interest rate risk
We are exposed to various forms of interest rate risk. The fair value of our fixed-rate available-for-sale
marketable securities and the interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents may fluctuate as
interest rates change. In addition, if interest rates remain low we may forgo the opportunity to obtain
more favorable interest rates on borrowings due to our fixed rate debt obligations. Our objective is to
mitigate the variability of cash inflows and outflows resulting from interest rate fluctuations by maintaining
a balanced mix of fixed and floating-rate debt and investments. We mitigate our interest rate risk by
entering into interest rate swaps on a portion of our debt obligations to make them variable-rate debt
instruments and by including fixed-rate assets in our investment portfolio. We also expect that these
transactions will reduce our overall cost of borrowing and increase investment returns.
As of September 30, 2004, we had interest rate swaps where we received fixed interest rates (5.5% and
7.25%) and paid floating rates based upon the three and six-month LIBOR rates plus agreed upon
spreads (ranging from 1.72% to 2.89%) on notional amounts aggregating $600 million. As of September
30, 2004, the three and six-month LIBOR rates were 2.02% and 2.20%, respectively. We do not foresee
any significant changes in our interest rate risk management strategy or in our exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.
Equity price risk
We hold equity investments in publicly held companies that are classified as available-for-sale and other
strategic equity holdings in privately held companies and venture funds. These equity investments are
exposed to price fluctuations and are generally concentrated in the high-technology industries. We
generally do not hedge our equity price risk due to hedging restrictions imposed by the issuers, illiquid
capital markets or our inability to hedge non-marketable equity securities in privately held companies. We
had no outstanding hedging instruments for our equity price risk as of September 30, 2004.
Customer Financing Commitments
Requests for providing commitments to extend credit and financial guarantees are reviewed and subject
to approval by senior management. We regularly review all outstanding commitments, letters of credit
and financial guarantees to assess the adequacy of our reserves for possible credit and guarantee
losses.
The following table summarizes our customer financing commitments for amounts drawn, available but
not drawn and not available to be drawn. These commitments may expire without being drawn upon.
The amounts drawn on these commitments are generally collateralized by substantially all of the assets
of the respective creditors.

(in millions)
Drawn commitments
Available but not drawn
Not available
Total

September 30, 2004
Total loans
and
guarantees
Loans
Guarantees
$ 139
$
125
$
14

$

11
150

$

3
128
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$

8
22

September 30, 2003
Total loans
and
guarantees
Loans
Guarantees
$ 442
$ 354
$
88

$

49
14
505

$

6
14
374

$

43
131

The following table summarizes the change in the customer financing reserves.
Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
2002

(in millions)
Reserve at beginning of year

$

Provision for (recovery of) customer financing
Transfers from (to) other accounts, net
Write offs
Reserve at end of year

(188)
(29)
(63)
$ 135

415

$

951

(156 )
116
(496)
$ 415

$ 2,109
765
(1,923)
$
951

Commitments to Extend Credit
Commitments to extend credit to third parties are conditional agreements generally having fixed
expiration or termination dates and specific interest rates and purposes. In certain situations, credit may
not be available for drawdown until certain conditions are met.
Letters of Credit
Letters of credit are obtained to ensure the performance or payment to third parties in accordance with
specified terms and conditions. Secured and unsecured outstanding letters of credit were $353 million
and $588 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The estimated fair value of these
letters of credit were $8 million and $14 million as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. On
October 1, 2004, we amended and restated our two primary agreements. The first agreement provides
for the issuance of up to $215 million of new letters of credit until September 30, 2006. The second
agreement permits us to request renewal of $199 million of letters of credit until September 30, 2006.
Under these revised agreements, we are no longer required to meet specified levels of quarterly
consolidated minimum operating income or to provide cash collateral for letters of credit issued.
However, we are required to maintain a minimum amount of unrestricted cash and short-term investments
in the U.S. as defined in the agreements.
Transfers of Financial Instruments
We have agreements that allow us to sell accounts receivable from selected customers at a discount to
various financial institutions on a non-recourse basis. We sold approximately $468 million and $339
million of accounts receivable under these agreements during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively. These
transactions were accounted for as a sale. Discounting fees were $5 million and $3 million during 2004
and 2003, respectively. Sales and transfers that do not meet the criteria for surrender of control are
accounted for as secured borrowings. There were no secured borrowings as of September 30, 2004.
13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceedings
We are subject to legal proceedings, lawsuits, and other claims, including proceedings by government
authorities. In addition, we may be subject to liabilities of some of our former affiliates under separation
agreements with them. Legal proceedings are subject to uncertainties, and the outcomes are difficult to
predict. Consequently, unless otherwise indicated, we are unable to estimate the ultimate aggregate
amounts of monetary liability or financial impact with respect to these matters as of September 30, 2004.
As described below, we have received final court approval for the settlement of our securities and related
litigation. The impact of other pending litigation matters that we agreed to settle during the year were not
material individually or in the aggregate to our results of operations or financial condition. We believe that
the remainder of the cases will not have a material financial impact on our results of operations or
financial condition after final disposition. However, because of the uncertainties of legal proceedings, one
or more of these proceedings could ultimately result in a material obligation.

F-76

Securities and Related Cases
On March 27, 2003, we announced that we reached an agreement to settle assorted securities, ERISA
and derivative class action and other related lawsuits against us and certain of our current and former
directors, officers and employees. The settlement covers all claims generally relating to the purchase of
Lucent securities during different class periods. The primary class period is October 26, 1999 through
December 20, 2000. We did not admit nor deny any wrongdoing as part of the settlement. We received
final approval of the settlement from the U.S. District Court in Newark, New Jersey, on December 12,
2003. All appeals of this order are resolved, and on November 9, 2004, the court approved the plaintiffs’
plan of distribution. The distribution is scheduled to occur during the first or second quarter of fiscal 2005.
The agreement is a global settlement of 53 separate lawsuits, including a consolidated shareowner class
action lawsuit in the U.S. District Court of New Jersey, and related ERISA, bondholder, derivative, and
other state securities cases. Under the settlement agreement, we will pay $315 million in common stock,
cash or a combination of both, at our option. On December 24, 2003, we deposited 33 million shares of
our common stock into escrow, representing the initial $100 million payment of the settlement amount.
These shares were subsequently sold in the market by the escrow agent for $105 million during the
second quarter of fiscal 2004 and the net proceeds remain in escrow.
We will also issue warrants to purchase 200 million shares of our common stock at an exercise price of
$2.75 per share with an expiration date three years from the date of issuance. The estimated fair value
of these warrants was $252 million, based upon the Black-Scholes option-pricing model as of September
30, 2004. We also paid $5 million for the cost of settlement administration. We will also pay for certain
other costs involved in the issuance of securities.
In addition to our contributions, certain of our insurance carriers agreed to pay their available policy limits
of $148 million into the settlement fund. Our former affiliate, Avaya Inc., contributed shares of its common
stock valued at $24 million to the settlement during September 2004. We continue to pursue a partial
recovery of the settlement from our fiduciary insurance carriers under certain insurance policies. We filed
a lawsuit against them to recover these amounts. We settled with two of the carriers for $40 million and
are continuing to pursue our claim against a third carrier that provided additional coverage up to $20
million.
The charge for the global settlement will be revised in future quarters to reflect any additional recoveries,
as well as to reflect additional changes in the fair value of the warrants until the warrants are issued. The
estimated fair value of the warrants may continue to change as a result of fluctuations in the share price
of our common stock.
We will defend any lawsuits that may be brought by parties that have opted out of the settlement. We
and certain of our current and former officers and directors are defendants in two such actions in the U.S.
District Court in New Jersey, Staro Asset Management, LLC v. Lucent Technologies Inc. et al., and
Florida State Board of Administration v. Lucent Technologies Inc. et al., alleging violations of federal
securities laws. These cases were originally part of the global settlement referred to above. However, the
plaintiffs opted out of the settlement and are pursuing their claims separately against Lucent and the other
defendants. Other cases have been and may continue to be brought by individual investors opting out of
the settlement.
Government Investigations
During November and December 2000, we identified certain revenue recognition issues that we publicly
disclosed and brought to the attention of the SEC. A final judgment and consent decree with the SEC
was entered for this matter in May 2004. Under the terms of the consent decree, we paid a $25 million
civil penalty in the third quarter of fiscal 2004 and were not required to restate our financial statements.
Without admitting or denying any wrongdoing, we consented to the settlement enjoining us from future
violations of specific provisions of the federal securities laws.
During August 2003, the U.S. Department of Justice (the “DOJ”) and the SEC informed us that they had
each commenced an investigation into possible violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”).
These investigations followed allegations made by National Group for Communications and Computers
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Ltd. (“NGC”) in an action filed against us on August 8, 2003, which is described below. In April 2004, we
reported to the DOJ and the SEC that a FCPA compliance audit and an outside counsel investigation
found incidents and internal control deficiencies in our operations in China that potentially involve FCPA
violations. We are cooperating with those agencies. We believe these incidents and deficiencies did not
have a material effect on our results of operations. However, we cannot determine whether this matter will
affect our future business operations in China.
As disclosed in an 8-K filing on November 8, 2004, our former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Richard McGinn, the former head of our Saudi Arabia operations, John Heindel, and a third former
employee received “Wells” notices from the SEC. These Wells notices state that the staff of the SEC is
considering recommending that civil actions be taken against these three former employees for FCPA
violations. The allegations against these individuals include violations of the anti-bribery provisions of the
FCPA and aiding and abetting the Company’s alleged violations of requirements under the FCPA to keep
accurate books and records and to maintain a proper system of internal accounting controls. We have
not received a Wells notice at this time, but the investigation is continuing.
Other Matters
We are involved in commercial disputes with customers, suppliers, subcontractors and other parties.
These matters generally involve claims for monetary damages for breach of contract or breach of
warranty or similar claims in the normal course of business. While many of these disputes are settled
amicably without litigation, some of these matters have resulted in lawsuits being filed against us. The
condition of the telecommunications market in the past three years and the insolvency or failure of
numerous service providers has led to more claims and disputes resulting in litigation. In addition, our
restructuring has resulted in the termination of tens of thousands of employees and changes in benefits
for current and former employees. These actions have led to additional claims against us. The following is
a description of significant pending litigation.
A lawsuit involving investors in Actel Integrated Communications was filed against us for unspecified
damages, claiming we misled them as to certain technology, which influenced their decision to invest in
Actel. This case, Sandler Capital Partners IV, L.P. et al. v. Lucent Technologies, filed in New York State
Court, is in its early stages. During fiscal 2004, we settled cases filed against us by Actel. In addition,
two other cases were filed against us alleging that we failed to deliver working products related to this
technology. Those cases, Maxcess, Inc. v. Lucent Technologies Inc. et al., filed in the U.S. District Court
for the Middle District of Florida, and Official Plan Committee of Omniflex, Inc. v. Lucent Technologies
Inc., filed in Missouri State Court, are in the early stages of the litigation process.
We are a defendant in an adversary proceeding filed in U.S. Bankruptcy Court in Delaware by Winstar
and Winstar Wireless, Inc. in connection with the bankruptcy of Winstar and various related entities. The
complaint asserts claims for breach of contract and other claims against us and seeks compensatory
damages, as well as costs and expenses associated with litigation. Many of these claims against us have
been dismissed. The complaint also seeks recovery of a payment to us of approximately $190 million in
December 2000.
On August 8, 2003, NGC filed an action in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York
against us, our subsidiary Lucent Technologies International Inc. and an unaffiliated company, alleging
violations of the Racketeer Influenced Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”) and other improper activities.
These allegations relate to activities in Saudi Arabia in connection with certain telecommunications
contracts between us, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other entities. The complaint seeks damages in
excess of $63 million, which could be tripled under RICO. The allegations in this complaint appear to
arise out of certain contractual disputes between NGC and Lucent, that are the subject of a separate case
that NGC previously filed against us in U.S. District Court in New Jersey. This case is in its early stages.
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In the case of Pf.Net Supply Corp. v. Lucent Technologies, pending in the U.S. District Court in New
Jersey, the plaintiff claims that we breached an alleged $100 million purchase commitment and seeks to
compel us to meet this purchase commitment or pay damages. Both parties have filed motions for
summary judgement, which are currently pending.
A purported class action lawsuit, Foss v. Lucent Technologies, was filed against us in U.S. District Court
in New Jersey during October 2003 in connection with the elimination of the death benefit from our U.S.
management pension plan in early 2003. The elimination of these benefits reduced the future pension
obligations by approximately $450 million. The benefit was paid out of the pension plan assets to certain
qualified surviving dependents, such as spouses or dependent children of management retirees who
retired before 1998. The case alleges that we wrongfully terminated this death benefit and requests that it
be reinstated, along with other remedies. This case is in the early stages. Three other cases of a similar
nature have recently been filed: Berendt, et al. v. Lucent Technologies Inc., et al. and Lucas, et al. v.
Lucent Technologies, et al., both filed in the U.S. District Court in New Jersey; and Chastain, et al. v.
AT&T, filed in the U.S. District Court in the Western District of Oklahoma.
The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) filed a purported class action lawsuit against
us, EEOC v. Lucent Technologies Inc., in the U.S District Court in California. The case alleges gender
discrimination in connection with the provision of service credit to a class of present and former Lucent
employees who were out of work because of maternity prior to 1980 and seeks the restoration of lost
service credit prior to April 29, 1979, together with retroactive pension payment adjustments; corrections
of service records; back pay, other damages and attorneys fees and costs.
Separation Agreements
We are party to various agreements that were entered into in connection with the separation of Lucent
and former affiliates, including AT&T, Avaya, Agere Systems and NCR Corporation. Pursuant to these
agreements, we and the former affiliates have agreed to allocate certain liabilities related to each other’s
business, and have agreed to share liabilities based on certain allocations and thresholds. For example,
AT&T, Avaya and NCR each assumed a portion of the settlement liability related to our former consumer
products leasing business, which settled in August 2002. The plaintiffs' counsel in this case has filed a
motion to reconsider the disposition of certain settlement proceeds, so this matter may not be completely
resolved. We are not aware of any material liabilities to our former affiliates as a result of the separation
agreements that are not otherwise reflected in our unaudited consolidated financial statements.
Nevertheless, it is possible that potential liabilities for which the former affiliates bear primary
responsibility may lead to contributions by us.
Avaya has informed us that they settled three separate purported class action lawsuits that are based on
claims that we, as predecessor to Avaya’s business, sold products that were not Year 2000 compliant. In
addition, NCR has disclosed that it is responsible for remediation costs related to the discharge of
contaminants into the Fox River in Wisconsin. NCR has informed us that these costs are expected to
exceed threshold limits under the separation agreement among NCR, AT&T and us. We have reserves
for the amounts we currently expect to pay Avaya and NCR under the separation agreements for these
matters. The impact of these matters was not material to our results of operations or financial condition.
Other Commitments
We agreed to purchase 90% of our requirements for products we currently purchase from Agere and 60%
of our requirements for other products that Agere can supply through September 30, 2006, provided
Agere is competitive with other potential suppliers as to price, lead time and technological merit. We
have also agreed to proceed first with Agere on all joint product development projects where Agere meets
our criteria.
We exited most of our manufacturing operations and increased our use of contract manufacturers. A
sole-source supplier is currently used for a majority of the switching and wireless product lines.
Purchases from this supplier were approximately $750 million, $695 million and $1.5 billion during fiscal
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Four other contract manufacturers supplied the majority of our other
product lines. Purchases from these suppliers were approximately $880 million, $825 million and $1.0
billion during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We are generally not committed to unconditional
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purchase obligations in these contract-manufacturing relationships. However, there is exposure to shortterm purchase commitments when they occur within the contract manufacturers’ lead-time for specific
products or raw materials. These commitments were $691 million as of September 30, 2004. As a result,
any sudden and significant changes in forecasted demand requirements within the lead-time of those
products or raw materials could adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows.
Guarantees and Indemnification Agreements
We divested certain businesses and assets through sales to third-party purchasers and spin-offs to our
common shareowners. In connection with these transactions, certain direct or indirect indemnifications
are provided to the buyers or other third parties doing business with the divested entities. These
indemnifications include secondary liability for certain leases of real property and equipment assigned to
the divested entity and certain specific indemnifications for certain legal and environmental contingencies,
as well as vendor supply commitments. The time durations of such indemnifications vary but are
standard for transactions of this nature.
We remain secondarily liable for approximately $275 million of lease obligations as of September 30,
2004, that were assigned to Avaya, Agere and purchasers of other businesses. The remaining terms of
these assigned leases and our corresponding guarantees range from one month to 15 years. The
primary obligor under assigned leases may terminate or restructure the lease obligation before its original
maturity and thereby relieve us of our secondary liability. We generally have the right to receive
indemnity or reimbursement from the assignees and have not reserved for losses on this form of
guarantee.
We are party to a tax-sharing agreement to indemnify AT&T and are liable for tax adjustments that are
attributable to our lines of business, as well as a portion of certain other shared tax adjustments during
the years prior to our separation from AT&T. We have similar agreements with Avaya and Agere. In
addition to the fiscal year 2001 federal net operating loss carryback claim discussed in Note 7, certain tax
adjustments have been proposed or assessed subject to these tax-sharing agreements. Certain tax
issues, including potential adjustments and refunds related to the years 1990 through 1998 were recently
resolved with the Internal Revenue Service and our former affiliates. The resolution of these matters
resulted in a benefit of $234 million, including interest of $90 million, to our results of operations during
fiscal 2004. The outcome of all remaining matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on
our consolidated results of operations, consolidated financial position or near-term liquidity.
We license to our customers software and rights to use intellectual property that might provide the
licensees with an indemnification against any liability arising from third-party claims of patent, copyright or
trademark infringement. We cannot determine the maximum amount of losses that we could incur under
this type of indemnification, because we often may not have enough information about the nature and
scope of an infringement claim until it has been submitted to us.
We indemnify our directors and certain of our current and former officers for third-party claims alleging
certain breaches of their fiduciary duties as directors or officers. Certain costs incurred for providing such
indemnification may be recovered under various insurance policies.
We are unable to reasonably estimate the maximum amount that could be payable under certain of our
arrangements since these exposures are not capped and due to the conditional nature of our obligations
and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each agreement. Historically, payments made under
these agreements have not had a material effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.
Warranty reserves are established for costs that are expected to be incurred after the sale and delivery of
a product or service for deficiencies under specific product or service warranty provisions. These
reserves are established when it is probable that customers will make claims and when a reasonable
estimate of costs can be made. The reserves are determined as a percentage of revenues based on the
actual trend of historical charges incurred over various periods, excluding any significant or infrequent
issues that are specifically identified and reserved. The following table summarizes the activity related to
warranty reserves:
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Years ended September 30,
2004
2003
$ 330
$ 440
61
136
(94)
(229)
(17)
$ 297
$ 330

(in millions)
Reserve at beginning of year
Accruals for warranties, net
Payments
Optical Fiber business adjustment
Reserve at end of year

Environmental Matters
Our current and historical operations are subject to a wide range of environmental laws. In the United
States, these laws often require parties to fund remedial action regardless of fault. We have remedial and
investigatory activities underway at numerous current and former facilities.
Environmental reserves of $118 million have been established for environmental liabilities that can be
reasonably estimated as of September 30, 2004. These reserves are not discounted to present value. We
have receivables of $31 million with respect to environmental matters due from third-party indemnitors as
of September 30, 2004. Receivables are recorded only if the indemnitors have agreed to pay the claims
and management believes collection of the receivables is reasonably assured. Environmental matters did
not have a significant impact on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows
during the year ended September 30, 2004. Charges related to environmental matters were $15 million,
$25 million and $26 million during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively and were included in costs.
Reserves for estimated losses from environmental remediation are, depending on the site, based on
analyses of many interrelated factors, including:
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

The extent and degree of contamination and the nature of required remedial actions.
The timing and various types of environmental expenditures, such as investigatory, remedial,
capital and operations, and maintenance costs.
Applicable legal requirements defining remedial goals and methods.
Progress and stage of existing remedial programs in achieving remedial goals.
Innovations in remedial technology and expected trends in environmental costs and legal
requirements.
The number, participation level and financial viability of other potentially responsible parties.
The timing and likelihood of potential recoveries or contributions from other third parties.
Historical experience.
The degree of certainty and reliability of all the factors considered.

It is often difficult to estimate the future impact of environmental matters, including potential liabilities, due
to the above factors and the lengthy time periods involved in resolving them (which may be up to 30 years
or longer). Although we believe that our reserves are currently adequate, there can be no assurance that
the amount of capital expenditures and other expenses which will be required relating to remedial actions
and compliance with applicable environmental laws will not exceed the amounts reflected in reserves or
will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows. Any possible loss or range of possible loss that may be incurred in excess of amounts
provided for as of September 30, 2004 cannot be reasonably estimated.
Lease Commitments
We lease land, buildings and equipment under agreements that expire in various years through 2020.
Rental expense under operating leases was $230 million, $267 million and $325 million, net of sublease
rental income of $38 million, $53 million and $96 million, for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Future minimum lease payments due under non-cancelable operating leases (including leases that are
part of our restructuring actions) as of September 30, 2004 were $180 million in 2005, $136 million in
2006, $101 million in 2007, $86 million in 2008, $75 million in 2009 and $423 million thereafter. These
future minimum lease payments do not include future sublease rental income of $27 million in 2005, $18
million in 2006, $16 million in 2007, $14 million in 2008, $12 million in 2009 and $125 million thereafter.
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14. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Year ended September 30, 2004
Revenues
Gross margin
Recovery of bad debts and customer financings
Business restructuring charges (reversals), net
Other income (expense), net
Income taxes
Net income
Conversion / redemption cost - 8% preferred stock
Preferred stock dividends and accretion
Net income applicable to common shareowners

First
$ 2,259
919
(14)
29
79
(101)
338
(1)
12
349

Income per common share:
Net income applicable to common shareowners - basic
Net income applicable to common shareowners - diluted

Year ended September 30, 2003
Revenues
Gross margin
Provision for (recovery of) bad debts and customer financings
Goodwill impairment
Business restructuring charges (reversals), net (including
amounts affecting gross margin)
Other income (expense), net
Income taxes
Net (loss) income
Conversion / redemption cost - 8% preferred stock
Preferred stock dividends and accretion
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners
(Loss) income per common share - basic and diluted:
Net income (loss) applicable to common shareowners

Second
$

0.08
0.07

$ 2,075
454
(91)
-

2,194
938
(99)
(17)
(172)
(22)
68
68

0.02
0.02

$

2,403
762
24
-

Third
$ 2,190
947
(90)
(27)
128
(4)
387
387

0.09
0.08

Fourth
$ 2,402
975
(27)
(5)
205
(812)
1,209
1,209

Total
$

0.28
0.23

$ 1,965
573
(32)
35

$ 2,027
863
(124)
-

(14)
22
(120)
(264)
(100)
(25)
(389)

(142)
(489)
(197)
(351)
(166)
(36)
(553)

14
31
(69)
(254)
(20)
(21)
(295)

(42)
8
153
99
(1)
(21)
77

(0.11)

(0.14)

(0.07)

0.02

9,045
3,779
(230)
(20)
240
(939)
2,002
(1)
12
2,013

0.47
0.42

$

8,470
2,652
(223)
35
(184)
(428)
(233)
(770)
(287)
(103)
(1,160)

(0.29)

As reflected above, our quarterly results were impacted by charges, recoveries or reversals related to bad debts and customer financing,
restructuring actions and retirements of convertible securities and certain debt obligations among other items. There were no dividends
per common share for any of the periods presented. The impact of significant items incurred during the first three interim periods of each
fiscal year are discussed in more detail and disclosed in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. Additional items affecting our quarterly
results were as follows:
x During the second quarter of fiscal 2003, we recognized a $415 million charge in other income (expense) related to the
settlement of our shareowner class action lawsuits for alleged securities violations. Additional charges (benefits), primarily to
adjust the fair value of the warrants that are expected to be issued in connection with the legal settlement, were $54 million,
$212 million, ($72) million and ($98) million for the four quarters of fiscal 2004 and $33 million in both the third and fourth
quarters of fiscal 2003.
x The results for the four quarters of fiscal 2004 included the impact of certain discrete tax items related to the reversal of
valuation allowances and the favorable settlement of certain prior year federal and state tax audit matters. Tax related
benefits recognized for the four quarters of fiscal 2004 were $123 million, $37 million, $15 million and $828 million, including
the recognition of an $816 million net operating loss carryback claim. We also recognized $68 million, $18 million, $4 million
and $45 million of interest income related to these settlements during the four quarters of fiscal 2004. During each of the first
three quarters of fiscal 2003, the income tax benefit reflected the expected utilization of a portion of the current period’s
operating losses as a result of certain equity transactions, including a $135 million tax benefit from exchanges of 7.75%
convertible securities for shares of our common stock, and a $30 million tax benefit from unrealized investment holding gains.
These income tax benefits were reversed during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 as a result of changes in the minimum
pension liability that was reflected in other comprehensive income.
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I N F O R M AT I O N F O R O U R I N V E S T O R S

SHAREOWNER HOTLINE

If you are a registered shareowner and have
a question about your account, or you would
like to report a change in your name or
address, please call Lucent’s shareowner
services and transfer agent, The Bank of
New York, toll-free at 1-888-LUCENT6
(1-888-582-3686). If you are outside the
United States, call collect at 610-382-7839.
If you use a telecommunications device for
the deaf (TDD) or a teletypewriter (TTY),
call 1-800-711-7072. Customer service
representatives are available Monday
through Friday from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. Eastern
time. Shareowners also may send questions
electronically to the e-mail address at The
Bank of New York:
LUshareholders@bankofny.com
Or you may write to:
Lucent Technologies
c/o The Bank of New York
P O Box 11009
Church Street Station
New York NY 10286-1009
ANNUAL SHAREOWNERS’ MEETING

The 2005 annual meeting of shareowners
will be held Wednesday, February 16, 2005,
at 9 a.m. EST in The DuPont Theatre, 10th
and Market streets, Wilmington, Delaware.

governance listing standards. In addition,
Lucent’s CEO and chief financial officer filed
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission all required certifications
regarding the quality of Lucent’s public
disclosures in its fiscal 2004 reports.
DIRECT STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The BuyDIRECT* direct stock purchase plan
provides a convenient way to purchase
shares of Lucent stock. Please call The Bank
of New York directly at 1-888-LUCENT6
(1-888-582-3686) for a plan brochure and
enrollment form, or write directly to the
address shown under SHAREOWNER
HOTLINE at left. Also, you can visit
The Bank of New York’s stock transfer
Web site to view the plan brochure online
or to download an enrollment form:
www.stockbny.com/lucent
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

One of Lucent’s core values is a strong
sense of social responsibility, and we are
committed to balancing the best interests of
our communities, the environment, our
employees and our shareowners with the
operational needs of our business. For more
information about our programs and policies
in the area of social responsibility, please
visit: www.lucent.com/social

INTERNET/TELEPHONE VOTING

As a convenience, most Lucent shareowners
may vote their proxies via the Internet at
www.proxyvote.com or by phone.
Instructions are in your proxy materials that
you receive. Registered shareowners also
may sign up to access their annual report
and proxy statement over the Internet in the
future. Beneficial owners may contact the
brokers, banks or other holders of record of
their stock to find out whether electronic
delivery is available. If you choose electronic
delivery, you will not receive the paper form
of the annual report and proxy statement.
Instead you will be notified when the
materials are available on the Internet.
QUARTERLY RESULTS

LUCENT ON THE WEB

www.lucent.com
Investor Information
www.lucent.com/investor
Corporate Information
www.lucent.com/news/corpinfo
Products, Services and Solutions
www.lucent.com/solutions
Latest News
www.lucent.com/news

Lucent usually reports its results during the
latter part of January, April, July and
October.

Employment
www.lucent.com/work

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATIONS

Research/Technology
www.bell-labs.com

In 2004, Lucent’s chief executive officer
(CEO) provided to the New York Stock
Exchange the annual CEO certification
regarding Lucent’s compliance with the
New York Stock Exchange’s corporate

*BuyDIRECT is a service mark of The Bank of New York.
C This document is recyclable.
©2004 Lucent Technologies. Printed in the USA.

STOCK DATA

Lucent stock is traded in the United States
on the New York Stock Exchange under the
ticker symbol LU.
Shares outstanding as of October 1, 2004:
4,412,834,412
Shareowners of record as of October 1, 2004:
1,352,297
HEADQUARTERS

Lucent Technologies
600 Mountain Ave
Murray Hill NJ 07974-0636
COPIES OF REPORTS

If you would like to order additional copies
of this report, please call 1-888-LUCENT6
(1-888-582-3686). To view this report
online, or to order copies of our latest filings
with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, visit our Investor Relations
Web site at: www.lucent.com/investor
If you have more than one account in your
name or the same address as other
shareowners of record, you may authorize us
to discontinue mailing of multiple annual
reports and proxy statements and certain
other mailings. If you would like to set up
this process (known as “householding”),
please contact your bank, broker or other
holder of record.

2005 ANNUAL MEETING
DuPont Theatre
10th & Market Streets
Wilmington, Delaware 19801
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Directions
From Philadelphia on I-95 South
Follow I-95 South to Exit 7A marked "Route 52,
South Delaware Avenue" (11th Street). Follow
11th Street in the middle lane through five traffic
lights. The DuPont Theatre is on the right in the
Hotel duPont.

From Baltimore on I-95 North
Take I-95 North to Wilmington Exit 7 marked
"Route 52, Delaware Avenue". From right lane
take Exit 7 onto Adams Street. At the third
traffic light on Adams Street, turn right onto
11th Street. Follow 11th Street through five
traffic lights. The DuPont Theatre is on the right
in the Hotel duPont.
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